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PART

ITEM BUSINESS

The disclosures in this Item are qualified by the disclosures below in Item 1A Risk Factors and Item Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation and in other cautionary statements set forth

elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

G.ne.ai

Horizon Bancorp Horizon or the Company is registered bank holding company incorporated in Indiana and

headquartered in Michigan City Indiana Horizon provides broad range of banking services in Northwestern Indiana

and Southwestern Michigan through its bank subsidiary Horizon Bank N.A the Bank and other affiliated entities

Horizons Common Stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol HBNC The Bank was chartered as

national banking association in 1873 and has operated continuously since that time The Bank is full-service commercial

bank offering commercial and retail banking services corporate and individual trust and agency services and other services

incident to banking

On June 2010 the Company announced the completion of the purchase of assets and the assumption of liabilities of

American Trust Savings Bank American in Whiting Indiana The transaction was consummated on May 28 2010

The Company purchased most of the banking-related assets of American totaling $107.8 million and assumed all the

deposits federal home loan bank advances trust preferred securities and accrued interest payable in the approximate

amount of $110.3 million The Company paid deposit premium on core deposits of approximately $2.1 million and

$500000 in additional consideration The Company engaged in this transaction in the expectation that it would realize

increased profits through increasing its investment securities loans and deposits within new market area In total the

Bank maintains 21 full service offices and one loan production office in Northwest Indiana and Southwest Michigan At

December 31 2010 the Bank had total assets of $1.4 billion and total deposits of $985.5 million The Bank has three

wholly-owned subsidiaries Horizon Investments Inc Horizon Investments Horizon Insurance Services Inc

Horizon Insurance and Horizon Grantor Trust Horizon Investments manages the investment portfolio of the Bank

Horizon Insurance offered full line of personal and corporate insurance products until March 2005 at which time the

majority of its assets were sold to third party Horizon Grantor Trust holds title to certain company owned life insurance

policies

Horizon formed Horizon Bancorp Capital Trust II in 2004 Trust II and Horizon Bancorp Capital Trust III in 2006

Trust III for the purpose of participating in pooled trust preferred securities offerings The Company assumed

additional debentures as the result of the acquisition of Alliance Financial Corporation in 2005 which formed Alliance

Financial Statutory Trust Alliance Trust The Company also assumed additional debentures as the result of the

American transaction which formed Am Tru Statutory Trust Am Tru Trust See Note 12 of the Consolidated Financial

Statements for further discussion regarding these previously consolidated entities that are now reported separately
The

business of Horion is not seasonal to any material degree

No material part of F-lorions business is dependent upon single or small group of customers the loss of any one or

more of whom would have materially adverse effect on the business of Horizon In 2010 revenues from loans

accounted for 62A of the total consolidated revenue and revenues from investment securities accounted for 16% of total

consolidated revenue

Employees

The Bank Horizon Trust and Horizon Investments employed approximately 312 full and part-time employees as of

December 31 2010 Horizon Insurance and Horizon Grantor Trust do not have any employees

Competition

high degree of competition exists in all major areas where Horizon engages in business The Banks primary market

consists of Porter aPorte St Joseph Elkhart and Lake Counties Indiana and Berrien and Kalamazoo Counties

Michigan The Bank competes with other commercial banks as well as with savings and loan associations consumer
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finance companies and credit unions To more moderate extent the Bank competes with Chicago money center banks

mortgage banking companies insurance companies brokerage houses other institutions engaged in money market

financial services and certain government agencies

Based on deposits as of June 30 2010 Horizon was the largest of the 10 bank and thrift institutions in LaPorte County
with 32.92% market share and the sixth largest of the 14 institutions in Porter County with 10.53% market share In

Berrien County Michigan Horizon was the fourth largest of the 10 bank and thrift institutions with 7.28% market share

Horizons market share of deposits in Lake County Indiana wasjust over 1% at 1.48% and less than 1% in each of the

counties of St Joseph and Elkhart Counties in Indiana and Kalamazoo County in Michigan Source FDIC Summary of

Deposits Market Share Reports available at www.fdic.gov

Th Bank Holding Company Act

Horizon is registered as bank holding company and is subject to the supervision of and regulation by the Board of

Governors of the Federal Reserve System Federal Reserve under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended
BHC Act Federal Reserve Board policy has historically required bank holding companies to act as source of financial

and management strength for their subsidiary banks The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act

the Dodd-F rank Act which was signed into law on July 21 2010 codified this policy Under this requirement
Horizon is required to act as source of financial strength to the Bank and to commit resources to support the Bank in

circumstances in which Horizon might not otherwise do so For this purpose source of financial strength means

Horizons ability to provide financial assistance to the Bank in the event of the Banks financial distress

he BHC Act requires the prior approval of the Federal Reserve to acquire more than 5%
voting interest of any bank or

bank holding company Additionally the BHC Act restricts Horizons non-banking activities to those which are

determined by the Federal Reserve to be so closely related to banking and proper incident thereto

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 the FDICIA bank holding company is

required to guarantee the compliance of any insured depository institution subsidiary that may become undercapitalized

as defined in DICIA with the terms of any capital restoration plan filed by such subsidiary with its appropriate federal

hank regulatory agency

Bank
holding companies are required to comply with the Federal Reserves risk-based capital guidelines The Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation the FDIC and the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency the 0CC also have

risk-based capital ratio guidelines to which depository institutions under their respective supervision are subject The

guidelines establish systematic analytical framework that makes regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to

differences in risk profiles among banking organizations Risk-based capital ratios are determined by allocating assets and

specified off-balance sheet commitments to four risk weighted categories with higher levels of capital being required for

the categories perceived as representing greater risk For Horizons regulatory capital ratios and regulatory requirements as

of December 31 2010 see the information in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results

of Operation in tern below which is incorporated herein by reference

National Bank Act

Bank is subject to the provisions of the National Bank Act ii supervised regulated and examined by the 0CC
and iii subject to the rules and regulations of the 0CC Federal Reserve and the FDIC

D.posit Insurance

The Banks deposits are insured to applicable limits by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC which is

generally $250000 per depositor subject to aggregation rules In response to FDICs increased costs resulting from the

higher levels of bank failures that began in 2008 the Banks FDIC expense has increased significantly In addition to higher

assessment rates the Bank was required to pay special FDIC assessment as of June 30 2009 and also paid an assessment

to participate in the FDIC Transaction Account Guarantee Program as discussed below
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The Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005 the Reform Act resulted in significant changes to the federal

deposit insurance program Effective March 31 2006 the Bank Insurance Fund IF and the Savings Association

Insurance Fund SAIF were merged to create new fund called the Deposit Insurance Fund DIF

The Bank is subject to deposit insurance assessment by the FDIC which is risk-related deposit insurance assessment

system where premiums are based upon the institutions capital levels and risk profile Under this system insured

institutions are assigned to one of four risk-weighted categories based on supervisory evaluations regulatory capital levels

and certain other factors with less risky institutions paying lower assessments

An institutions initial assessment rate depends upon the category to which it is assigned Adjustments also are made to

banks initial assessment rates based on levels of long-term unsecured debt secured liabilities in excess of 252% of

domestic deposits and for certain institutions brokered deposit levels For 2010 initial assessments ranged from 12 to 45

basis points of assessable deposits and the Bank paid assessments at the rate of 15 basis points for each $100 of insured

deposits

In November 2009 the FDIC issued final rule that required banks to pay the fourth quarter
FDIC assessment and to

prepay estimated insurance assessments for the years
2010 through 2012 On December 30 2009 the Bank paid an

aggregate of $5.3 million in premiums $5.0 million of which constituted prepaid premiums

Under the Dodd-Frank Act the FDIC is authorized to set the reserve ratio for the Deposit Insurance Fund at no less than

135% and must achieve the 1.35% designated reserve ratio by September 30 2020 The FDIC must offset the effect of

the increase in the minimum designated reserve ratio from 1.15% to 1.35% on insured depository institutions of less than

$10 billion and may declare dividends to depository institutions when the reserve ratio at the end of calendar quarter is at

least 1.5% although the FDIC has the authority to suspend or limit such permitted dividend declarations In December

2010 the FDIC adopted final rule setting the designated reserve ratio for the deposit insurance fund at 2% of estimated

insured deposits

On October 19 2010 the FDIC proposed comprehensive long-range plan for deposit insurance fund management with

the goals of maintaining positive fund balance even during periods of large fund losses and maintaining steady

predictable assessment rates throughout economic and credit cycles The FDIC determined not to increase assessments in

2011 by basis points as previously proposed but to keep the current rate schedule in effect In addition the FDIC

proposed adopting lower assessment rate schedule when the designated reserve ratio reaches 1.15% sO that the average

rate over time should be about 8.5 basis points In lieu of dividends the FDIC proposed adopting lower rate schedules

when the reserve ratio reaches 2% and 2.5% so that the average rates will decline about 25 percent and 50 percent

respectively

Under the Dodd-Frank Act the assessment base for deposit insurance premiums is to be changed from adjusted domestic

deposits to average consolidated total assets minus average tangible equity Tangible equity for this purpose means Tier

capital Since this is larger base than adjusted domestic deposits assessment rates are expected to be lowered In February

2011 the FDIC approved new rule effective April 2011 to be reflected in invoices for assessments due September 30

2011 which will implement these changes The proposed rule includes new rate schedules scaled to the increase in the

assessment base including schedules that will go into effect when the reserve ratio reaches 1.15% 2% and 2.5% The

FDIC staff projected that the new rate schedules would be approximately revenue neutral

Effective April 2011 the initial base assessment rates are as follows

For small Risk Category banks such as Horiion the rates would range from 5-9 basis points

The rates for small institutions in Risk Categories II III and IV would be 14 23 and 35 basis points respectively

For large institutions and large highly complex institutions the rate schedule ranges from to 35 basis points

There are also adjustments made to the initial assessment rates based on long-term unsecured debt depository institution

debt and brokered deposits
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he DIC also revised the assessment system for large depository institutions with over $10 billion in assets

In 2008 the DIC adopted an optional Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program by which for fee noninterest bearing

transaction accounts would receive unlimited insurance coverage until June 30 2010 later extended to December 31 2010
and for fee certain senior unsecured debt issued by institutions and their holding companies between October 13 2008

and October 31 2009 would be guaranteed by the FDIC through December 31 2012 The Bank made the business

decision to participate in the unlimited noninterest bearing transaction account coverage but Horiion and the Bank elected

not to participate in the unsecured debt guarantee program The assessments for unlimited noninterest bearing transaction

account coverage for deposit amounts over $250000 were 15 basis points per $100 of insured deposits during 2010

The Dodd-Frank Act extended unlimited insurance on noninterest bearing accounts for no additional charges through
December 31 2012 Under this program traditional noninterest demand deposit or checking accounts that allow for an

unlimited number of transfers and withdrawals at any time whether held for business individual or other type of

depositor are covered Later Congress added Lawyers Trust Accounts IOLTA to this unlimited insurance protection

through December 31 2012

The F- DIC may terminate the deposit insurance of any insured depository institution if the FDIC determines after

hearing that the institution has engaged or is engaging in unsafe or unsound practices is in an unsafe and unsound

condition to continue operations or has violated any applicable law regulation order or any condition imposed in writing

by or written agreement with the FDIC The FDIC may also suspend deposit insurance temporarily during the hearing

process or permanent termination of insurance if the institution has no tangible capital

DIC-irisured institutions also remain subject to the requirement to pay assessments to the FDIC to fund interest

payments on bonds issued by the Financing Corporation FICO an agency of the Federal government established to

recapitaliie the predecessor to the SAlE The amount assessed on individual institutions including the Bank by FICO is in

addition to the amount paid for deposit insurance according to the risk-related assessment rate schedule These

assessments will continue until the FICO bonds are repaid between 2017 and 2019 During 2010 the FICO assessment

rate ranged between 1.06 and 1.04 basis points for each $100 of insured deposits per quarter For the first quarter of 2011
the FICO assessment rate is 1.02 basis points for each $100 in domestic deposits maintained at an institution

G.n.rai R.gulatory Sup.rvision

Both federal and state law extensively regulate various aspects of the banking business such as reserve requirements truth-

in-lending and truth-in-savings disclosures equal credit opportunity fair credit reporting trading in securities and other

aspects of banking operations Branching by the Bank is subject to the jurisdiction and requires notice to or the prior

approval of the 0CC The Dodd-Frank Act permits the establishment of de novo branches in states where such branches

could be opened by state bank chartered by that state The consent of the state is no longer required

Tran%actions with Affiliat.s and Insiders

Horiion and the Bank are subject to the Federal Reserve Act which restricts financial transactions between banks

affiliated companies and their executive officers including limits on credit transactions between these parties The statute

prescribes terms and conditions for bank affiliate transactions deemed to be consistent with safe and sound banking

practices and restricts the types of collateral security permitted in connection with banks extension of credit to an

affiliate

ffective July 21 2011 among other changes the Dodd-Frank Act will eliminate the exceptions under Section 23A of the

ederal Reserve Act for transactions with financial subsidiaries and will expand the scope of transactions treated as

covered transactions to include derivatives transactions and securities repurchase agreements The Dodd-Frank Act also

expands the types of transactions subject to insider lending limits

Capital Regulation

he federal bank regulatory authorities have adopted risk-based capital guidelines for banks and bank holding companies
that are designed to make regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to differences in risk profiles among banks and

hank holding companies and account for off-balance sheet items Risk-based capital ratios are determined by allocating
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assets and specified off-balance sheet commitments to four risk weighted categories of 0% 20% 50% or 100% with

higher levels of capital being required for the categories perceived as representing greater risk

The capital guidelines divide bank holding companys or banks capital into two tiers The first tier Tier includes

common equity certain non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock and minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated

subsidiaries less goodwill and certain other intangible assets except mortgage servicing rights
and purchased credit card

relationships subject to certain limitations Supplementary capital Tier II includes among other items cumulative

perpetual and long-term limited-life preferred stock mandatory convertible securities certain hybrid capital instruments

term subordinated debt and the allowance for loan and lease losses subject to certain limitations less required deductions

Banks and bank holding companies are required to maintain total risk-based capital ratio of at least 8% of which 4%

must be Tier capital The federal banking regulators may however set higher capital requirements when banks

particular circumstances warrant Banks experiencing or anticipating significant growth are expected to maintain capital

ratios including tangible capital positions well above the minimum levels

Also required by the regulations is the maintenance of leverage ratio designed to supplement the risk-based capital

guidelines This ratio is computed by dividing Tier capital net of all intangibles by the quarterly average of total assets

The minimum leverage ratio is 3% for the most highly rated institutions and 1% to 2% higher for institutions not meeting

those standards Pursuant to the regulations banks must maintain capital levels commensurate with the level of risk

including the volume and severity of problem loans to which they are exposed

In December 2008 the Company received $25000000 in exchange for 25000 shares of its Fixed Rate Cumulative

Preferred Stock Series issued to the Treasury Department and related warrants Of that amount $20000000 was

contributed to the Bank As result the Companys and the Banks regulatory capital have increased significantly from the

capital reported
in prior periods On November 2010 the Company received approval to redeem 25% or $6.25 million

of the Treasurys original $25.0 million preferred stock investment in the Company from the Capital Purchase Program

which is program of the Troubled Assets Relief Program TARP On November 10 2010 the Company completed

the redemption process reducing the Treasurys preferred stock investment in the Company to $18.75 million
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The following is summary of Horizons and the Banks regulatory capital and capital requirements at December 31 2010

For Capital For Well

Actual Adequacy Purposes Capitalized Purposes

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31 2010

Total capital1 to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated 144941 15.07% 76943 8.00% N/A N/A

Bank 133893 13.96% 76730 8.00% 95912 10.00%

Tier capital1 to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated 132860 13.81% 38482 4.00% N/A N/A

Bank 121812 12.70% 38366 4.00% 57549 6.00%

Tier capital1 to average assets

Consolidated 132860 9.37% 56717 4.00% N/A N/A

Bank 121812 8.60% 56657 4.00% 70821 5.00%

As defined by regulatory agencies

The Dodd-Frank Act also requires the Federal Reserve to set minimum capital levels for bank holding companies that are

as stringent as those required for insured depository subsidiaries except that bank holding companies with less than $500

million in assets are exempt from these capital requirements

Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action

Federal law provides the federal banking regulators with broad powers to take prompt corrective action to resolve the

problems of undercapitalized institutions The extent of the regulators powers depends on whether the institution in

question is well capitalized adequately capitalized undercapitalized significantly undercapitalized or critically

undercapitalized as defined by regulation Depending upon the capital category to which an institution is assigned the

regulators corrective powers include requiring the submission of capital restoration plan ii placing limits on asset

growth and restrictions on activities iii requiring the institution to issue additional capital stock including additional

voting stock or to be acquired iv restricting transactions with affiliates restricting
the interest rate the institution may

pay on deposits vi ordering new election of directors of the institution vii requiring that senior executive officers or

directors be dismissed viii prohibiting the institution from accepting deposits from correspondent banks ix requiring

the institution to divest certain subsidiaries prohibiting the payment of principal or interest on subordinated debt and

xi ultimately appointing receiver for the institution At December 31 2010 the Bank was categorized as well

capitalized meaning that the Banks total risk-based capital ratio exceeded 10% the Banks Tier risk-based capital ratio

exceeded 6% the Banks leverage ratio exceeded 5% and the Bank was not subject to regulatory order agreement or

directive to meet and maintain specific capital level for any capital measure

Anti-Money Laundering and the USA Patriot Act

Horizon is subject to the provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act of 2001 which contains anti-money laundering and

financial transparency laws and requires financial institutions to implement additional policies and procedures with respect

to or additional measures designed to address any or all of the following matters among others money laundering

suspicious activities and currency transaction reporting and currency crimes

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Horizon also is subject to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 the Sarbanes-Oxley Act which revised the laws affecting

corporate governance accounting obligations and corporate reporting The Sarbanes-Oxley Act applies to all companies

with equity or debt securities registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 In particular the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

established new requirements for audit committees including independence expertise and responsibilities ii additional

responsibilities regarding
financial statements for the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the reporting

company iii new standards for auditors and regulation of audits iv increased discosure and reporting obligations for

the reporting company and their directors and executive officers and new and increased civil and criminal penalties for
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violation of the securities laws Management expects that significant additional efforts and expense will continue to be

required to comply with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

The Securities and Exchange Commission has adopted final rules implementing Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 In each Form 10-K it files Horizon is required to include report of management on Horizons internal control over

financial reporting The internal control report must include statement of managements responsibility for establishing

and maintaining adequate control over financial reporting of Horizon identify the framework used by management to

evaluate the effectiveness of Horizons internal control over financial reporting and provide managements assessment of

the effectiveness of Horizons internal control over financial reporting Significant efforts were required to comply with

Section 404 and Horizon anticipates additional efforts will be required in future years

Recent Legislative Developments

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 and Troubled Asset Relief Programs Capital Purchase Program

In response to the financial crises affecting the banking system and financial markets and going concern threats to

investment banks and other financial institutions on October 2008 the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008

the EESA was signed into law Pursuant to the EESA the U.S Department of Treasury the Treasury has the

authority to among other things purchase up to $700 billion of mortgages mortgage-backed securities and certain other

financial instruments from financial institutions for the purpose of stabilizing and providing liquidity to the U.S financial

markets On October 14 2008 the Treasury also announced it would offer to qualifying U.S banking organizations the

opportunity to sell preferred stock along with warrants to purchase common stock to the Treasury on what may be

considered attractive terms under the Troubled Asset Relief Program TARP Capital Purchase Program the CPP
The CPP allows financial institutions like Horizon to issue non-voting preferred stock to the Treasury in an amount

ranging between 1% and 3% of the institutions total risk-weighted assets

Although both Horizon and the Bank met all applicable regulatory capital requirements and were well capitalized Horizon

determined that obtaining additional capital pursuant to the CPP for contribution in whole or in part to the Bank was

advisable given the then current economic recession and the benefits the additional capital provides in managing through

an economic recession As result Horizon decided to participate in the CPP Program and sold $25000000 of its Fixed

Rate Cumulative Preferred Stock Series to the Treasury on December 19 200

The general terms of the preferred stock issued by Horizon under the CPP are as follows

Dividends at the rate of 5% per annum payable quarterly in arrears are required to be paid on the preferred stock

for the first five years and dividends at the rate of 9% per annum are required thereafter until the stock is

redeemed by Horizon

Without the prior consent of the Treasury Horizon will be prohibited from increasing its common stock

dividends or repurchasing its common stock for the first three
years

while Treasury is an investor

During the first three years the preferred stock is outstanding Horizon will be prohibited from repurchasing such

preferred stock except with the proceeds from sale of Tier qualifying common or other preferred stock of

Horizon in an offering that raises at least 25% of the initial offering price of the preferred stock sold to the

Treasury $6250000 After the first three years the preferred stock can be redeemed at any time with any

available cash

Under the CPP Horizon also issued to the Treasury warrants entitling the Treasury to buy 212104 shares of

Horizons common stock at an exercise price of $1.68 per share and

Horizon agreed to certain compensation restrictions for its senior executive officers and restrictions on the

amount of executive compensation which is tax deductible

On February 2009 President Obama signed into law the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 the

ARRA The ARRA amended among other things the TARP Program legislation by directing the Treasury Department

to issue regulations implementing strict limitations on compensation paid or accrued by financial institutions like Horizon

participating in the TARP Program These limitations include
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prohibition on paying or accruing bonus incentive or retention compensation for our President and Chief

xecutive Officer other than certain awards of long-term restricted stock or bonuses payable under existing

employment agreements

prohibition on making any payments to the executive officers of Horizon and the next five most highly

compensated employees for departure from Horizon other than compensation earned for services rendered or

accrued benefits

Subjecting bonus incentive and retention payments made to the executive officers of Horizon and the next 20

most highly compensated employees to repayment clawback if based on statements of earnings revenues gains

or other criteria that are later found to be materially inaccurate

prohibition on any compensation plan that would encourage manipulation of reported earnings

stablishment by the Board of Directors of company-wide policy regarding excessive or luxury expenditures

Including office and facility renovations aviation or other transportation services and other activities or events that

are not reasonable expenditures for staff development reasonable performance incentives or similar measures in

the ordinary course of business

Submitting say-on-pay proposal to non-biding vote of shareholders at future annual meetings whereby
shareholders vote to approve the compensation of executives as disclosed pursuant to the executive compensation
disclosures included in the proxy statement and

review by the U.S Department of Treasury of any bonus retention awards or other compensation paid to the

executive officers of Horizon and the next 20 most highly compensated employees prior to February 17 2009 to

determine if such payments were excessive and negotiate for the reimbursement of such excess payments

On June 10 2009 Treasury issued an interim final rule implementing and providing guidance on the executive

compensation and corporate governance provisions of EESA as amended by ARRA The regulations were published in

the ederal Register on June 15 2009 and set forth the following requirements

valuation of employee compensation plans and potential to encourage excessive risk or manipulation of earnings

Compensation committee discussion evaluation and review of senior executive officer compensation plans and

other employee compensation plans to ensure that they do not encourage unnecessary and excessive risk

Compensation committee discussion evaluation and review of employee compensation plans to ensure that they

do not encourage manipulation of reported earnings

Compensation committee certification and disclosure requirements regarding evaluation of employee

compensation plans

Clawback of bonuses

Prohibition on golden parachute payments based on materially inaccurate financial statements or performance

metrics

imitation on bonus payments retention awards and incentive compensation

Iisclosure regarding perquisites and compensation consultants prohibition on gross-ups

uxury or excessive expenditures policy

Shareholder
advisory resolution on executive compensation

Annual compliance certification by principal executive officer and principal financial officer

stablishment of the Office of the Special Master for TARP Executive Compensation with authority to review

certain payments and compensation structures

On October 22 2009 the Federal Reserve issued proposed supervisory guidance designed to ensure that incentive

compensation practices of banking organizations are consistent with safety and soundness Uncertainty exists regarding

the interpretation and application of this guidance and the impact of the guidance on recruitment retention and

motivation of key officers and employees

ARRA was followed by numerous actions by the Federal Reserve Congress Treasury the SEC and others to address the

current liquidity and credit crisis that has followed the sub-prime meltdown that commenced in 2007 These measures

include homeowner relief that encourage loan
restructuring and modification the establishment of significant liquidity and

credit facilities for financial institutions and investment banks the lowering of the federal funds rate emergency action

10
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against
short selling practices temporary guaranty program for money market funds the establishment of commercial

paper funding facility to provide back-stop liquidity to commercial paper issuers coordinated international efforts to

address illiquidity and other weaknesses in the banking sector and legislation that would require creditors that transfer

loans and securitizations of loans to maintain material portion generally at least 10% of the credit risk of the loans

transferred or securitized

On November 10 2010 Horizon repurchased 6250 of the 25000 outstanding Series Preferred Shares held by the

Treasury Horizon paid $6.25 million to repurchase the preferred shares along with the accrued dividend for the shares

repurchased Horizon has also applied for $19 million loan under the recently implemented Small Business Loan Fund

program the SBLF and if its application is approved Horizon plans to repurchase the remaining $18.5 million in Series

Preferred Shares from the Treasury with those proceeds Enacted into law as part of the Small Business Jobs Act of

2010 the SBLF is $30 billion fund that encourages lending to small businesses by providing Tier capital to qualified

community banks with assets of less than $10 billion The SBLF program provides an option for community banks to

refinance preferred stock issued to the Treasury through the Capital Purchase Program and the SBLF program does not

impose many of the restrictions that Horizon is currently subject to under TARP There can be no assurance however

that Horizon will receive the SBLF funds and if Horizon does not receive the funds Horizons plan is to repurchase the

remaining preferred shares over the next three years from earnings

Other Regulation

In addition to the matters discussed above the Bank is subject to additional regulation of its activities including variety of

consumer protection regulations affecting its lending deposit and collection activities and regulations affecting secondary

mortgage market activities

Effect of Governmental Monetary Policies

The Banks earnings are affected by domestic economic conditions and the monetary and fiscal policies of the United

States government and its agencies The Federal Reserves monetary policies have had and are likely to continue to have

an important impact on the operating
results of commercial banks through its power to implement national monetary

policy in order among other things to curb inflation or combat recession The monetary policies of the Federal Reserve

have major effects upon the levels of bank loans investments and deposits through its open market operations in United

States government securities and through its regulation of the discount rate on borrowings of member banks and the

reserve requirements against member bank deposits It is not possible to predict the nature or impact of future changes in

monetary and fiscal policies

Federal Home Loan Bank System

The Bank is member of the FHLB of Indianapolis which is one of twelve regional
FHLBs Each FHLB serves as

reserve or central bank for its members within its assigned region The FHLB is funded primarily from funds deposited by

banks and savings associations and proceeds derived from the sale of consolidated obligations of the FHLB system It

makes loans to members i.e advances in accordance with policies and procedures established by the Board of Directors

of the FHLB All FHLB advances must be fully secured by sufficient collateral as determined by the FHLB The Federal

Housing Finance Board FHFB an independent agency controls the FHLB System including the FHLB of

Indianapolis

As member of the FHLB the Bank is required to purchase and maintain stock in the FHLB of Indianapolis in an amount

equal to at least 1% of its aggregate unpaid residential mortgage loans home purchase contracts or similar obligations at

the beginning of each year At December 31 2010 the Banks investment in stock of the FHLB of Indianapolis was $11.4

million The FHLB imposes various limitations on advances such as limiting the amount of certain types of real estate

related collateral to 30% of members capital and limiting total advances to member Interest rates charged for

advances vary depending upon maturity the cost of funds to the FHLB of Indianapolis and the purpose of the borrowing

The FHLBs are required to provide funds for the resolution of troubled savings associations and to contribute to

affordable housing programs through direct loans or interest subsidies on advances targeted for community investment

and low and moderate income housing projects For the year
ended December 31 2010 dividends paid by the FHLB of

Indianapolis to the Bank totaled approximately $214000 for an annualized rate of 1.9%

11
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Limitations on Rates Paid for Deposits

FDIC regulations place limitations on the interest rates that less than well-capitalized insured depository institutions may
pay on deposits Under these regulations well capitalized depository institutions may accept renew or roll such deposits

over without restriction adequately capitalized depository institutions may accept renew or roll such deposits over with

waiver from the FDIC subject to certain restrictions on payments of rates and undercapitalized depository institutions

may not accept renew or roll such deposits over The regulations contemplate that the definitions of well capitalized

adequately capitalized and undercapitalized will be the same as the definition adopted by the agencies to implement the

corrective action provisions of federal law Management does not believe that these regulations will have materially
adverse effect on the Banks current operations

Legislative Initiatives

Additional legislative and administrative actions affecting the banking industry may be considered by the United States

Congress state legislatures and various regulatory agencies including those referred to above It cannot be predicted with

certainty whether such legislative or administrative action will be enacted or the extent to which the banking industry in

general or Horizon and its affiliates will be affected

Recent Legislative Developments

On July 21 2010 President Obama signed into law the Dodd-Frank Act which significantly changes the regulation of

financial institutions and the financial services industry The Dodd-Frank Act includes provisions affecting large and small

financial institutions alike including several provisions that will profoundly affect how community banks thrifts and small

hank and thrift holding companies will be regulated in the future Among other things these provisions abolish the Office

of hrift Supervision and transfer its functions to the other federal banking agencies relax rules regarding interstate

branching allow financial institutions to pay interest on business checking accounts change the scope of federal deposit

insurance coverage and impose new capital requirements on bank and thrift holding companies

rhe Iodd-I rank Act also establishes the Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection as an independent entity within the

ederal Reserve which will be given the authority to promulgate consumer protection regulations applicable to all entities

offering consumer financial services or products including banks Additionally the Dodd-Frank Act includes series of

provisions covering mortgage loan origination standards affecting among other things originator compensation minimum

repayment standards and pie-payments The Dodd-Frank Act contains numerous other provisions affecting financial

institutions of all types many of which may have an impact on the operating environment of Horizon in substantial and

unpredictable ways The nature and extent of future legislative and regulatory changes affecting financial institutions

Including as result of the Dodd-Frank Act is very unpredictable at this time

Iorions management is actively reviewing the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act and assessing its probable impact on

the business financial condition and results of operations of Horizon The ultimate effect of the Dodd-Frank Act on the

financial services industry in general and Horizon in particular is uncertain at this time Many aspects of the Dodd-Frank

Act are subject to rulemaking and will take effect over several years making it difficult to anticipate the overall financial

impact on Forizon and the financial services industry more generally Provisions in the legislation that affect deposit

insurance assessments and payment of interest on demand deposits could increase the costs associated with deposits

Consumer Financial Protection Bureau

he Iodd-F rank Act creates new independent federal agency called the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau

CF PB which is granted broad rulemaking supervisory and enforcement powers under various federal consumer

financial protection laws including the Equal Credit Opportunity Act Truth in Lending Act Real Estate Settlement

Procedures Act air Credit Reporting Act Fair Debt Collection Act the Consumer Financial Privacy provisions of the

each-Bliley Act and certain other statutes The CFPB will have examination and primary enforcement authority

with respect to depository institutions with $10 billion or more in assets Smaller institutions will be subject to rules

promulgated by the CFPB but will continue to be examined and supervised by federal banking regulators for consumer

compliance purposes The CFPB will have authority to prevent unfair deceptive or abusive practices in connection with

12



HORIZON BANCORP
able dollars in thousands except per share data

the offering of consumer financial products The Dodd-Frank Act authorizes the CFPB to establish certain minimum

standards for the origination of residential mortgages including
determination of the borrowers ability to repay In

addition the Dodd-Frank Act will allow borrowers to raise certain defenses to foreclosure if they receive any loan other

than qualified mortgage as defined by the CFPB The Dodd-Frank Act permits states to adopt consumer protection

laws and standards that are more stringent than those adopted at the federal level and in certain circumstances permits

state attorneys general to enforce compliance with both the state and federal laws and regulations Federal preemption of

state consumer protection law requirements traditionally an attribute of the federal savings association charter has also

been modified by the Dodd-Frank Act and now requires case-by-case determination of preemption by the 0CC and

eliminates preemption for subsidiaries of bank Depending on the implementation of this revised federal preemption

standard the operations of the Bank could become subject to additional compliance burdens in the states in which it

operates

Mortgage Reform and Anti-Predatory Lending

Title XIV of the Dodd-Frank Act the Mortgage Reform and Anti-Predatory Lending Act Includes series of amendments

to the Truth In Lending Act with respect to mortgage loan origination standards affecting among other things originator

compensation minimum repayment standards and pre-payments With respect to mortgage loan originator compensation

except in limited circumstances an originator is prohibited from receiving compensation that varies based on the terms of

the loan other than the principal amount The amendments to the Truth In Lending Act also prohibit creditor from

making residential mortgage loan unless it determines based on verified and documented information of the consumers

financial resources that the consumer has reasonable ability to repay
the loan The amendments also prohibit certain pre

payment penalties and require creditors offering consumer mortgage loan with pre-payment penalty to offer the

consumer the option of mortgage loan without such penalty
In addition the Dodd-Frank Act expands the definition of

high-cost mortgage under the Truth In Lending Act and imposes new requirements on high-cost mortgages and new

disclosure reporting and notice requirements for residential mortgage loans as well as new requirements with respect to

escrows and appraisal practices

Interchange Fees for Debit Cards

Under the Dodd-Frank Act interchange fees for debit card transactions must be reasonable and proportional to the

issuers incremental cost incurred with respect to the transaction plus certain fraud related costs Although institutions with

total assets of less than $10 billion are exempt from this requirement competitive pressures are likely to require smaller

depository institutions like Horizon to reduce fees with respect to these debit card transactions

13
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BANK HOLDING COMPANY STATISTICAL DISCLOSURES

DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY INTEREST RATES
AND INTEREST DIFFERENTIAL

Information required by this section of Securities Act Industry Guide is presented in Managements Discussion and
Analysis as set forth in Item below herein incorporated by reference

II INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

the following is schedule of the amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available for sale and held to

maturity

Availabt for saI

u.S
reasirry

and tederal agencies

State anti munici
pal

ederal agency collateralied mtg obligations

ederal agency rnortgagehacked pools

Private labeled rnotgage-backed pools

Corporate notes

Total availabi for sal

otal held to rnatljr ity state arid municipal

Total inv.sm.nt sscuritis

D.c.mb.r 31 2010

Amortiz.d Fair

Cost Valu

D.c.mb.r 31 2009

Amortiz.d Fair

Cost Valu

D.c.mb.r 31 2009

Amortiz.d Fair

Cost Valu

.oI late ailed rtiiq iitliqai
ions

ederal agency rrxxrga backed pools

Cot
lxx ate 0011

Total .vaiIabl tot sal

On Y.ar or L.ss

Amount Ve.ld

0.00%

866 58%

0.00%

558 4.10%

____________
0.00%

1.424 3.18%

Aft.r On Ysar

Through Fl. Ysari

Amount Ye.4d

10972 2.89%

17977 3.55%

0.00%

1900 4.11%

____________
0.00%

30.849 35%

Aft.r Fly

Through T.n Y..rs

Amount Yl.ld

4894 2.63%

39555 399%

11211 447K

21238 3.96%

__________
000%

16.898 96%

Altar Tin Ysars

Amount Yi.Id

9385 5.65%

13091 20%

95949 3.76%

94199 4.42%

549 00X

273173 4.16%

24727 25251 19612 20085 23661 24914

132380 131489 107160 109149 88282 86985

100106 101831 76222 77289 8102 8925

114390 117895 113633 118661 174227 176389

5191 5323 7779 7606 4361 4026

555 549 355 342 587 399

377355 382344 324761 333132 299820 301638

9595 9595 11651 11687 1630 1634

386950 391939 336418 344819 301450 303272

he following is schedule of maturities of each category of available for sale and held to maturity debt securities

and the related weighted-average yield of such securities as of December 31 2010

Availably for sal

rrasiiry rrvl lerliral Iqfrx
1111

iTiiJrllclldl

cAal liilcl to riatur try stall and municipal 9495 2.65% 100 3.35% 00% 000%

Total unv.stm.nt s.cunts.s 10919 2.72X 30949 3.35K 76898 3.96% 273173 16%

ii value is liaad Ott corrtr actual maturity or call date where call Option exists

Maitir ny based LitXfi Ii nal maturity date

he weighted-average interest rates are based on coupon rates for securities purchased at par value and on effective

interest rates considering amortization or accretion if the securities were purchased at premium or discount Yields

are not presented on tax-equivalent basis

xcluding those holdings of the investment portfolio in Treasury securities and other agencies and corporations of

the u.S Government there were no investments in securities of any one issuer that exceeded 10% of the

consolidated stockholders
equity of Horizon at December 31 2010
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Types of Loans Total loans on the balance sheet are comprised of the following classifications for the years

indicated

Commercial

Real etate

Mortgage warehouse

ConsAl mer

Allowance for loan losses

Total loans

D.o.n.r 31 D..nib.r 31

2010 2009

Maturities and Sensitivities of Loans to Changes in Interest Rates The following is schedule of maturities

and sensitivities of loans to changes in interest rates excluding real estate mortgage mortgage warehousing and

installment loans as of December 31 2010

Maturing or repricing

Commercial financial agricultural and

commercial tax-exempt loans

Total commercial financial agricultural and

commercial tax-exempt loans due after one

69729 43036

D.osnibor 31 D.c.mbsr 31 D.c.nib.r 31

2008 2007 2006

330018 314517 310842 307535 211457

162435 133892 167766 216019 222235

123743 166698 123287 78225 112267

266681 271210 280072 287013 237875

882871 886317 881967 888852 843834

19064 16015 11410 9791 8738

863813 870302 870551 879061 835096

On V.a On Through Afta Fly

or L.ss Fly V.ars V.ars

259109 60694

Total

9614 330011

The following is schedule of fixed-rate and variable-rate commercial financial agricultural and commercial tax-

exempt loans due after one year Variable-rate loans are those loans with floating or adjustable interest rates

Fix.d Variabi

Rat Rat

year
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Non-accrual Past Dii and R.svuctur.d Loans The following schedule summarizes non-accrual past due and

restructured loans

Non-purforming loans

Commercial

More than 90 nays past due

Non accrual

rutihie debt rest uctur rig accruing

rotihie debt
restructuring non -accrual

Real state

More than 90 days past due

Non accrual

rr.ruhle debt restructtjr mg accniiriq

ruuhle debt restructuring non-accrual

Mortgage warehouse

More than 90 days past due

Norr accrual

ruijbl debt rest iictmir rig accruing

Ic uuble debt rest uctut
rig non accrual

uflsmJrrwr

Vloc thai 90 days past due

Non accrnial

rouhie debt estr uctur
rig accruing

Jr nimble debt
restructuring non accrual

Total non-porformlng loans

Oth.r r.al sstat ownsd and rsposs.s.d

collatoral

Crrnrrwrcmai

Real stat

Mortgage waretuxise

ii smjrrrin

Total othsr rs.l .stat own.d and

r.poa...s.d cdlatal

Total non-p.rforming ts

222

5.483

3380

241

136

3.682

165

37

21 428

1086

8143

1437

693

Interest income not recognized during the period on non-accrual

loans outstanding as of December 31 2010 744

Discussion of Non-Accrual Policy

From time to time the Bank obtains information which may lead management to believe that the collection of

payments may be doubtful on particular loan In recognition of such it is managements policy to convert the

loan from an earning asset to non-accruing loan Further it is managements policy to place commercial loan

on non-accrual status when delinquent in excess of 90 days or have had the accrual of interest discontinued by

D.osmb.r 31 D.o.mb.r 31 D.osnib.r 31 D.o.nbsr 31 D.o.mb.r 31

2010 2005 ZOOS 2001 2100

1508

574

49$
5118 1870 1768

464 89

1440 512 614

87 55

480 99

296

125

3266

376

2515

206

17145

318

474

7863 2949 2625

1622 544

1042 1186 2772 238 75

23 201 303 120

2664 1753 2979 541 195

24092 18898 10842 3490 2820

Gross interest Income that would have been recorded on non-accrual

loans outstanding as of December 31 2010 in the period if the loans

had been current in accordance with their original terms and had

been outstanding throughout the period or since origination if held

for part of the period

Interest Income actually recorded on non-accrual loans outstanding

as of December 31 2010 and included in net income for the period
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management The officer responsible for the loan the Chief Operating Officer and the senior collection officer

must review all loans placed on non-accrual status

Potential Problem Loans

Impaired and non-accrual loans for which the discounted cash flows or collateral value exceeded the carrying value

of the loan totaled $21.4 million and $17.1 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 The allowance for impaired

and non-accrual loans included in the Banks allowance for loan losses totaled $3.4 million and $3.5 million at

those respective dates The average balance of impaired loans during 2010 and 2009 was $8.1 million and $14.3

million

Foreign Outstandings

None

Loan Concentrations

As of December 31 2010 there are no significant concentrations of loans exceeding 10% of total loans See Item

III above for listing of the types
of loans by concentration

Other Interest-Bearing Assets

There are no other interest-bearing assets as of December 31 2010 which would be required to be disclosed under

Item Ill C.1 or if such assets were loans

IV SUMMARY OF LOAN LOSS EXPERIENCE
The following is an analysis of the activity in the allowance for loan losses account

D.c.mb.r 31 D.c.n.r 31 D.c.mb.r 31 D.c.mb.r 31 D.c.mb.r 31

2010 2009 2008 2001 2006

Loans outstanding at the end of the

period 882877 886311 881967 888852 843834

Average loans outstanding during the

period1 878181 892431 848219 853.314 780555

Net of unearned income and deferred loan tees

Balance at beginning of the period

Loans charged-off

Commercial and
agricultural

Real estate

Consumer
______________________________________________________________

Total loans charged-oft

Recoveries ot loans previously charged

oft

arid agricultural

Real estate

orsLirTMr

otal loan recover irs

Net loans charged-ott

Provision charged to operating

experlMr

l3alarice at the end of the period

Ratio of net charge-otts to average

loans outstanding for the period

D.csnibsr 31 Dsc.n.r 31

2010 2009

1141016015

D.csnb.r 31

200$

9191

D.c.mb.r 31

2007

8738

D.c.mb.r 31

2006

8368

3856 2461 1358 23

811 432 351 36

5068 7354 5277 2701 1120

9135 10247 6986 2737 1143

228 66 15 48 201

50

111 1183 01 6/4 401

1230 1249 1031 12 608

8505 8998 5949 2015 535

11554 13603 1568 3068 905

19064 16015 11410 9191 8138

0.91% 1.01% 0.10% 0.24% 0.01%
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he following schedule is breakdown of the allowance for loan losses allocated by type of loan and the percentage
of loans in each category to total loans

D..ao 31 D.cunb 31 D.oanb 31 Doisinber 31 D.oimbsi 31

211 ZIN ZIN 2117 2111

Ailowan. ol Loin to AIow.n. 01 Loan to AMoown. 501 Loan to A$c.snaa 01 Loin to A$o.in Sot Loan to

Amount Total Loans A.nosait Total Loans Amnomat Total Loans A.nota Total Loans Amount Total Loans

ta.aI w1 aqr.iiraI 1554 36% 5166 35% 3202 35% 2656 35% 2987 33%
lal 1.119 18% 1933 15% 913 19% 179 24% /68 26%
Mtq..c wa...u.snq 1.435 14% 1.455 19% 1.354 14% 1309 9% 1162 13%

1.6% 10% 6861 31% 5.881 32% 5641 32% 3181 28%

40

19064 98% 16015 100% 11410 100% 9.191 100% 8138 100%

In 1999 FIorion began mortgage warehousing program This program is described in Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation in Item below and in the Notes to the Financial Statements in

Item below which are incorporated herein by reference The
greatest risk related to these loans is transaction and fraud

risk During 2010 Honion processed approximately $2.8 billion in mortgage warehouse loans

DEPOSITS
Information

required by this section is found in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results

of Operation in Item below and in the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes in Item below which are

incorporated herein by reference

VI RETURN ON EQUITY AND ASSETS
Information required by this section is found in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results

of Operation iii Item below and in the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes in Item below which are

incorporated herein by reference

VII SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
following is schedule of statistical information relative to securities sold under agreements to repurchase which are

secured by Treasury and u.S Government agency securities and mature within one year There were no other categories of

short-term borrowings for which the
average balance outstanding during the period was 30 percent or more of

stockholders equity at the end of the period

D.c.rnb.r 31 D.c.mb.i- 31

2010 2009

Outstanding at year end 45.394 46236

Approximate weighted-average interest rate at year-end 0.18% 0.27%

lighest amount outstanding as of any month-end during the year 49656 50547

Approximate average outstanding during the year 43.599 44.887

Approximate weighted-average interest during the year 0.19% 0.59%
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND RISK FACTORS

cautionary note about forward-looking statements In its oral and written statements Horizon from time to time

includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Such

forward-looking statements can include statements about estimated cost savings plans and objectives for future operations

and expectations about Horizons financial and business performance as well as economic and market conditions They

often can be identified by the use of words like expect may could intend project estimate believe or

anticipate

Horizon may include forward-ookiflg statements in filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC such as

this Form 10-K in other written materials and in oral statements made by senior management to analysts investors

representatives of the media and others It is intended that these forward-looking statements speak only as of the date

they are made and Horizon undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or

circumstances after the date on which the forward-looking statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated

events

By their nature forward-looking statements are based on assumptions and are subject to risks uncertainties and other

factors You are cautioned that actual results may differ materially from those contained in the forward-looking statement

The discussion in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation in Item of this

Form 10-K lists some of the factors that could cause Horizons actual results to vary materially from those expressed in or

implied by any forward-looking statements Your attention is directed to this discussion

Other risks and uncertainties that could affect Horizons future performance are set forth immediately below in Item 1A

Risk Factors

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

An investment in Horizons common stock is subject to risks inherent to our business The material risks and uncertainties

that management believes currently affect Horizon are described below Before making an investment decision you should

carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below together with all of the other information included or

incorporated by reference in this report The risks and uncertainties described below and elsewhere are not the only ones

facing Horizon Additional risks and uncertainties that management is not aware of or focused on or that management

currently deems immaterial may also impair
Horizons business operations This report is qualified in its entirety by these

risk factors

If any of the following risks actually occur Horizons financial condition and results of operations could be materially and

adversely affected If this were to happen the market price of Horizons common stock could decline significantly and you

could lose all or part of your investment

Risks Related to our Business

As financial institution we are subject to number of risks relating to our day-to-day business

As financial institution we are subject to number of risks relating to our daily business Although we undertake variety

of efforts to manage and control those risks many of the risks are outside of our control Among the risks we face are the

following

Credit risk the risk that loan customers or other parties will be unable to perform their contractual obligations

Market risk the risk that changes in market rates and prices
will adversely affect the Companys financial

condition or results of operation

Liquidity risk the risk that Horizon or the Bank will have insufficient cash or access to cash to meet its

operating needs

Operational risk the risk of loss resulting from fraud inadequate or failed internal processes people and

systems or external events

Economic risk the risk that the economy in the Companys markets could decline further resulting in increased

unemployment decreased real estate values and increased loan charge-offs and
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Compliance risk the risk of additional action by Horizons regulators or additional regulation could hinder the

Companys ability to do business profitably

The curTent conomic environment poses significant challenges for us and could adv.rsely affsct our financial

condition and results of operations

We are operating in challenging and uncertain economic environment including generally uncertain national conditions

and local conditions in our markets The capital and credit markets have been experiencing volatility and disruption since

2008 fhis presents financial institutions with unprecedented circumstances and challenges which in some cases have
resulted in large declines in the fair values of investments and other assets constraints on liquidity and significant credit

quality problems including severe volatility in the valuation of real estate and other collateral supporting loans Our
financial statements have been prepared using values and information currently available to us but given this volatility the

values of assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements could change rapidly resulting in material future

adjustments in asset values and the allowance for loan losses which could negatively impact our ability to meet regulatory
capital requirements and maintain sufficient liquidity The risks associated with our business become more acute in periods
of slowing economy or slow growth such as we began experiencing in the latter half of 2008 and which continued

throughout 2010 Financial institutions continue to be affected by sharp declines in the real estate market and constrained

financial markets While we are taking steps to decrease and limit our exposure to residential construction and land

development loans and home equity loans we nonetheless retain direct exposure to the residential and commercial real

estate markets and we are affected by these events

Continued declines in real estate values home sales volumes and financial stress on borrowers as result of the uncertain

economic environment including job loss could have an adverse effect on our borrowers or their customers which could

adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations In addition the national economic recession or further

deterioration in local economic conditions in our markets could drive losses beyond that which is provided for in our

allowance for loan losses and result in the following other consequences increases in loan delinquencies problem assets

and foreclosures demand for our products and services may decline deposits may decrease which would adversely impact
our liquidity position and collateral for our loans especially real estate may decline in value in turn reducing customers

borrowing power and reducing the value of assets and collateral associated with our existing loans

Our financial performance may be adv.rsely impacted if we are unable to continue to grow our commercial and
consumer loan portfolios obtain low-cost funds and compete with other providers of financial services

Our ability to maintain our history of record earnings year after year will depend in large part on our ability to continue to

grow our loan portfolios and obtain low-cost funds For the past five years we focused on increasing consumer loans and
we intend to continue to emphasize and grow consumer as well as commercial loans in the foreseeable future This

represented shift in our emphasis from prior years when we focused on mortgage banking services which generated

large portion of our income during those
years

We have also funded our growth with low-cost consumer deposits and our ability to sustain our growth will depend in part

on our continued success in attracting and retaining such deposits or finding other sources of low-cost funds

Another factor in maintaining our history of record earnings will be our ability to expand our scope of available financial

services to our customers in an increasingly competitive environment In addition to other banks our competitors include

credit unions securities brokers and dealers mortgage brokers mortgage bankers investment advisors and finance and

insurance companies Competition is intense in most of our markets We compete on price and service with our

competitors Competition could intensify in the future as result of industry consolidation the increasing availability of

products and services from non-banks greater technological developments in the Industry and banking reform

Th recent repeal of federal prohibitions on payment of interest on demand deposits could increase our interest

expense
All federal prohibitions on the ability of financial institutions to pay interest on demand deposit accounts were repealed as

part of the Dodd-Frank Act As result beginning on July 21 2011 financial institutions could commence offering
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interest on demand deposits to compete for customers We do not yet know what interest rates other institutions may offer

if any Our interest expense will increase and our net interest margin will decrease if we begin offering interest on demand

deposits to attract additional customers or maintain current customers which could have material adverse effect on our

financial condition and results of operations

Our commercial and consumer loans expos us to increased credit risks

We have large percentage of commercial and consumer loans Commercial loans generally have greater credit risk than

residential mortgage loans because repayment of these loans often depends on the successful business operations of the

borrowers These loans also typically have much larger loan balances than residential mortgage loans Consumer loans

generally involve greater risk than residential mortgage loans because they are unsecured or secured by assets that

depreciate in value Although we undertake variety of underwriting monitoring and reserving protections with respect to

these types of loans there can be no guarantee that we will not suffer unexpected losses and recently we have experienced

an increase in the default rates in our consumer loan portfolio particularly relating to indirect auto loans

Our holdings of construction land and home equity loans may pose more credit risk than other types of

mortgage loans

In light of current economic conditions construction loans loans secured by commercial real estate and home equity loans

are considered more risky than other types of mortgage loans Due to the disruptions in credit and housing markets real

estate values have decreased in most areas of the U.S and many of the developers to whom we lend experienced decline

in sales of new homes from their projects As result of this market disruption some of our land and construction loans

have become non-performing as developers are unable to build and sell homes in volumes large enough for orderly

repayment of loans and as other owners of such real estate including homeowners were unable to keep up with their

payments We believe we have established appropriate reserves on our financial statements to cover the credit risk of these

loan portfolios However there can be no assurance that losses will not exceed our reserves and ultimately result in

material level of charge-offs which could adversely impact our results of operations liquidity and capital

The allowance for loan losses may prove inadequate or be negatively affected by credit risk exposures

Our business depends on the creditworthiness of our customers We periodically review the allowance for loan and lease

losses for adequacy considering economic conditions and trends collateral values and credit quality indicators including

past charge-off experience and levels of past due loans and non-performing assets There is no certainty that the allowance

for loan losses will be adequate over time to cover credit losses in the portfolio because of unanticipated adverse changes in

the economy market conditions or events adversely affecting specil9c customers industries or markets If the credit

quality of the customer base materially decreases if the risk profile of market industry or group of customers changes

materially or if the allowance for loan losses is not adequate our business financial condition liquidity capital and results

of operations could be materially adversely affected

Changes in market interest rates could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations

Our financial condition and results of operations are significantly affected by changes in market interest rates Our results

of operations depend substantially on our net interest income which is the difference between the interest income that we

earn on our interest-earning assets and the interest expense that we pay on our interest-bearing liabilities Our profitability

depends on our ability to manage our assets and liabilities during periods of changing market interest rates If rates

increase rapidly as result of an improving economy we may have to increase the rates paid on our deposits and borrowed

funds more quickly than loans and investments re-price resulting in negative impact on interest spreads and net interest

income The impact of rising rates could be compounded if deposit customers move funds from savings accounts to

higher rate certificate of deposit accounts Conversely should market interest rates fall below current levels our net

interest margin could also be negatively affected as competitive pressures could keep us from further reducing rates on our

deposits and prepayments and curtailments on assets may continue Such movements may cause decrease in our interest

rate spread and net interest margin and therefore decrease our profitability
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Changes in interest rates also could affect loan volume For instance an increase in interest rates could cause decrease in

the demand for mortgage loans and other loans which could result in significant decline in our revenue stream

We also are subject to reinvestment risk associated with changes in interest rates Changes in interest rates may affect the

average life of loans and mortgage-related securities Increases in interest rates may decrease loan demand and/or may
make it more difficult for borrowers to repay adjustable rate loans Decreases in interest rates often result in increased

prepayments of loans and mortgage-related securities as borrowers refinance their loans to reduce borrowing costs Under

these circumstances we are subject to reinvestment risk to the extent that we are unable to reinvest the cash received from

such prepayments in loans or other investments that have interest rates that are comparable to the interest rates on existing

loans and securities

continued economic slowdown in Northw.stern Indiana and Southwestern Michigan could affect our

business

Our primary market area for deposits and loans consists of LaPorte and Porter Counties in Northwestern Indiana and

Berrien County in Southwestern Michigan During 2010 unemployment rates increased or remained at or near record

levels in our primary market area resulting in rise in consumer delinquencies and bankruptcy filings The continued

economic slowdown could hurt our business The possible consequences of such continued downturn could include the

ol lowi rig

increases in loan delinquencies and foreclosures

declines in the value of real estate and other collateral for loans

an increase in loans charged off

decline in the demand for our products and services

an increase in non-accrual loans and other real estate owned

The loss of key members of our senior management team could affect our ability to operate effectively

We depend heavily on the services of our existing senior management team particularly our CEO Craig Dwight to

carry out our business and investment strategies As we continue to grow and expand our business and our locations

products arid services we will increasingly need to rely on Mr Dwights experiencejudgment and expertise as well as that

of the other members of our senior management team and will also need to continue to attract and retain qualified banking

personnel at all levels Competition for such personnel is intense in our geographic market areas In addition as TARP

recipient the ARRA limits the amount of incentive compensation that can be paid to certain executives The effect could

be to limit our ability to attract and retain senior management in the future If we are unable to attract and retain talented

people our business could suffer The loss of the services of any senior management personnel particularly Mr Dwight or

the inability to recruit and retain qualified personnel in the future could have material adverse effect on our consolidated

results of operations financial condition and prospects

We may need to raise additional capital in the future and such capital may not be available when needed or at

all

We may need to raise additional capital in the future to fund acquisitions and to provide us with sufficient capital resources

and liquidity to meet our commitments regulatory capital requirements and business needs particularly if our asset quality

or earnings were to deteriorate significantly Although we are currently and have historically been well capitalized for

regulatory purposes our capital levels are not far in excess of the well capitalized threshold and we have been required to

maintain increased levels of capital in the past in connection with certain acquisitions Additionally we periodically explore

acquisition opportunities with other financial institutions some of which are in distressed financial condition Any future

acquisition particularly the acquisition of significantly troubled institution or an institution of comparable size to us may

require us to raise additional capital in order to obtain regulatory approval and/or to remain well capitalized

Our ability to raise additional capital if needed will depend on among other things conditions in the capital markets at

that time which are outside of our control and our financial performance Economic conditions and the loss of

onfpdencp in financial institutions may increase our cost of funding and limit access to certain customary sources of
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capital including inter-bank borrowings repurchase agreements and borrowings from the discount window of the Federal

Reserve

We cannot guarantee that such capital will be available on acceptable terms or at all Any occurrence that may limit our

access to the capital markets such as decline in the confidence of debt purchasers our depositors or counterparties

participating in the capital markets may adversely affect our capital costs and our ability to raise capital and in turn our

liquidity Moreover if we need to raise capital in the future we may have to do so when many other financial institutions

are also seeking to raise capital and would have to compete with those institutions for investors An inability to raise

additional capital on acceptable terms when needed could have materially adverse effect on our businesses financial

condition and results of operations and may restrict our ability to grow

Potential acquisitions may disrupt our business and dilute stockholder value

We periodically evaluate merger and acquisition opportunities and conduct due diligence activities related to possible

transactions with other financial institutions and financial services companies We generally seek merger or acquisition

partners that are culturally similar and possess either significant market presence or have potential for improved

profitability through financial management economies of scale or expanded services Acquiring other banks businesses or

branches involves various risks commonly associated with acquisitions including among other things

Potential exposure to unknown or contingent liabilities of the target company

Exposure to potential asset quality issues of the target company

Potential disruption to our business

Potential diversion of our managements time and attention away from day-to-day operations

The possible loss of key employees business and customers of the target company

Difficulty in estimating the value of the target company and

Potential problems in integrating the target companys systems customers and employees with ours

As result merger or acquisition discussions and in some cases negotiations may take place and future mergers or

acquisitions involving the payment of cash or the issuance of our debt or equity securities may occur at any time

Acquisitions typically involve the payment of premium over book and market values and therefore some dilution of our

tangible book value and net income per common share may occur in connection with any future transaction To the extent

we were to issue additional common shares in any such transaction our current shareholders would be diluted and such an

issuance may have the effect of decreasing our stock price perhaps significantly Furthermore failure to realiie the

expected revenue increases cost savings increases in geographic or product presence and/or other projected benefits

from an acquisition could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

The preparation of our financial statements requires the use of estimates that may vary from actual results

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management to make significant estimates that affect the financial statements One of

our most critical estimates is the level of the allowance for loan losses Due to the inherent nature of these estimates WC

cannot provide absolute assurance that we will not have to increase the allowance for loan losses and/or sustain loan losses

that are significantly higher than the provided allowance

Our mortgage warehouse and indirect lending operations are subject to higher fraud risk than our other

lending operations

We buy loans originated by mortgage bankers and automobile dealers Because we must rely on the mortgage bankers and

automobile dealers in making and documenting these loans there is an increased risk of fraud to us on the part of the

third-party originators and the underlying borrowers In order to guard against this increased risk we perform

investigations on the loan originators with whom we do business and we review the loan files and loan documents we

purchase to attempt to detect any irregularities or legal noncompliance However there is no guarantee that our

procedures will detect all cases of fraud or legal noncompliance
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Our mortgage lending profitability could significantly rduc.d if we are not able to resell mortgages or

experience other problems with this process

Currently we sell substantial portion of the mortgage loans we originate The profitability of our mortgage banking

operations depends in large part upon our ability to aggregate high volume of loans and to sell them in the secondary

market at gain Thus we are dependent upon the existence of an active secondary market and our ability to profitably sell

loans into that market

Our ability to sell mortgage loans readily is dependent upon the availability of an active secondary market for single-family

mortgage loans which in turn depends in part upon the continuation of programs currently offered by Fannie Mae

reddie Mac and Ginnie Mae the Agencies and other institutional and non-institutional investors These entities

account for substantial portion of the secondary market in residential mortgage loans Some of the largest participants in

the secondary market including the Agencies are government-sponsored enterprises whose activities are governed by

federal law Any future changes in laws that significantly affect the activity of such government-sponsored enterprises

could ri turn adversely effect our operations

In September 2008 Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac were placed into conservatorship by the U.S government Although to

date the conservatorship has not had significant or adverse effect on our operations it is currently unclear whether

further changes would significantly and adversely affect our operations In addition our ability to sell mortgage loans

readily is dependent upon our ability to remain eligible for the programs offered by the Agencies and other institutional and

non-institutional investors Our ability to remain eligible may also depend on having an acceptable peer-relative

delinquency ratio for Federal Housing Authority HA and maintaining delinquency rate with respect to Ginnie Mae

pools that are below Ginnie Mae guidelines In the case of Ginnie Mae pools we have repurchased delinquent loans from

them in the past to maintain compliance with the minimum required delinquency ratios Although these loans are typically

insured as to principal by the FHA such repurchases increase our capital and liquidity needs and there can be no assurance

that we will have sufficient capital or liquidity to continue to purchase such loans out of the Ginnie Mae pools if required

to dO SO

Any significant impairment of our eligibility with any of the Agencies could materially and adversely affect our operations

urther the criteria for loans to be accepted under such programs may be changed from time-to-time by the sponsoring

entity which could result in lower volume of corresponding loan originations The profitability of participating in specific

programs may vary depending on number of factors including our administrative costs of originating and purchasing

qualifying loans and our costs of meeting such criteria

We are exposed to intangible asset risk specifically our goodwill may become impaired

As of December 31 2010 we had $8.7 million of goodwill and other intangible assets significant and sustained decline

in our stock price and market capitalization significant decline in our expected future cash flows significant adverse

change in the business climate or slower growth rates could result in the impairment of goodwill If we were to conclude

that future write-down of our goodwill is necessary then we would record the appropriate charge which could be

materially adverse to our operating results and financial position For further discussion see Notes and Nature of

Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Intangible Assets to the Consolidated Financial

Statements included in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Financial problems at the Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis may adversely affect our financial condition

and our ability to borrow monies in the future

Horizon owns stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis FHLBI with carrying value of $11.4 million as

of December 31 2010 in order to qualify for membership in the Federal Home Loan Bank system which enables us to

borrow funds under the Federal Home Loan Bank advance program The FHLBI stock also entitles us to dividends from

lhe HI BI Horizon recognized dividend income of approximately $217000 and $315000 in 2010 and 2009 respectively

Iue to various financial difficulties in the financial institution industry in the last few years including the write-down of

various mortgage-backed securities held by the FHLBI which lowered its regulatory capital levels the FHLBI temporarily
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suspended dividends during the first quarter of 2009 When the dividends were finally paid they were reduced from the

dividend rate paid for the previous quarter In an extreme situation it is possible that the capitalization of Federal Home

Loan Bank including the FHLBI could be substantially diminished or reduced to zero Consequently given that there is

no market for the FHLBI stock we hold we believe that there is risk that the investment could be deemed other-than-

temporarily impaired at some time in the future If this occurs it may adversely affect Horizons results of operations and

financial condition If the FHLBI were to cease operations or if we were required to write-off the investment in the

FHLBI our business financial condition liquidity capital and results of operations may be materially adversely affected

Additionally Horizons total current borrowing capacity with the FHLBI is currently $302.9 million and we have

outstanding borrowings of $88.8 million with the FHLBI Generally the loan terms from the FHLBI are better than the

terms Horizon can receive from other sources making it cheaper to borrow money from the FHLBI Continued and

additional financial difficulties at the FHLBI or the complete failure of the FHLBI could reduce or eliminate our

additional borrowing capacity with the FHLBI which could force us to borrow money from other sources Such other

monies may not be available when we need them or more likely will be available at higher interest rates and on less

advantageous terms which will impact our net income and could impact our ability to grow

The TARP lending goals may not be attainable and may adversely affect our business and asset quality

Congress and the bank regulators have encouraged recipients of TARP capital including Horizon to use such capital to

make more loans and it may not be possible to safely soundly and profitably make sufficient loans to creditworthy persons

in the current economy to satisfy such goals Congressional demands for additional lending by TARP capital recipients and

regulatory demands for demonstrating and reporting such lending are increasing On November 12 2008 the bank

regulatory agencies issued statement encouraging banks to among other things lend prudently and responsibly to

creditworthy
borrowers and to work with borrowers to preserve homeownership and avoid preventable foreclosures

Horizon continues to lend and have been able to expand our lending using the funds Horizon received through the

Capital Purchase Program and to report our lending to the Treasury The future demands for additional lending however

are unclear and uncertain and Horizon could be forced to make loans that involve risks or terms that Horizon would not

otherwise find acceptable or in our shareholders best interest Such loans could adversely affect our results of operations

and financial condition and may be in conflict with bank regulations and requirements as to liquidity and capital The

profitability of funding such loans using deposits may also be adversely affected by increased FDIC insurance premiums

We are subject to extensive regulation and changes in laws regulations and policies that could adversely affect

our business

Our operations are subject to extensive regulation by federal agencies See Supervision and Regulation in the description

of our Business in Part of this Form 10-K for detailed information on the laws and regulations to which we are subject

As apparent from the recent Emergency Economic Stabilization Act EESA Troubled Asset Relief Program TARP the

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ARRA and the Dodd-Frank Act of 2010 legislation changes in

applicable laws regulations or regulator policies can matenally affect our business The likelihood of any major changes in

the future and their effects are impossible to determine

In addition to the EESA TARP ARRA and Dodd-Frank mentioned above federal and state governments could pass

additional legislation responsive to current credit conditions As an example Horizon Bank could experience higher credit

losses because of federal or state legislation or regulatory
action that reduces the amount the Banks borrowers are

otherwise contractually required to pay under existing loan contracts Also Horizon Bank could experience higher credit

losses because of federal or state legislation or regulatory action that limits its ability to foreclose on property or other

collateral or makes foreclosure less economically feasible

The new laws described above together with additional actions announced by the Treasury Department Treasury and

other regulatory agencies continue to develop It is not clear at this time what impact EESA TARP Dodd-Frank other

liquidity and funding initiatives of the Treasury and other bank regulatory agencies that have been previously announced

and any additional programs that may be initiated in the future will have on the financial markets and the financial services

industry The extreme levels of volatility and limited credit availability currently being experienced could continue to affect
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the U.S banking industry and the broader U.S and global economies which will have an effect on all financial institutions

including Horizon

Our inability to continue to accurat.ly process large volumes of transactions could adversely impact our business

and financial results

In the normal course of business we process large volumes of transactions If systems of internal control should fail to

work as expected if systems are used in an unauthorized manner or if employees subvert the system of internal controls

significant losses could result

We process large volumes of transactions on daily basis and are exposed to numerous types of operational risk

Operational risk resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes people and systems includes the risk of fraud by

persons inside or outside the company the execution of unauthorized transactions by employees errors relating to

transaction processing and systems and breaches of the internal control system and compliance requirements This risk of

loss also includes the potential legal actions that could arise as result of the operational deficiency or as result of

noncompliance with applicable regulatory standards

We establish and maintain systems of internal operational controls that are designed to provide us with timely and accurate

information about our level of operational risk While not foolproof these systems have been designed to manage

operational risk at appropriate cost-effective levels Procedures also exist that are designed to ensure that policies relating

to conduct ethics and business practices are followed From time to time losses from operational risk may occur

including the effects of operational errors

While we continually monitor and improve the system of internal controls data processing systems and corporate-wide

processes and procedures there can be no assurance that future losses will not occur

Our information systems may experience an interruption or breach in security

We rely heavily on communications and information systems to conduct our business Any failure interruption or breach

in security of these systems could result in failures or disruptions in our customer relationship management general ledger

deposit loan and other systems While we have policies and procedures designed to prevent or limit the effect of the

failure interruption or security breach of our information systems there can be no assurance that any such failures

interruptions or security breaches will not occur or if they do occur that they will be adequately or timely addressed The

occurrence of any failures interruptions or security breaches of our information systems could damage our reputation

result in loss of customer business subject us to additional regulatory scrutiny or expose us to civil litigation and possible

financial liability any of which could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

We continually encounter technological changes

he financial services industry is continually undergoing rapid technological change with frequent introductions of new

technology-driven products and services The effective use of technology increases efficiency and enables financial

institutions to better serve customers and to reduce costs Our future success depends in part upon our ability to address

the needs of our customers by using technology to provide products and services that will satisfy customer demands as

well as to create additional efficiencies in our operations Many of our competitors have substantially greater resources to

invest in technological improvements and we may not be able to effectively implement new technology-driven products

and services or be successful in marketing these products and services to our customers Failure to successfully keep pace

with technological change affecting the financial services industry could have material adverse impact on our business

and in turn our financial condition and results of operations

The soundness of other financial institutions could adversely affect us

linancial services institutions are interrelated as result of trading clearing counterparty or other relationships We have

exposure to many different industries and counterparties and we routinely execute transactions with counterparties in the
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financial services industry including brokers and dealers commercial banks investment banks mutual and hedge funds

and other institutional clients Many of these transactions expose us to credit risk in the event of default by our

counterparty or client In addition our credit risk may be exacerbated when the collateral held by us cannot be realized or

is liquidated at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of the loan or derivative exposure due us There is no

assurance that any such losses would not materially and adversely affect our results of operations or earnings

Risks Ratad to our Common Stock

The pi-ic of our common stock may fluctuat significantly and this may make it difficult for you to resell our

common stock at times or at prices you find attractive

Although our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Market our stock price constantly changes and we expect

our stock price to continue to fluctuate in the future Our stock price is impacted by variety of factors some of which are

beyond our control

These factors include

variations in our operating results or the quality of our assets

operating results that vary from the expectations of management securities analysts and investors

increases in loan losses non-performing loans and other real estate owned

changes in expectations as to our future financial performance

announcements of new products strategic developments acquisitions and other material events by us or our

competitors

the operating and securities price performance of other companies that investors believe are comparable to us

actual or anticipated sales of our equity or equity-related securities

our past and future dividend practice

our creditworthiness

interest rates

the credit mortgage and housing markets the markets for securities relating to mortgages or housing

developments with respect to financial institutions generally and

economic financial geopolitical regulatory congressional or judicial events that affect us or the financial markets

In addition the stock market in general has recently experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations This volatility has

had significant effect on the market price of securities issued by many companies and particularly those in the financial

services and banking sector including for reasons unrelated to their operating performance These broad market

fluctuations may adversely affect our stock price notwithstanding our operating results

Because our stock is thinly traded it may be more difficult for you to sell your shares or buy additional shares

when you desire to do so and the price may be volatile

Although our common stock has been listed on the NASDAQ stock market since December 2001 our common stock is

thinly traded The prices of thinly traded stocks such as ours are typically more volatile than stocks traded in large

active public market and can be more easily impacted by sales or purchases of large blocks of stock Thinly traded stocks

are also less liquid and because of the low volume of trades you may be unable to sell your shares when you desire to do

so

Becaus of our participation in the TARP Capital Purchase Program Horizon is subject to various restrictions

on dividends share repurchas.s and executive compensation

Horizon is participant in the Capital Purchase Program which is component program of TARP Pursuant to the

agreements Horizon entered into as part of the Capital Purchase Program Horizon is unable to declare dividend payments

on our common shares if Horizon is in arrears on the payment of dividends on the Series Preferred Shares Horizon

issued to the Treasury Further Horizon is not permitted to increase dividends on our common shares above the amount
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of the last quarterly cash dividend per common share declared prior to October 14 2008 $0.17 per common share

without the Treasurys approval until December 23 2011 unless all of the Series Preferred Shares have been redeemed

or transferred by the Treasury to unaffiliated third parties

In addition our ability to repurchase our shares is restricted The consent of the Treasury generally is required for us to

make any share repurchase other than in connection with the administration of any employee benefit plan in the ordinary

course of business and consistent with past practice until December 23 2011 unless all of the Series Preferred Shares

have been redeemed or transferred by the Treasury to unaffiliated third parties Further our common shares may not be

repurchased if Horizon is in arrears on the payment of Series Preferred Share dividends to the Treasury

As recipient of government funding under the Capital Purchase Program Horizon must also comply with the executive

compensation and corporate governance standards imposed by the ARRA and the standards established by the Secretary

of the Treasury under the ARRA for so long as the Treasury holds any of our securities or upon exercise of the Warrant

Horizon issued to the Treasury as part of the Capital Purchase Program excluding any period during which the Treasury

holds only the Warrant the TARP Period Effective June 15 2009 the Secretary of the Treasury established executive

compensation and corporate governance standards applicable to TARP recipients including Horizon by promulgating an

Interim Final Rule under 31 C.F.R Part 30 the Interim Final Rule The ARRA and the Interim Final Rule impose

limitations on our executive compensation practices by

Limiting the deductibility for U.S federal income tax purposes of compensation paid to any of our Senior

xecutive Officers as defined in the Interim Final Rule to $500000 per year

Prohibiting the payment or accrual of any bonus retention award or incentive compensation to our five most

highly-compensated employees except in the form and under the limited circumstances permitted by the Interim

Final Rule

Prohibiting the payment of golden parachute payments as defined in the Interim Final Rule to our Senior

xecutive Officers or any of our next five most highly-compensated employees upon departure from Horizon or

due to change in control of Horizon except for payments for services performed or benefits accrued

Requiring Horizon to clawback any bonus retention award or incentive compensation paid or under legally

binding obligation to be paid to Senior Executive Officer or any of our next 20 most highly-compensated

employees if the payment was based on materially inaccurate financial statements or any other materially inaccurate

performance metric criteria

Prohibiting Horizon from maintaining any employee compensation plan as defined in the Interim Final Rule that

would encourage the manipulation of our reported earnings to enhance the compensation of any of our

employees

Prohibiting Horizon from maintaining compensation plans and arrangements for our Senior Executive Officers

that encourage our Senior Executive Officers to take unnecessary and excessive risks that threaten the value of

Horizon

Prohibiting Horizon from providing formally or informally gross-ups to any of our Senior Executive Officers

or our next 20 most highly-compensated employees and

Subjecting any bonus retention award or other compensation paid before February 17 2009 to our Senior

Executive Officers or our next 20 most highly-compensated employees to retroactive review by the Treasury to

determine whether any such payments were inconsistent with the purposes of TARP or otherwise contrary to the

public interest

he ARRA and the Interim Final Rule also required that the Horizon Board of Directors adopt Company-wide policy

regarding excessive or luxury expenditures which Horizon has done

Although Horizon was already in compliance with many of these standards and limitations prior to its participation in the

Capital Purchase Program and the subsequent adoption of the ARRA and the Interim Final Rule these standards and

limitations decrease in some cases substantially Horizons discretion over certain decisions regarding its dividend practices

and how it compensates its executive officers and other employees The limitations on compensation may have the effect

of limiting
Horiions ability to attract and retain executive officers and other employees which will be detrimental to our

long-term success
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Our ability to repurchas the preferred shares issued to the Treasury and therefore obtain relief from the

limitations and restrictions of TARP and ARRA is limited

Any redemption of the securities sold to the Treasury requires prior Federal Reserve and Treasury approval Based on

recently issued Federal Reserve guidelines institutions seeking to redeem the preferred stock issued pursuant to the Capital

Purchase Program must demonstrate an ability to access the long-term debt markets without reliance on the FDICs

Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program successfully demonstrate access to public equity markets and meet number of

additional requirements and considerations before they can redeem any securities sold to the Treasury

On November 10 2010 Horizon repurchased 6250 of the 25000 outstanding Series Preferred Shares held by the

Treasury Horizon paid $6.25 million to repurchase the preferred shares along with the accrued dividend for the shares

repurchased Horizon has also applied for $19 million loan under the recently implemented Small Business Loan Fund

program the SBLF and if its application is approved Horizon plans to repurchase the remaining $18.5 million in Series

Preferred Shares from the Treasury with those proceeds Enacted into law as part of the Small Business Jobs Act of

2010 the SBLF is $30 billion fund that encourages lending to small businesses by providing Tier
capital to qualified

community banks with assets of less than $10 billion The SBLF program provides an option for community banks to

refinance preferred stock issued to the Treasury through the Capital Purchase Program and the SBLF program does not

impose many of the restrictions that Horizon is currently subject to under TARP

However there is no guarantee that Horizons application under SBLF will be approved and Horizon will be able to

redeem the remaining securities held by the Treasury

Provisions in our articles of incorporation our by-laws and Indiana law may delay or prevent an acquisition of

us by third party

Our articles of incorporation and by-laws and Indiana law contain provisions which have certain anti-takeover effects

While the purpose of these provisions is to strengthen the negotiating position of the board in the event of hostile

takeover attempt the overall effects of these provisions may be to render more difficult or discourage merger tender

offer or proxy contest the assumption of control by holder of larger block of our shares and the removal of incumbent

directors and key management

Our articles of incorporation provide for staggered board which means that only one-third of our board can be replaced

by shareholders at any annual meeting Our articles also provide that our directors may only be removed without cause by

shareholders owning 70% or more of our outstanding common stock Furthermore our articles provide that only our

board of directors and not our shareholders may adopt alter amend and repeal our by-laws

Our articles also preempt Indiana law with respect to business combinations with person who acquires 10% or more of

our common stock and provide that such transactions are subject to independent and super-majority shareholder approval

requirements unless certain pricing and board pre-approval requirements are satisfied

Our by-laws do not permit cumulative voting of shareholders in the election of directors allowing the holders of majority

of our outstanding shares to control the election of all our directors and our directors are elected by plurality not majority

voting Our by-laws also establish detailed procedures that shareholders must follow if they desire to nominate directors

for election or otherwise present issues for consideration at shareholders meeting We also have mandatory retirement

age for directors

These and other provisions of our governing documents and Indiana law are intended to provide the board of directors

with the negotiating leverage to achieve more favorable outcome for our shareholders in the event of an offer for the

company However there is no assurance that these same anti-takeover provisions could not have the effect of delaying

deferring or preventing transaction or change in control that might be in the best interest of our shareholders
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ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable

ITEM PROPERTIES
he main office and full service branch of Horizon and the Bank is located at 515 Franklin Square Michigan City Indiana

he building located across the street from the main office of Horizon and the Bank at 502 Franklin Square houses the

credit administration operations facilities and purchasing and information technology departments of the Bank In

addition to these principal facilities the Bank has 21 sales offices located at

3631 South Franklin Street Michigan City Indiana

113 West First Street Wanatah Indiana

1500 West Lincolnway LaPorte Indiana

423 South Roosevelt Street Chesterton Indiana

4208 North Calumet Valparaiso Indiana

902 Li ncolnway Valparaiso Indiana

2650 Willowcreek Road Portage Indiana

8590 Broadway Merrillville Indiana

10429 Calumet Avenue Munster Indiana

17400 State Road 23 South Bend Indiana

1909 East Bristol Street Elkhart Indiana

4574 Elkhart Road Goshen Indiana

1321 119t1 Street Whiting Indiana

1349 Calumet Avenue Hammond Indiana

1300 North Main Street Crown Point Indiana

811 Ship Street St Joseph Michigan

2608 Niles Road St Joseph Michigan

1041 East Napier Avenue Benton Harbor Michigan

500 West Buffalo Street New Buffalo Michigan

6801 West U.S 12 Three Oaks Michigan

1300 West Centre Avenue Portage Michigan

F-Iorion owns all of the facilities except for the Portage Michigan office which is leased

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Horion and its subsidiaries are involved in various legal proceedings incidental to the conduct of their business

Management does not expect that the outcome of any such proceedings will have material adverse effect on our

consolidated financial position or results of operations In addition Horizon is engaged in the following legal proceedings

On September 2010 Capitol Bancorp and one of its subsidiaries Michigan Commerce Bank filed Verified Complaint

in Kalamazoo County Circuit Court Case No 2010 0300-C and obtained an ex-parte temporary restraining order in

Michigan state court The Complaint asserted variety of claims against Horizon and certain ex-employees of Michigan

Commerce Bank including without limitation breach of contract tortious interference misappropriation of trade secretes

and civil conspiracy The temporary restraining order and preliminary injunction primarily sought to restrain the ex

employees from soliciting or doing business with any of Michigan Commerce Banks customers and from using or

disclosing any of Michigan Commerce Banks confidential information hearing on the preliminary injunction was held

and the court dissolved the temporary restraining order and denied the preliminary injunction After the temporary

restraining order was dissolved Plaintiffs stipulated to the dismissal of all the ex-employees on September 2010 except

one In addition Capitol Bancorp and Michigan Commerce Bank have amended their complaint to reflect the dismissal of

these ex-employees as defendants but have yet to file the amended complaint pending the parties settlement discussions

As result this matter now primarily involves damage claims against one of the ex-employees for alleged breaches of his

duty of loyalty to Michigan Commerce Bank and alleged breaches of the confidentiality agreement he signed while

employed at Michigan Commerce Bank and claims against Horizon for alleged breaches of an employee non-solicitation
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provision contained in confidentiality agreement between Horion Capitol Bancorp and certain of its affiliates which

was entered into in 2009 in connection with Horizons investigation of potentially purchasing two affiliate banks of Capitol

Bancorp and similar claims relating to the hiring of the ex-employee who remains party to the lawsuit On February 16

2011 the parties met to attempt to settle the case through mediation but were unsuccessful in doing so Horizon continues

to evaluate the case as it moves through the discovery phase and will continue to attempt to settle the case if it is

reasonable to do so

On July 23 2010 the bankruptcy trustee for AmerLink LTD filed Complaint in the United States Bankruptcy Court of

the Eastern District of North Carolina Wilson Division seeking to recover up to $25000000 in alleged damages and

related costs from multiple defendants including Horizon Bank N.A f/k/a Horizon Trust Investment Management

arising out of the bankruptcy of AmerLink The Complaint primarily alleges that the prior owners of AmerLink engaged in

series of fraudulent and/or improper transactions in connection with the formation of AmerLinks Employee Stock

Ownership Plan Horizon served as the trustee for AmerLinks ESOP plan While Horizon was preparing

to file motion to dismiss itself from the action the bankruptcy trustee agreed to voluntarily dismiss Horizon from the

case on January 24 2011 without prejudice Since the dismissal was without prejudice the case could be re-filed against

Horizon but the trustee indicated that she does not foresee re-filing

ITEM REMOVED AND RESERVED

SPECIAL ITEM EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF REGISTRANT
Robert Dabagia 72 Chairman of Horizon since 1998 Chief Executive Officer of Horizon and

the Bank until July 2001

Craig Dwight 54 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank since January 2003

President and Chief Executive Officer of Horizon and the Bank since July

12001

Thomas Edwards 58 President and Chief Operating Officer of the Bank since January 2003

Mark Secor 44 Chief Financial Officer of Horizon and the Bank since January 2009 Vice

President Chief Investment and Asset Liability Manager since June 2007

Chief Financial Officer of St Joseph Capital Corp Mishawaka Indiana

since January 2004

James Neff 51 Corporate Secretary of Horizon since 2007 Executive Vice President

Mortgage Banking of the Bank since January 2004 Senior Vice President

of the Bank since October 1999
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

R.purchas.s of S.curiti.s

here were no purchases by the Company of its common stock during the fourth quarter of 2010

P.rformanc Graph

he Securities and Exchange Commission requires Horizon to include line graph comparing Horizons cumulative five-

year total shareholder returns on the Common Shares with market and industry returns over the past five years SNL

inancial prepared the following graph The return represented in the graph assumes the investment of $100 on

January 2006 and further assumes reinvestment of all dividends The Common Shares began trading on the NASDAQ
Market February 2007 Prior to that date the Common Shares were traded on the NASDAQ Capital Market
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The following chart prepared by the investment banking firm of Keefe Bruyette and Woods compares the change in

market price of Horizons stock to that of publicly traded banks in Indiana and Michigan

The other information regarding Horizons common stock is included under the caption Horizons Common Stock and

Related Stockholders Matters in Item below which is incorporated by reference

ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The information required under this item is incorporated by reference to the information appearing under the caption

Summary of Selected Financial Data in Item of this Form 10-K

R.iative Price Performance
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iTEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION

Overview

Horizon isa registered bank holding company incorporated in Indiana and headquartered in Michigan City Indiana

Horizon provides broad range of banking services in Northwestern Indiana and Southwestern Michigan through its bank

subsidiary Horizon operates as single segment which is commercial banking Horizons Common Stock is traded on

the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol HBNC The Bank was chartered as national banking association in 1873

and has operated continuously since that time The Bank is full-service commercial bank offering commercial and retail

banking services corporate and individual trust and agency services and other services incident to banking

Forizon continues to operate in challenging economic environment Within the Companys primary market areas of

Northwest Indiana and Southwest Michigan unemployment rates increased during 2009 and have remained at high levels

during 2010 This rise in unemployment has been driven by factors including slowdowns in the steel and recreational

vehicle industries as well as continued slowdown in the housing industry The increase in the Companys non-performing

loans over the past year can be attributed to the continued slow economy and continued high local unemployment causing

lower business revenues and increased bankruptcies Despite these economic factors Horizon continued to post positive

results for 2010

ollowing are some highlights of Horizons financial performance during 2010

Horizons 2010 results represent the Companys eleventh consecutive year of record earnings

Horizons net income for the twelve months ended December 31 2010 was $10.5 million or $2.71 diluted

earnings per
share compared to $9.1 million or $2.37 diluted earnings per share for the prior year

the net interest margin increased to 4.01% for the three months ending December 31 2010 primarily as result

of the decrease in the rate paid on interest bearing liabilities during the quarter

he net interest margin for 2010 was 3.80% an increase over the margin of 3.66% during 2009

The purchase and assumption of American Trust Savings Bank in Whiting Indiana closed on May 28 2010

adding $107.8 million in purchased assets and $110.3 million of assumed liabilities

he expensed acquisition costs for American Trust Savings Bank were approximately $664000 during 2010

Hon/ons residential mortgage loan activity during 2010 provided $7.5 million of income from the gain on sale of

mortgage loans

horizons provision for loan losses decreased $2.0 million during
2010 compared to 2009 however the ratio of

allowance for loan losses to total loans increased to 2.11% from 1.80% during the same period

Horizons net loans charged off decreased during 2010 to $8.5 million compared to $9.0 million during 2009

Honons non-performing loans increased by $4.3 million and Other Real Estate Owned increased $900000

during 2010

Horizons 30 to 89 day loan delinquencies decreased to 0.66% of total loans at December 31 2010 compared to

1.09% of total loans at December 31 2009

Horizons non-performing loans to total loans ratio as of December 31 2010 was 2.37% which compares

favorably to National and State of Indiana peer averages1 as of December 31 2010 of 4.77% and 2.55% the most

recent data available

On November 10 2010 the Company completed the redemption process to reduce the Treasurys preferred stock

investment by $6.25 million which represents 25% reduction

Horizons capital ratios continue to be above the regulatory standards for well-capitalized banks

National peer group Consists of all insured commercial banks having assets between Si Billion and $10 Billion as reported by the

Uniform Bank Performance Report as of September 30 2010 Indiana
peer group Consists of 17 publicly traded banks all

headquartered in the State of Indiana as reported by the Uniform Bank Performance Reports as of December 31 2010
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Critical Accounting Polici.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements included in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for 2010

contain summary of the Companys significant accounting policies Certain of these policies are important to the

portrayal of the Companys financial condition since they require management to make difficult complex or subjective

judgments some of which may relate to matters that are inherently uncertain Management has identified the allowance

for loan losses intangible assets and hedge accounting as critical accounting policies

Allowance for Loan Losses

An allowance for loan losses is maintained to absorb probable incurred loan losses inherent in the loan portfolio The

determination of the allowance for loan losses is critical accounting policy that involves managements ongoing quarterly

assessments of the probable incurred losses inherent in the loan portfolio The identification of loans that have probable

incurred losses is subjective therefore general reserve is maintained to cover all probable losses within the entire loan

portfolio Horizon utilizes loan grading system that helps identify monitor and address asset quality problems in an

adequate and timely manner Each quarter various factors affecting the quality of the loan portfolio are reviewed Large

credits are reviewed on an individual basis for loss potential Other loans are reviewed as group based upon previous

trends of loss experience Horizon also reviews the current and anticipated economic conditions of its lending market as

well as transaction risk to determine the effect they may have on the loss experience of the loan portfolio

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Management believes that the accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets also involves higher degree of

judgment than most other significant accounting policies FASB ASC 350-10 establishes standards for the amortization of

acquired intangible assets and impairment assessment of goodwill At December 31 2010 Horizon had core deposit

intangibles of $2.7 million subject to amortization and $5.9 million of goodwill which is not subject to amortization

Goodwill arising from business combinations represents the value attributable to unidentifiable intangible assets in the

business acquired Horizons goodwill relates to the value inherent in the banking industry and that value is dependent

upon the ability of Horizon to provide quality cost effective banking services in competitive marketplace The goodwill

value is supported by revenue that is in part driven by the volume of business transacted decrease in earnings resulting

from decline in the customer base or the inability to deliver cost effective services over sustained periods can lead to

impairment of goodwill that could adversely affect earnings in future periods FASB ASC 350-10 requires an annual

evaluation of goodwill for impairment The evaluation of goodwill for impairment requires the use of estimates and

assumptions Market price at the close of business on December 31 2010 was $26.60 per share compared to book value

of $28.68 per common share Horizon reported record earnings for the eleventh consecutive year
in 2010 and believes the

below book market price relates to an overall decline in the financial industry sector and is not specific to Horizon

The financial markets are currently reflecting significantly lower valuations for the stocks of financial institutions when

compared to historic valuation metrics largely driven by the constriction in available credit and losses suffered related to

residential mortgage markets The Companys stock activity as well as the price has been affected by the economic

conditions affecting the banking industry Management believes this downturn has impacted the Companys stock and has

concluded that the recent stock price is not indicative or reflective of fair value per ASC Topic 820 Fair Value

Horizon has concluded that based on its own internal evaluation the recorded value of goodwill is not impaired

Mortgage Servicing Rights

Servicing assets are recognized as separate assets when rights are acquired through purchase or through the sale of financial

assets on servicing-retained basis Capitalized servicing rights are amortized into non-interest income in proportion to

and over the period of the estimated future net servicing income of the underlying financial assets Servicing assets are

evaluated regularly for impairment based upon the fair value of the rights as compared to amortized cost Impairment is

determined by stratifying servicing rights by predominant characteristics such as interest rates original loan terms and

whether the loans are fixed or adjustable rate mortgages Fair value is determined using prices for similar assets with

similar characteristics when available or based upon discounted cash flows using market-based assumptions When the

book value of an individual stratum exceeds its fair value an impairment reserve is recognized so that each individual
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stratum is carried at the lower of its amortized book value or fair value In periods of falling market interest rates

accelerated loan prepayment can adversely affect the fair value of these mortgage-servicing rights relative to their book

value In the event that the fair value of these assets was to increase in the future Horizon can recognize the increased fair

value to the extent of the impairment allowance but cannot recognize an asset in excess of its amortized book value

uture changes in managements assessment of the impairment of these servicing assets as result of changes in

observable market data relating to market interest rates loan prepayment speeds and other factors could impact Horizons

financial condition and results of operations either positively or negatively

Generally when market interest rates decline and other factors favorable to prepayments occur there is corresponding

increase in prepayments as customers refinance existing mortgages under more favorable interest rate terms When

mortgage loan is prepaid the anticipated cash flows associated with servicing that loan are terminated resulting in

reduction of the fair value of the capitalized mortgage servicing rights
To the extent that actual borrower prepayments do

not react as anticipated by the prepayment model i.e the historical data observed in the model does not correspond to

actual market activity it is possible that the prepayment model could fail to accurately predict mortgage prepayments and

could result in significant earnings volatility To estimate prepayment speeds Horizon utilizes third-party prepayment

model which is based upon statistically derived data linked to certain key principal indicators involving historical borrower

prepayment activity associated with mortgage loans in the secondary market current market interest rates and other

factors including Horizons own historical prepayment experience For purposes of model valuation estimates are made

for each product type within the mortgage servicing rights portfolio on monthly basis In addition on quarterly basis

lorion engages third party to independently test the value of its servicing asset

Ltrivdtiye Instruments

As part of the Companys asset/liability management program Horizon utilizes from time-to-time interest rate floors

caps or swaps to reduce the Companys sensitivity to interest rate fluctuations These are derivative instruments which are

recorded as assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value Changes in the fair values of derivatives are

reported in the consolidated income statements or other comprehensive income OCI depending on the use of the

derivative and whether the instrument qualifies for hedge accounting The key criterion for the hedge accounting is that

the hedged relationship must be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in those cash flows that are attributable to

the hedged risk both at inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis

Horizons accounting policies related to derivatives reflect the guidance in FASB ASC 815-10 Derivatives that qualify for

the hedge accounting treatment are designated as either hedge of the fair value of the recognized asset or liability or of an

unrecognized firm commitment fair value hedge or hedge of forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to

be received or paid related to recognized asset or liability cash flow hedge For fair value hedges the cumulative

change in fair value of both the hedge instruments and the underlying loans is recorded in non-interest income For cash

flow hedges changes in the fair values of the derivative instruments are reported in OCI to the extent the hedge is

effective The gains and losses on derivative instruments that are reported in OCI are reflected in the consolidated income

statement in the periods in which the results of operations are impacted by the variability of the cash flows of the hedged

item Generally net interest income is increased or decreased by amounts receivable or payable with respect to the

derivatives which qualify for hedge accounting At inception of the hedge Horizon establishes the method it uses for

assessing the effectiveness of the hedging derivative and the measurement approach for determining the ineffective aspect

of the hedge he ineffective portion of the hedge if any is recognized currently in the consolidated statements of

income Horizon excludes the time value expiration of the hedge when measuring ineffectiveness

Valuation Measurements

Valuation methodologies often involve significant degree ofjudgment particularly when there are no observable active

markets for the items being valued Investment securities residential mortgage loans held for sale and derivatives are

carried at fair value as defined in FASB ASC 820 which requires keyjudgments affecting how fair value for such assets

and liabilities is determined In addition the outcomes of valuations have direct bearing on the carrying amounts of

goodwill mortgage servicing rights and pension and other post-retirement benefit obligations To determine the values of

these assets and liabilities as well as the extent to which related assets may be impaired management makes assumptions
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and estimates related to discount rates asset returns prepayment speeds and other factors The use of different discount

rates or other valuation assumptions could produce significantly different results which could affect Horizons results of

operations

Analysis of Financial Condition

Horizons total assets were $1.4 billion as of December 31 2010 an increase of $13.9 million from December 31 2009

Cash and Cash Equival.nts

Due to the economic environment the financial institution industry was experiencing at the beginning of 2009

management determined it would be prudent to maintain higher liquidity levels During that same time the Companys

mortgage warehouse business line was experiencing significant growth due to the increase in mortgage loan refinancing

activity and this also created need for additional liquidity Management put into place several successful strategies during

the first quarter of 2009 to generate the additional liquidity As result the Company maintained excess cash and cash

equivalents at the end of the first quarter and throughout most of the second quarter of 2009 significant portion of that

additional liquidity was generated from municipal money market deposits This funding was designed to match the growth

of assets in the mortgage warehouse business line and provide additional liquidity without utilizing asset based collateral

borrowings or federal fund lines During the second and third quarters the additional funding from the municipal money

market accounts was moved out of the Bank and cash and cash equivalents and the municipal money market accounts

were back to more historic levels but as we moved through the fourth quarter significant portion of those additional

funds were brought back into the Bank During 2010 cash and cash equivalents were maintained at more historic

operating levels as management did not increase levels to maintain additional liquidity Although the Bank does not

anticipate need to maintain the level of excess liquidity as it did in the first half of the 2009 it will continue to provide

deposit services to our local municipalities who require safe and secure institution to maintain their funds

Investment S.curities

Investment securities totaled $391.9 million at December 31 2010 and consisted of Treasury and federal agency securities

of $25.3 million 6.4% state and municipal securities of $141.1 million $131.5 million are available for sale and $9.6

million are held to maturity 36.0% federal agency mortgage-backed pools of $117.9 million and federal agency

collateralized mortgage obligations of $107.2 million 57.4% and corporate securities of $549000 0.1%

As indicated above 57.4% of the investment portfolio consists of mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage

obligations Approximately 1.4% of the portfolio or $5.3 million are private label collateralized mortgage obligations the

remainder are issued by agencies of the Federal Government The private label securities generally have loan to value

ratios of approximately 50% and management feels these securities are not impaired These instruments are secured by

residential mortgages of varying maturities Principal and interest payments are received monthly as the underlying

mortgages are repaid These payments also include prepayments of mortgage balances as borrowers either sell their homes

or refinance their mortgages Therefore mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations have

maturities that are stated in terms of average life The
average

life is the
average amount of time that each dollar of

principal is expected to be outstanding As of December 31 2010 the mortgage-backed securities and collateralized

mortgage obligations in the investment portfolio had an average life of 2.2 years Securities that have interest rates above

current market rates are purchased at premium These securities may experience significant increase in prepayments

when lower market interest rates create an incentive for the borrower to refinance the underlying mortgage as occurred

during 2009 and 2010 This may result in decrease of current income however this risk is mitigated by shorter average

life

Available-for-sale municipal securities are priced by third party using pricing grid which estimates prices based on recent

sales of similar securities All municipal securities are investment grade or local non-rated issues and management does not

believe there is permanent deterioration in market value

At December 31 2010 97.6% and at December 31 2009 96.6% of investment securities were classified as available for

sale Securities classified as available for sale are carried at their fair value with both unrealized gains and losses recorded
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net of tax directly to stockholders equity
Net

appreciation on these securities totaled $5.0 million which resulted in

balance of $3.2 million net of tax included in stockholders equity at December 31 2010 This compared to $5.4 million

net of tax included in stockholders equity at December 31 2009

air value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date fair value hierarchy is also established which requires

an entity to maximize the use of observable and minimize the use of unobservable inputs There are three levels of inputs

that may be used to measure fair value

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities

quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be

corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities

evei Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the

fair value of the assets or liabilities

When quoted market prices are available in an active market securities are classified within Level of the valuation

hierarchy Level securities include Treasury securities and corporate notes If quoted market prices are not available then

fair values are estimated by using pricing models quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics or discounted cash

flows evel securities include Federal agency securities State and municipal securities Federal agency collateralized

mortgage obligations and Federal agency mortgage-backed pools For level securities Horizon uses third party service

to determine fair value In performing the valuations the pricing service relies on models that consider security-specific

details as well as relevant industry and economic factors The most significant of these inputs are quoted market prices

interest rate spreads on relevant benchmark securities and certain prepayment assumptions To verify the reasonableness

of the fair value determination by the service Horizon has portion of the level securities priced by an independent

securities broker dealer

tinrealiied gains and losses on available-for-sale securities deemed temporary are recorded net of income tax in

separate component of other comprehensive income on the balance sheet No unrealized losses were deemed to be

other-than-temporary

loriion had four private label CMOs at December 31 2010 with an amortized cost of $5.2 million and carried at

market value of $5.3 million The gross unrealized gain on these investments at December 31 2010 was approximately

$125000 Management monitors these investments periodically for other than temporary impairment by obtaining and

reviewing the underlying collateral details and has concluded at December 31 2010 this unrealized loss is temporary and

that the Company has the intent and ability to hold these investments to maturity

As member of the Federal Reserve and Federal Home Loan Bank systems Horizon is required to maintain an investment

iii the common stock of each entity The investment in common stock is based on predetermined formula At

Iecember 31 2010 Horizon had investments in the common stock of the Federal Reserve and Federal Home Loan Banks

totaling $13.7 million and at December 31 2009 investments totaled $13.2 million

At December 31 2010 Horizon does not maintain trading account

or more information about securities see Note Investment Securities to the consolidated financial statements

38



HORIZON BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Table dollars in thousands except per share data

Loans

Total loans including loans held for sale and net of deferred fees/costs the principal earning asset of the Bank were

$901.7 million at December 31 2010 The current level of loans is an increase of 1.1% from the December 31 2009 level

of $892.0 million The table below provides comparative detail on the loan categories

Home equity

Unsecured

Other

Sub-prime

31.5%

-10.2%

29.9%

-7.0%

14.4%

-8.8%

8.6%

39.1%

-12.7%

-1.7%

The acceptance and management of credit risk is an integral part of the Banks business as financial intermediary The

Bank has established underwriting standards including policy that monitors the lending function through strict

administrative and reporting requirements as well as an internal loan review of consumer and small business loans The

Bank also uses an independent third-party loan review function that regularly reviews asset quality

Real Estate Loans

Real estate loans totaled $181.3 million or 20.1% of total loans as of December 31 2010 compared to $139.6 million or

15.6% of total loans as of December 31 2009 This
category consists of home mortgages that generally require loan to

value of no more than 80% Some special guaranteed or insured real estate loan programs do permit higher loan to

collateral value ratio The increase during 2010 was primarily related to the purchase of $36.3 million of real estate loans in

the American rust Savings transaction

In addition to the customary real estate loans described above the Bank also has outstanding on December 31 2010 $90.6

million in home equity lines of credit compared to $83.4 million at December 31 2009 Credit lines normally limit the loan

D.c.mb.r 31 D.cmb.r 31 Dollar P.rc.nt

2010 2009 Chancj Chana

Commercial

Working capital and equipment

Real estate including agriculture

Tax exempt

Other

Total

Real estate

14 family including loans held for sale

Other

Total

Consumer

Auto

Recreation

Real estate/home improvement

330018

151414 167149 15735 -9.4A

167785 135639 32146 23.7%

2925 3247 322 -9.9%

7.894 8482 -6.9%

314517 15501 4.9%

Total

Mortgage warehouse

Prime

176311 134076 42235

4957 5519 562

181268 139595 41673

136014 146270 10256

6086 5321 765

29184 32009 2825

90580 83412 7168

3091 2222 869

1726 1976 250

266681 271210 4529

123743 166698 42955

123743 166698 42955
901710 892020 9690

19064 16015 3049
882646 876005 6641

Total

Total loans

Allowance for loan losses

Loans and loans held for sale net

0.0%

-2 5.8%

10/
/0
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to collateral value to rio more than 89% These loans are classified as consumer loans in the table above and in Note of

the consolidated financial statements

Residential real estate lending is highly competitive business As of December 31 2010 the real estate loan portfolio

reflected wide range of interest rates and repayment patterns but could generally be categorized as follows

he increase in fixed rate loans during 2010 was primarily due to the purchase of fixed rate mortgage loans from American

rust Savings Bank During 2010 and 2009 approximately $281.7 million and $335.9 million of residential mortgages

were sold into the secondary market In addition to the real estate loan portfolio the Bank sells real estate loans and

retains the servicing rights Loans serviced for others are not included in the consolidated balance sheets The unpaid

principal balances of loans serviced for others totaled approximately $463.5 million and $313.3 million at December 31

2010 and 2009

he Bank began capitalizing mortgage servicing rights during 2000 and the aggregate fair value of capitalized mortgage

servicing rights at December 31 2010 totaled approximately $3.7 million Comparable market values and valuation

model that calculates the present value of future cash flows were used to estimate fair value For purposes of measuring

impairment risk characteristics including product type investor type and interest rates were used to stratify the originated

mortgage servicing rights

Mortgag wvlcing riits

Balances January

Servicing rights capitalized

Amortiation of servicing rights

Impairment allowance

Balances December 31

D.c.mb.r 31 D.c.nib.r 31

2010 2009

Cornm.rcial Loans

Commercial loans totaled $330.0 million or 36.6% of total loans as of December 31 2010 compared to $314.5 million or

35.3% as of December 31 2009

xpi raif

Monthly payrTwIrl

Iiweekly pyrm
AdjtjstabI

Monthly ayrnrrt

l5weikly pJlynwrft

IIIi toijl

IdriS twill 101 dtr

cial riai state loans

64599

920

D.gs...b.r 31 2010 D.o.n.r 31 21
Pwount ci P.ro.ni

Amoimi PonfoIIo Amciaii Poidolio Ylsid

39.8%

0.6%

96916 59.7%

0.0%

162.435 100.0%

18833

181.268

48% 24231 18.1% 5.94%

6.29% 1519 1.2% 6.71%

5.29% 108.072 80.7% 5.68%

0.00% 0.0% 3.75%

31% 133892 100.0% 5.74%

5703

139595

D.c.mb.r 31

2008

3010 732 276

2000 2807 634

835 529 78

4175 3010 732

803 139
3372 2871 728
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Commercial loans consisted of the following types of loans at December 31

SBA quarariteed baits

Ilurricipal gover lirneot

Lines of credit

Peal estate and uiprnerfl term loans

otal

31 2010

D.osnb 31 2010 D.osmb 31 2009

P.rosnt of Pso.nt of

Numb Amotait Pofo1io Numb Amount Poitlolóo

93 14909 4.5% 53 1915 25%
918 0.3% 995 03%

355 41601 12.6% 389 53587 17.0%

944 272583 82.6% 805 252019 80 2X

1393 330017 100.0% 1248 314516 100.0%

Fixed rate term loans with book value of $48.0 million and fair value of $50.1 million have been swapped to variable

rate using derivative instruments The loans are carried at fair value in the financial statements and the related swap is

carried at fair value and is included with other liabilities in the balance sheet The recognition of the loan and swap fair

values are recorded in the income statement and for 2009 equally offset each other Fair values are determined by the

counter party using proprietary model that uses live market inputs to value interest rate swaps The model is subject to

daily market tests as current and future positions are priced and valued These are level inputs under the fair value

hierarchy as described above

At December 31 2010 the commercial loan portfolio had $68.6 million of adjustable rate loans that had interest rate floors

in the terms of the note Of the commercial loans with interest rate floors $58.9 million where at their floor at December

Consumer Loans

Consumer loans totaled $266.7 million or 29.6% of total loans as of December 31 2010 compared to $271.2 million or

30.4% as of December 31 2009 The total consumer loan portfolio decreased 1.7% in 2010 The decline occurred

primarily in the indirect automobile and direct installment loan segments The slow down in the automobile market has

contributed to the drop in loans as existing loans paid off at faster rate than new loans were booked Direct installment

loan declines were the result of slow economy as there was lower consumer loan demand

Mortgage Warehouse Loans

Horizons mortgage warehousing business line has specific mortgage companies as customers of Horizon Bank Individual

mortgage loans originated by these mortgage companies are funded as secured borrowing with pledge of collateral under

Horizons agreement with the mortgage company Each individual mortgage is assigned to Horizon until the loan is sold

to the secondary market by the mortgage company In addition Horizon takes possession of each original note and

forwards such note to the end investor once the mortgage company has sold the loan At the time loan is transferred to

the secondary market the mortgage company repurchases the loan under its option within the agreement Due to the

repurchase feature contained in the agreement the transaction does not qualify as sale and therefore is accounted for as

secured borrowing with pledge of collateral pursuant to the agreement with the mortgage company When the individual

loan is sold to the end investor by the mortgage company the proceeds from the sale of the loan are received by Horizon

and used to payoff the loan balance with Horizon along with any accrued interest and any related fees The remaining
balance from the sale is forwarded to the mortgage company These individual loans typically are sold by the mortgage

company within 30 days and are seldom held more than 90 days Interest income is accrued during this period and

collected at the time each loan is sold Fee income for each loan sold is collected when the loan is sold and no costs are

deferred due to the term between each loan funding and related payoff is typically less than 30 days

Based on the agreements with each mortgage company at any time mortgage company can repurchase from Horizon

their outstanding loan balance on an individual mortgage and regain possession of the original note Horizon also has the

option to request that the mortgage company repurchase an individual mortgage Should this occur Horizon would return

the original note and reassign the assignment of the mortgage to the mortgage company Also in the event that the end

investor would not be able to honor the sales commitment and the mortgage company would not be able to repurchase its

loan on an individual mortgage Horizon would be able to exercise its rights under the agreement
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Allowanc and Provision for Loan Losses/Critical Accounting Policy

At December 31 2010 the allowance for loan losses was $19.1 million or 2.11% of total loans outstanding compared to

$16.0 million or 1.80% at December 31 2009 During 2010 the expense for provision for loan losses totaled $11.6

million compared to $13.6 million in 2009

Horizon assesses the adequacy of its Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses ALLL by regularly reviewing the performance

of all of its loan portfolios As result of its quarterly reviews provision for loan losses is determined to bring the total

AILL to level called for by the analysis For the year 2010 the provision of $11.6 million is 15.1% decrease from the

prior year oan charge-offs continue to require provisions for loan losses during the year
but appeared to be stabilizing as

the amount of charge-offs have trended down during
2010 compared to 2009 However as non-performing loans

increased specific reserves were identified for these loans and the use of higher historical charge-off ratios in the

allowance for loan loss calculation required additional provision expense for loan losses

Despite the increased allowance no assurance can be given that Horizon will not in any particular period sustain loan

losses that are significant in relation to the amount reserved or that subsequent evaluations of the loan portfolio in light of

factors then prevailing including economic conditions and managements ongoing quarterly assessments of the portfolio

will not require
increases in the allowance for loan losses Horizon considers the allowance for loan losses to be

appropriate to cover losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of December 31 2010

Non-p.rforming Loans

Non-performing loans are defined as loans that are greater than 90 days delinquent or have had the accrual of interest

discontinued by management Management continues to work diligently toward returning non-performing loans to an

earning asset basis Non-performing loans for the previous three years ending December 31 are as follows

D.c.nib.r 31 D.c.mb.r 31 D.c.nib.r 31

2010 2009 2008

Non-performing loans 21428 11145 7863

P.ro.nt Sp.cöfic P.sc.nt of

of Rss.rvoa on Non Non-p.rfonning

D.osmb.r 31 2010 ______________________________
Loans Prforming Loans Loans

wrwr occupied real estate 0.83% 385 36.95%

Non owner occupied real estate 462% 665 10.51%

Resdentiai development 3.06% 142 53.38%

Commercial arid ndustriai 0.76% 265 59.55%

otal commercial 2.45% 1457 18.03%

Residential mortgage
5.31% 10.39%

Residentuai construction 0.00% 0.00%

Mortgage warehouse 0.00% 0.00%

lotal real estate 3.06% 10.39%

irect installment 1.15% 340.07%

ninlir ect inistal Innenin 1.12% 0.00%

loom equity _________________________________________________
2.03%

__________________
0.00%

otl consumer 1.51% 24.28%

Total loans 2.38% 3402 15.88%

Allowance for loan losses
_________________________

N.t loans 2.43% 3402

Non

P.rforming

Loans

Loan

BaIaio

125909 1042

137073 6329

8694 266

58342 445

330018 8.082

173800 9326

7468

123743

305011 9326

25058 28

128129 1431

113494 2302

266681 4020

901710 21428

19064
882646 21428

969

969

976

976

Residential mortgage total includes Held for Sale mortgage loans
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Non-performing loans total 112.4% 1071% and 68.9% of the allowance for loan losses at December 31 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively Non-performing loans at December 31 2010 totaled $21.4 million which was 2.38% of total loans

This is an increase from balance of $17.1 million on December 31 2009 which was 1.92% of total loans Horiions non-

performing loan statistics while having increased from the prior year still compare favorably to National and State of

Indiana
peer bank averages1 of 4.77% and 2.55% of total loans as of December 31 2010

Non-performing commercial loans decreased by $1.1 million from December 31 2009 This decrease came from the

commercial real estate residential development and commercial and industrial segments of the portfolio Non-owner

occupied real estate non-performing increased $4.6 million primarily due to $4.5 million loan secured by hotel that was

placed on non-accrual in 2010 This loan is current and making interest only payments which are being applied to the

principal balance and the real estate collateral is for sale Economic conditions are the primary reason for causing

distressed demand for real estate and durable goods and many real estate developers and small businesses are experiencing

declines in revenue and profits

The increase in non-performing loans over the past year is also due to an increase in real estate and consumer installment

borrowers under Chapter 13 bankruptcy repayment plans As of December 31 2010 non-performing loans include $1.8

million of real estate loans and $2.3 million of consumer loans that were in bankruptcy The
majority of the borrowers

under Chapter 13 repayment plans are paying as agreed but these loans remain on non-accrual status until six consecutive

payments are made as agreed under the plan Because of the time it takes for repayment plans to be approved and the six

consecutive payments to be made the level of non-performing consumer installment loans have increased as the level of

charge-offs in the consumer portfolio has decreased The Company also saw an increase in troubled debt restructuring

TDRs during 2010 The balance of TDRs as of December 31 2010 that were accruing interest was $4.1 million

primarily in real estate loans and $278000 on non-accrual The increase in the Companys non-performing loans over the

past year can be attributed to the slower economy and continued high local unemployment causing lower business

revenues and increased consumer bankruptcies

Non-accrual loans totaled $17.0 million on December 31 2010 up from $11.9 million on December 31 2009 Non-accrual

loans to hotel owners totaled $4.5 million to home builders and land developers $1.2 million to restaurant operators $1.0

million and to other commercial loans totaled approximately $800000 Mortgage loans on non-accrual totaled $5.7

million at December 31 2010 Consumer loans on non-accrual increased to $3.7 million primarily due to an increase in the

number of consumer bankruptcy filings

Loans 90 days delinquent but still accruing interest totaled $358000 on December 31 2010 down from $1.8 million on

December 31 2009 Horions policy is to place loans over 90 days delinquent on non-accrual unless they are in the

process of collection and full recovery is expected

loan becomes impaired when based on current information it is probable that creditor will be unable to collect all

amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement When loan is classified as impaired the degree of

impairment must be recogniied by estimating future cash flows from the debtor The present value of these cash flows is

computed at discount rate based on the interest rate contained in the loan agreement However if particular loan has

determinable market value the creditor may use that value Also if the loan is secured and considered collateral dependent

the creditor may use the fair value of the collateral See Note of the audited financial statements for further discussion of

impaired loans

Smaller-balance homogeneous loans are evaluated for impairment in total Such loans include residential first mortgage

loans secured by family residences residential construction loans automobile home equity second mortgage loans

and mortgage warehouse loans Commercial loans and mortgage loans secured by other properties are evaluated

individually for impairment When analysis of borrower operating results and financial condition indicate that underlying

cash flows of borrowers business are not adequate to meet its debt service requirements the loan is evaluated for

impairment Often this is associated with delay or shortfall in payments of 30 days or more Loans are generally moved
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to non-accrual status when 90 days or more past due These loans are often considered impaired Impaired loans or

portions thereof are charged off when deemed uncollectible

Other Real Estate Owned OREO net of any related allowance for OREO losses for the previous three years ending

December 31 are as follows

D.c.nib.r 31 December 31 D.c.mb.r 31

2010 2009 2008

Other real estate owned 2664 1730 2772

OREO totaled $2.7 million on December 31 2010 up from $1.7 million on December 31 2009 At December 31 2010

ORFO was comprised of 17 properties Of these seven totaling $2.0 million were commercial and ten totaling $684000

were residential real estate There was no repossessed personal property on December 31 2010 Horizon currently has

$1 million of OREO under contract to sell with closing dates scheduled within the next 90 days

No mortgage warehouse loans were non-performing or OREO as of December 31 2010 2009 or 2008

Deferred Tax Asset

Horizon had deferred tax asset at December 31 2010 and 2009 totaling $2.0 million and $701000 The following table

shows the major components of deferred tax

Dcemb.r 31

2009

Liabilities

Depreciation

Difference in expense recognition

Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends

Difference in basis of intangible assets

FHLB Penalty

Unrealized gain on securities available for sale

Other _________________________________

Total liabilities
_____________________________________

Net deferred tax asset
___________________________________

lorizori anticipates continued earnings and therefore determined there is no impairment to this asset

Deposits

he primary source of funds for the Bank comes from the acceptance of demand and time deposits However at times

the Bank will use its ability to borrow funds from the Federal Home Loan Bank and other sources when it can do so at

interest rates and terms that are superior to those required for deposited funds or loan demand is greater than the ability to

grow deposits Total deposits were $985.5 million at December 31 2010 compared to $951.7 million at December 31

Dec.mber 31

Assets

Allowance for loan losses

Director and employee benefits

Other

Total assets

2010

6946 5849

1371 1.057

102 32

8419 6938

1147 1241
51 148

298 298

1682 1547

1417

1746 2930

80 73
6421 6237

1998 701
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2009 or an increase of 3.6% Average deposits and rates by category for the three years ended December 31 are as

follows

22150

48887

Av.rg Balano Outstanding for th

Y.ar EndinQosn1b.r 31

20002010 ZOOS 2010 ZOOS

Av.r.g Rat Paid for th
Ysar Endio.nib.r 31

2009

0.2X 0.57% 136%

0.23% 0.18% 029%

0.16% 0.83% 1.56%

2.60% 3.21% 3.96%

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 91665 84209 11600

Interest-bearing demand deposes 359411 261411 234.526

Savings deposfts 61115 35828 31182

Money market 78561 121983 95483

me deposits 372.379 381.033 312677

Totaldeposits 969191 884.464 811468

The $84.7 million increase in average deposits during 2010 was primarily from the $97.7 million in deposits assumed from

American Trust Savings Bank transaction Horizon continually revises and enhances its interest-bearing consumer and

commercial demand deposit products based on local market conditions and its need for funding to support various types

of assets These product changes caused the changes in the average balances and rates paid as displayed in the table above

Certificates of deposit of $100000 or more which are considered to be rate sensitive and are not considered part of core

deposits mature as follows as of December 31 2010

Due in three months or less 18417

Due after three months through six months

Due after six months through one year

Due after one year
116676

Total 206130

Interest expense on time certificates of $100000 or more was approximately $4.5 million $6.3 million and $3.9 million for

2010 2009 and 2008

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31 2010 Horizon does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to

have current or future effect on the Companys financial condition change in financial condition revenues or expenses

results of operations liquidity capital expenditures or capital resources that are material to investors The term ofT-

balance sheet arrangement generally means any transaction agreement or other contractual arrangement to which an

entity unconsolidated with the Company is party under which the Company has any obligation arising under

guarantee contract derivative instrument or variable interest or ii retained or contingent interest in assets transferred to

such entity or similar arrangement that serves as credit liquidity or market risk support for such assets
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Contractual Obligations

he following tables summarize Horizons contractual obligations and other commitments to make payment as of

Iecember 31 2010

Within On to Thr to After Five

Total On Y.ar Thr. Years Fit V.ars Years

eposirs 368939 183851 106100 33713 45215

orrowtrigs1 260741 78255 26024 41708 114154

SitxedIrated clebentuets 30584 30584

IncIu1e debt obligations to the ederal Home oan Bank and term repurchase agreements with maturities beyond one ye
1xrrowed by Horizons banking subsidiary See Note 11 in Horizons Consolidated Financial Statements

lucleicies Trust Preferred Capital Securities issued by Horizon Statutory Trusts II and Ill and those assumed in the acquisition of

Alliance See Note 12 in Horizons Consolidated Financial Statements

Expiration by P.riod

Gr.at.r

Within On Than

Y.ar On Year

894 226etters of credit

Unfunded loan commitments 77908 174520

Capital Resources

he capital resources of Horizon and the Bank exceed regulatory capital ratios for well capitalized banks at December

31 2010 Stockholders equity totaled $112.3 million as of December 31 2010 compared to $114.6 million as of

December 31 2009 At year-end 2010 the ratio of stockholders equity to assets was 8.01% compared to 8.26% for 2009

angible equity to tangible assets was 7.44% at December 31 2010 compared to 7.78% at December 31 2009 Book value

per common share at December 31 2010 increased to $28.68 compared to $27.67 at December 31 2009 Horizons

capital decreased during 2010 as result of decrease in other comprehensive income dividends declared and the

redemption of preferred stock offset by earnings and exercise of stock options net of tax

In December of 2008 Horizon received an investment of $25 million through participation in the U.S Department of

reasurys Treasury Capital Purchase Program Under the program the Treasury acquired 25000 Series shares of

Horizons Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock that will pay
5% per annum dividend for the first five years

ol the investment which will total $1250000 year and 9% per annum thereafter which will total $2250000 year

unless Horizon redeems the shares The preferred shares qualify as Tier capital and are callable by Horizon after three

years
As part of its investment the Treasury also received warrant to purchase 212104 shares of common stock of

Horion with an exercise price of $17.68 per share The warrant is expected to give the Treasury the opportunity to

benefit from an increase in the common stock price of the Company

On November 2010 the Company received approval to redeem 25% or $6.25 million of the Treasurys original $25.0

million preferred stock investment in the Company from the Capital Purchase Program which is program of TARP On

November 10 2010 the Company completed the redemption process reducing the Treasurys preferred stock investment

in the Company to $18.75 million This repurchase will result in annual savings of $312500 or $0.10 per share due to the

elimination of the associated preferred dividends Horizon has also applied for $19 million loan under the recently

implemented Small Business Loan Fund program the SBLF and if its application is approved Horizon plans to

repurchase the remaining $18.5 million in Series Preferred Shares from Treasury with those proceeds Enacted into law

as part of the Small Business Jobs Act of 2010 the SBLF is $30 billion fund that encourages lending to small businesses

by providing
Tier capital to qualified community banks with assets of less than $10 billion The SBLF program provides

an option for community banks to refinance preferred stock issued to Treasury through the Capital Purchase Program and

the SBLI program does not impose many of the restrictions that Horizon is currently subject to under TARP There can
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be no assurance however that Horizon will receive the SBLF funds and if Horizon does not receive those funds its plan

is to repurchase the remaining preferred shares over the next three years from the Companys earnings

Horizon declared dividends in the amount of $.68 per share in 2010 $.68 per share in 2009 and $66 per share in 2008

The dividend payout ratio dividends as percent of net income was 25.1% for 2010 28.7% for 2009 and 24.0% for

2008 For additional information regarding dividend conditions see Note of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

In October of 2004 Horizon formed Horizon Statutory Trust II Trust wholly owned statutory business trust Trust

II issued $10.3 million of Trust Preferred Capital Securities as participant in pooled trust preferred securities offering

The proceeds from the sale of the trust preferred securities were used by the trust to purchase an equivalent amount of

subordinated debentures from Horizon Thejunior subordinated debentures are the sole assets of Trust II and are fully

and unconditionally guaranteed by Horizon Thejunior subordinated debentures and the trust preferred securities pay

interest and dividends on quarterly basis Thejunior subordinated debentures and the securities bear interest at rate of

90 day LIBOR plus 1.95% and mature on October 21 2034 and are non-callable for five years from the issue date After

that period the securities may be called at any quarterly interest payment date at par Costs associated with the issuance of

the securities totaling $17500 were capitalized and are being amortized to the first call date of the securities

In December of 2006 Horizon formed Horizon Bancorp Capital Trust III Trust III wholly owned statutory business

trust Trust III issued $1 2.4 million of Trust Preferred Capital Securities as participant in pooled trust preferred

securities offering The proceeds from the sale of the trust preferred securities were used by the trust to purchase an

equivalent amount of subordinated debentures from Horizon Thejunior subordinated debentures are the sole assets of

Trust III and are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Horizon Thejunior subordinated debentures and the trust

preferred securities pay interest and dividends on quarterly basis Thejunior subordinated debentures and the securities

bear interest at rate of 90 day LI BOR plus 1.65% and mature on January 30 2037 and are non-callable for five years

from the issue date After that period the securities may be called at any quarterly interest payment date at par Costs

associated with the issuance of the securities totaling $12647 were capitalized and are being amortized to the first call date

of the securities The proceeds of this issue were used to redeem the securities issued by Trust on March 26 2007

The Company assumed additional debentures as the result of the acquisition of Alliance in 2005 In June 2004 Alliance

formed Alliance Financial Statutory Trust wholly owned business trust Alliance Trust to sell $5.2 million in trust

preferred securities The proceeds from the sale of the trust preferred securities were used by the trust to purchase an

equivalent amount of subordinated debentures from Alliance The junior subordinated debentures are the sole assets of

Alliance Trust and are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Horizon Thejunior subordinated debentures arid the trust

preferred securities pay interest and dividends on quarterly basis Thejunior subordinated debentures and the securities

bear interest at rate of 90-day LIBOR plus 2.65% mature in June 2034 and are non-callable for five years from the issue

date After that period the securities may be called at any quarterly interest payment date at par

The Company assumed additional debentures as the result of the American Trust Savings Bank purchase and

assumption in 2010 In March 2004 Am Tru Inc the holding company for American Trust Savings Bank formed Am

Tru Statutory Trust wholly owned business trust Am Tru Trust to sell $3.6 million in trust preferred securities The

proceeds from the sale of the trust preferred securities were used by the trust to purchase an equivalent amount of

subordinated debentures from Am Tru Inc Thejunior subordinated debentures are the sole assets of Am Tru Trust and

are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Horizon The junior subordinated debentures and the trust preferred securities

pay interest and dividends on quarterly basis Thejunior subordinated debentures and the securities bear interest at rate

of 90-day LIBOR plus 2.85% mature in March 2034 and are non-callable for five years After that period the securities

may be called at any quarterly interest payment date at par

he Trust Preferred Capital Securities subject to certain limitations are included in er Capital for regulatory purposes

Dividends on the Trust Preferred Capital Securities are recorded as interest expense
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Results of Op.rations

Net Income

Consolidated net income was $10.5 million or $2.71 per diluted share in 2010 $9.1 million or $2.37 per diluted share in

2009 and $9.0 million or $2.75 per share in 2008 Diluted earnings per share were reduced by $0.43 for the twelve months

ending December 31 2010 and 2009 resulting from the preferred stock dividends and the accretion of the discount on the

preferred stock The preferred stock was issued late in the fourth quarter 2008 and therefore did not significantly impact

diluted earnings per share for the twelve month periods ending December 31 2008

Net Interest Income

he largest component of net income is net interest income Net interest income is the difference between interest

income principally from loans and investment securities and interest expense principally on deposits and borrowings

Changes in the net interest income are the result of changes in volume and the net interest spread which affects the net

interest margin Volume refers to the average dollar levels of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities Net

interest spread refers to the difference between the average yield on interest-earning assets and the average cost of interest-

bearing liabilities Net interest margin refers to net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets and is

influenced by the level and relative mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities

he reduction in interest rates during
2010 and 2009 has influenced the cost of the Companys interest bearing liabilities

more significantly than the reduction in yields received on the Companys interest earning assets resulting in an increase of

the net interest margin during 2010 and 2009 Management believes that the current level of interest rates is driven by

external factors and therefore impacts the results of the Companys net interest margin Management does not expect

significant rise in interest rates in the short term but an increase in rates is expected at some time in the future due to the

current historically low interest rate environment

Net interest income during 2010 was $47.6 million an increase of $2.8 million or 6.3% over the $44.8 million earned in

2009 Yields on the Companys interest-earning assets decreased by 45 basis points to 5.40% during 2010 from 5.85% in

2009 Interest income decreased $4.2 million to $68.5 million for 2010 from $72.7 million in 2009 This decrease was due

to the lower yield on interest earning assets partially offset by the increased volume in interest earning assets

Rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities decreased by 64 basis points during the same period due to the lower interest rate

environment Interest expense decreased $7.0 million from $27.9 million for 2009 to $20.9 million in 2010 This decrease

was due to the lower rates being paid on the Companys interest bearing liabilities but offset by the increased volume of

interest bearing liabilities Due to more significant decrease in the rates paid on the Companys interest-bearing liabilities

compared to the decrease in the yield on the Companys interest-earning assets offset with the growth of the Companys

interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities the net interest margin increased 14 basis points from 3.66% for 2009

to 3.80% in 2010
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11.600

1.901

16 491

1.203.563

lorion has no foreign office and accordingly no assets or liabilities to foreign operations Iorizons subsidiary bank had no funds invested in

urodollar Certificates of Deposit at December 31 2010

Yields are presented on tax-equivalent basis

Non-accruing loans for the purpose of the computations above are included in the daily average loan amounts outstanding oan totals are

shown net of unearned income and deferred loans fees

oan fees and late fees included in interest on loans aggregated $3.9 million $4 million and $3.5 million in 2010 2009 and 2008

2010 200
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1278 1379 2657
206 604 398

3098 914 2184

4172 1068 5240

4081 1225 5306

3220 1.851 1.369

282 218 64

7019 408 6611
2847 1476 1371

387 150 537

132 15 147

2293 3283 990
619 1025 406

35 2936 2901
2428 7409 4981

4744 1644 6388
76 1486 1562

111 171
4991 3130 8121
1419 4219 3140

Net interest income during 2009 was $44.8 million an increase of $7.4 million or 19.8% over the $37.4 million earned in

2008 Yields on the Companys interest-earning assets decreased by 52 basis points to 5.85% during 2009 from 6.37% in

ASSETS
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2008 Interest income increased $2.5 million from $70.2 million for 2008 to $72.7 million in 2009 This increase was due

to the increased volume in interest earning assets partially offset by the decrease in the yield on interest earning assets

Rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities decreased by 72 basis points during the same period due to the lower interest rate

environment Interest expense decreased $5.0 million from $32.9 million for 2008 to $27.9 million in 2009 This decrease

was due to the lower rates being paid on the Companys interest bearing liabilities but offset by the increased volume of

interest bearing liabilities Due to more significant decrease in the rates paid on the Companys interest-bearing liabilities

compared to the decrease in the yield on the Companys interest-earning assets offset with the growth of the Companys
interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities the net interest margin increased 21 basis points from 3.45% for 2008

to 3.66% in 2009

Changes in the mix of the loan portfolio averages are shown in the following table

Commercial

Real estate

Mortgage warehouse

Consumer

Total average loans

Provision for Loan Loss.s

criion assesses the adequacy of its Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses ALLL by regularly reviewing the

performance of its loan portfolios During 2010 the provision for loan losses totaled $11.6 million compared to $13.6

million in the prior year Commercial loan net charge-offs during 2010 were $3.9 million residential mortgage loan net

charge-offs were $81 1000 and installment loan net charge-offs were $5.1 million Loan charge-offs continue to require

provisions for loan losses during the year but appeared to be stabilizing as the amount of charge-offs have trended down

during 2010 compared to 2009 However the increase in non-performing loans as specific reserves were identified for

these loans and the use of higher historical charge-off ratios in the allowance for loan loss calculation required additional

provision expense for loan losses

Non-int.r.st ncorns

he following is summary of changes in non-interest income

2001 to 2010 2008 to 2000

D.o.mb.r 31 D.cwib 31 Amount P.rc.nt D.o.nib.r 31 Amount P.rcwt

2010 2001 Chang Chang 2000 Ch.ng Ch.n
3607 3858 251 -6.5% 3885 27 -0.1%

756 921 165 -119% 528 393 14.4%

2247 1864 383 20.5X 846 1018 120.3%

3171 3336 643 19.3% 3113 317 -10.2%

533 195 262 330% 15 810 -5400.OX

7538 6101 1431 23.4% 2979 3128 105.0%

565 134 431 321.6% 20 154 -110.0%

803 720 83 11.5% 920 200 -21 .1Xi

0.0% 538 538 -100.0%

1008 389 619 159.1X 417 28 6.1%

11101 17856 2050 11.5% 13831 4025 29.1X

Iuring 2010 the Company originated approximately $281.7 million of mortgage loans to be sold on the secondary market

compared to $335.9 million last year Better pricing and execution in the secondary market has generated higher

percentage gains on the sale of mortgage loans compared to the same period in 2009 in addition to higher overall gain on

D.c.mb.r 31 D.c.mb.r 31 D.c.mbir 31

2009 20082010

320783 313623 305127

163597 147765 182963

124787 157057 77091

269014 273986 283098

878181 892431 848279

Non- Nitsrst uncoin

Service charqe on deposui accounts

VIire trarrsfir fee

titer flarrqr tries

iduciary act iviiies

kiss no sale of secur ties

Gain on sale at rlOrtgage loans

Mortqaqe servicing
net of impairment

riiiiasr iii cash surrender value of batik

owned life irisrirarxc

eath tenet it on off ice life insurance

Oilier irncnnrnii

Total non-intsrsst inoom
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sale of mortgage loans compared to the prior year Wire transfer fee income decreased compared to the prior year as the

Companys mortgage warehouse business line had less activity due to decreased residential mortgage loan refinancing

volume compared to the same period in 2009 The decrease in service charge income has been the result of reduced

overdraft fee income as the number of consumer overdrafts has gone down Also due to the low interest rate

environment refinancing activity and lower origination volume the mortgage servicing right asset had net impairment

during the period These decreases were offset by increases in fiduciary income from the trust department due to

improved market values of managed assets and an increase in the interchange fees due to higher levels of activity in ATM
and debit card transactions The net gain on the sale of securities of $533000 was the result of reallocating select

municipal securities to reduce concentration risks as well as an analysis that determined that market conditions provided
the opportunity to add gains to capital without negatively impacting long term earnings Other income for 2010 included

$393000 from the gain on sale of OREO compared to $9000 loss on the sale of OREO in 2009

Non-interest Expense
The following is summary of changes in non-interest expense

Non-ini.rt .xp.ns

Salaries

Commission and bonuses

mpioyee benefits

Net occupancy expenses

lata processing

Professional tees

Outside services and consultants

oan expense

lIC deposit insurance

Other losses

Other expenses

Total non-sntsist .xp.ns

2009to2010 200$to2009

Dicinibir 31 Dscimb.r 31 Amount Pirc.nt D.c.inb.r 31 Amount Pirc.nt

2010 2009 Ch.ng Chang 2009 Ch.ng Ching
14399 12518 1878 15.0% 11730 788 6.7%

3731 3221 510 15.8% 1947 1214 65.4%

3913 3465 498 14.4% 3072 393 12.8%

4195 3796 399 10.5% 3715 21 0.6X

1925 1582 343 21.1% 1437 145 10.1%

1701 1413 288 20.4% 1133 280 24.7X

1994 1471 223 15.2% 1313 158 12.0%

3209 2611 591 22.9% 2223 388 115%

1935 2126 491 -23.1% 546 1580 289.4%

504 510 -1.2% 413 91 23.5%

5119 5099 520 10.2% 5190 91 -1.8%

42571 37812 4759 12.6% 32779 5033 15.4%

During 2010 the Company expensed $664000 of transaction costs related to the purchase and assumption of American

Trust Savings Bank These one time expenses impacted salaries and employee benefits by $145000 data processing by
$170000 professional fees by $232000 outside services and consultants by $60000 and other expenses by $57000
Salaries commission and bonuses and employee benefits increased during 2010 compared to the same period in 2009
This increase is the result of additional payroll expense from the consolidation of the American Trust Savings Bank

ATSB transaction that closed at the end of the second quarter the expansion into Kalamaioo Michigan an increase in

bonus accruals based on the Companys performance during 2010 and higher health care costs Net occupancy expenses
increased during 2010 primarily due to the ATSB transaction Loan expense increased in 2010 compared to the same

period in 2009 due to problem loan bankruptcy and collection costs Professional fees were higher compared to last
year

due to litigation costs and increasing rules and regulations requiring additional professional assistance and as result of the

American Trust Savings Bank acquisition The Companys FDIC expense decreased due to the $663000 recorded in the

second quarter of 2009 for the special FDIC assessment All other categories of non-interest expense did not have

significant change from the prior year

Income Taxes

Income tax expense for 2010 was $2.9 million compared to $2.1 million of tax expense for during 2009 The effective tax

rate for 2010 was 22.0% compared to 18.5% in 2009 and 17.2% in 2008

lax refunds were received in both 2009 and 2008 in the amounts of $100000 and $163000 Considering the impact of the

$538000 of income received in the second quarter of 2008 from the death benefit on officer life insurance which was tax

free and reduced taxable income and the tax refunds received in both periods the effective tax rates would have been
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19.4% or 2009 compared to 20.% in 2008 The increase in the effective tax rate in 2010 was primarily due to higher

income before income tax

Liquidity and Rat S.nitivity Manag.m.nt

Management and the Board of Directors meet regularly to review both the liquidity and rate sensitivity position of

Horizon Effective asset and liability management ensures Horizons ability to monitor the cash flow requirements of

depositors along with the demands of borrowers and to measure and manage interest rate risk Horizon utilizes an interest

rate risk assessment model designed to highlight sources of existing interest rate risk and consider the effect of these risks

on strategic planning Management maintains within certain parameters an essentially balanced ratio of interest sensitive

assets to liabilities in order to protect against the effects of wide interest rate fluctuations

Liquidity

he Bank maintains stable base of core deposits provided by long standing relationships with consumers and local

businesses hese deposits are the principal source of liquidity for Horizon Other sources of liquidity for Horizon

include earnings loan repayments investment security sales and maturities sale of real estate loans and borrowing

relationships with correspondent banks including the Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB and the Federal Reserve Bank

RB At December 31 2010 Horizon has available approximately $380.8 million in available credit from various money

center banks including the FHLB and the FRB Discount Window Factors which could impact Horizons funding needs

in the future include

Horizon has outstanding borrowings of over $88.8 million with the FHLB and total borrowing capacity with the

HLB of $302.9 million Generally the loan terms from the FHLB are better than the terms Horizon can receive

from other sources making it cheaper to borrow money from the FHLB Continued and additional financial

difficulties at the FHLB could reduce or eliminate Horizons additional borrowing capacity with the FHLB

If residential mortgage loan rates remain low Horizons mortgage warehouse loans could increase creating an

additional need for funding

Horizon has total of $94.0 million of Federal Fund lines from various money center banks These are

uncommitted lines and could be pulled at any time by the correspondent banks

Horizon has total of $99.3 million of available collateral at the Federal Reserve Bank secured by municipal

securities securities may mature call or be sold reducing the available collateral

downgrade in Horizons public credit rating by rating agency due to factors such as deterioration in asset

quality large charge to earnings decline in profitability or other financial measures or significant merger or

acquisition

An act of terrorism or war natural disasters political events or the default or bankruptcy of major corporation

mutual fund hedge fund or government agency

Market speculation or rumors about Horizon or the banking industry in general may adversely affect the cost and

availability of normal funding sources

Horizon anticipates spending $3.4 million for premises and equipment during 2011 including one full service

office These purchases will be funded through normal operations

It any of these events occur they could force Horizon to borrow money from other sources including negotiable

certificates of deposit Such other monies may only be available at higher interest rates and on less advantageous terms

which will impact our net income and could impact our ability to grow Management believes Horizon has adequate

funding sources to meet short and long term needs

lorizon maintains liquidity contingency plan that outlines the process for addressing liquidity crisis The plan provides

for an evaluation of funding sources under various market conditions It also assigns specific roles and responsibilities for

effectively managing liquidity through problem period

In
response to financial crisis that was affecting the banking system and financial markets in 2008 EESA was signed into

law on October 2008 and established TARP As part of TARP the Treasury established the CPP to provide up to
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$700 billion of funding to eligible financial institutions through the purchase of mortgages mortgage-backed securities

capital stock and other financial instruments for the purpose of stabilizing and providing liquidity to the U.S financial

markets On December 19 2008 Horizon completed the sale to the Treasury of $25.0 million of Series Preferred Shares

as part of the CPP On November 10 2010 Horizon redeemed $6.25 million of the Series Preferred Shares using excess

cash at the holding company

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ARRA more commonly known as the economic stimulus or

economic recovery package was signed into law on February 17 2009 by President Obama ARRA includes wide

variety of programs intended to stimulate the economy and provide for extensive infrastructure energy health and

education needs In addition ARRA imposes certain new executive compensation and corporate expenditure limits on all

current and future TARP recipients including Horizon until the institution has repaid the Treasury which is permitted

under ARRA without penalty and without the need to raise new capital subject to the Treasurys consultation with the

recipients appropriate regulatory agency

During 2010 cash flows were generated primarily from the sales maturities and prepayments of investment securities of

$215.8 million and the reduction in loans of $30.3 million Cash flows were used to purchase investments totaling $228.6

million reduce deposits by $64.2 million and reduce borrowings by net $32.0 million The net cash and cash equivalent

position decreased by $53.0 million during 2010

The following table sets forth contractual obligations and other commitments representing required and potential cash

outflows as of December 31 2010 Interest on subordinated debentures and long-term borrowed funds is calculated based

on current contractual interest rates

Aft. on Aft. Ur. Aft.

Within but within but within hv
dollars ri thousands Total on y..r Uir y.ars five y..rs ysars

Remaining contractual maturities of time deposits 368939 183851 106100 33772 45216

Borrowings 260741 108839 26023 41707 84172

Subordinated debentures 30584 30584

oan Commitments

Preferred stock 12500

etters of credit

144623 15479 159972

Interest Sensitivity

The degree by which net interest income may fluctuate due to changes in interest rates is monitored by Horizon using

computer simulation models incorporating not only the current GAP position but the effect of expected repricing of

specific financial assets and liabilities When repricing opportunities are not properly aligned net interest income may be

affected when interest rates change Forecasting results of the possible outcomes determines the exposure to interest rate

risk inherent in Horizons balance sheet The goal is to manage imbalanced positions that arise when the total amount of

assets that reprice or mature in given time period differs significantly from liabilities that reprice or mature in the same

time period The theory behind managing the difference between repricing assets and liabilities is to have more assets

repricing in rising rate environment and more liabilities repricing in declining rate environment Based on one model at

December 31 2010 that assumes lag in repricing the amount of assets that reprice within one year were 190% of

liabilities that reprice within one year This same model at December 31 2009 reported that the amount of assets that

reprice within one year were approximately 140% of the amount of liabilities that reprice within the same time period
2009 was declining rate environment and the rates on liabilities continued to repriced at lower rates due to managements

ability to lower those rates The impact of the interest rate reduction along with interest rate floors on certain loans

positively impacted the net interest margin during 2010

Total

252428

18150

1120

932562

252428

6250

1120

552488
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nails

deral tirwis Sold

Interest-Bearing balances with Banks

Investment securities with RB arid

1111 13 stock

Other assets

otal Assets

Nuriiriterest-bear
rig deposits

Interest-bearing deposits

l3onroed Lirids

ther liabilities

Stockholders equity ____________________________________________________________________________________________

total liabilities and stockholders equity
____________________________________________________________________________________________

Cumulative

Included in the GAP analysis are certain interest-bearing demand accounts and savings accounts These interest-bearing

accounts are subject to immediate withdrawal However Horizon considers approximately 62.5% of these deposits to be

insensitive to gradual changes in interest rates and generally to behave like deposits with longer maturities based upon

historical experience and managements ability to change rates Due to managements ability to change some deposIt rates

along with $298.0 million of Horizons adjustable rate loans at their floor another model was developed to better assist

management in determining the balance sheets repricing sensitivity to these variables This model reported that the

amount of assets that reprice within one year were approximately 93% of the amount of liabilities that reprice within the

same time period Management utilizes both models to best determine their balance sheet management

nails

iuleral unds Sold

lnnterest-l3eaning balances with Banks

Investment securities with RB and

FF113 stock

Other assets __________________________________________________________________________________________________

Total Assets

Nonuntenest-beanung deposits

Interest-hearing deposits

l3or owed nods

ther abilities

Stockholders equity

total liabilities arid stockholders equity

Rat S.nsitivty

Months Gr.ator

3Months SMonths Thani

or L.u Months Y.ar Y.ar Total

411932 91159 128183 263236 901710

2413 2413

2745 2145

39359 25891 43608 296744 405602

27195 61254 88449

489644 117650 172391 621234 1400919

6912 4.324 7953 88417 107606

101181 91831 156125 528755 877892

34151 2131 4825 250212 291325

11813 11813

112283 112283

142250 98286 168903 991480 1400919

341394 19364 3488

347394 366758 370.246

310246

R.pricing S.nsitivity

Months Gr.at.r

3Months 6Months Thani

or L.ss Months V..r V.ar Total

417932 91759 128183 263236 901710

2413 2413

2745 2145

39359 25891 43608 296744 405602

27195 61254 88449

489644 117650 172391 621234 1400919

101606 107606

550830 57835 84140 185087 877892

34157 2131 4825 250212 291325

11813 11813

112283 112283

692593 59966 88965 559395 1400919

Al1 202949 57684 83426 61839

Cumulative AI 202949 145265 61839
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Horiions primary market risk exposure is interest rate risk Interest rate risk IRR is the risk that Horizons earnings and

capital will be adversely affected by changes in interest rates The primary approach to IRR management is one that

focuses on adjustments to the asset/liability mix in order to limit the magnitude of IRR

Horizons exposure to interest rate risk is due to repricing or mismatch risk embedded options risk and yield curve risk

Repricing risk is the risk of adverse consequence from change in interest rates that arise because of differences in the

timing of when those interest rate changes affect Horizons assets and liabilities Basis risk is the risk that the spread or

rate difference between instruments of similar maturities will change Options risk arises whenever products give the

customer the right but not the obligation to alter the quantity or timing of cash flows Yield curve risk is the risk that

changes in prevailing interest rates will affect instruments of different maturities by different amounts Horizons objective

is to remain reasonably neutral with respect to IRR Horizon utilizes variety of strategies to maintain this position

including the sale of mortgage loans on the secondary market hedging certain balance sheet items using derivatives varying

maturities of FHLB advances certificates of deposit funding and investment securities

The table which follows provides information about Horizons financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in

interest rates as of December 31 2010 The table incorporates Horizons internal system generated data related to the

maturity and repayment/withdrawal of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities For loans securities and

liabilities with contractual maturities the table presents principal cash flows and related weighted-average interest rates by

contractual maturities as well as the historical experience of Horizon related to the impact of interest rate fluctuations on

the prepayment of residential loans and mortgage-backed securities From risk management perspective Horizon

believes that repricing dates are more relevant than contractual maturity dates when analyzing the value of financial

instruments For deposits with no contractual maturity dates the table presents principal cash flows and weighted average

rate as applicable based upon Horizons experience and managements judgment concerning the most likely withdrawal

behaviors
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LTf.M lA QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The information required under this item is incorporated by reference to the information appearing in managements

discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operation included in Item

HORIZON BANc0RP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Manag.m.nts Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Table doilars in thousands except per share data

Quantitative Disclosur of Market Risk

F.W V.Iu

201$ D..smb.t 31

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 B.yond Totaf 2010

230432 91410 52759 29415 16061 35.532 455669 446417

6.11% 6.81% 6.85% 6.12% 6.51% 6.84% 6.46%

408.041 15546 14305 3111 2453 1925 446041 458534

5.44% 5.80% 5.70% 5.54% 5.41% 5.05% 5.46%

638473 107016 61064 33186 18514 37457 901710 904951

5.68% 6.11% 6.61% 6.59% 6.42% 6.15% 5.91%

108.858 61045 40.121 36839 32134 126605 405602 405603

366% 4.05% 4.22% 4.13% 3.91% 4.16% 4.00%

5.158 5158 5158

0.45% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.45%

152489 168061 107185 10025 50648 164062 1312470 1.315.113

5.35 5.15 5.71 5.30 5.75 4.75 5.34

16601 14040 11814 10042 8493 46556 101606 107606

94.195 46228 38800 31.413 24005 110041 345288 322201

0.19% 0.20% 0.20% 0.20% 0.20% 0.20% 0.20%

46.398 33114 24013 17091 11992 30997 163.665 158316

0.16% 0.16% 0.11% 0.11% 0.11% 0.18% 0.17%

183851 63180 42920 15335 18431 45216 368939 314094

2.08% 2.10% 2.17% 2.93% 2.31% 3.40% 2.41%

341645 156562 117667 73881 62927 732816 985498 962.223

1.20% 1.18% 0.89% 0.13% 0.79% 0.18% 1.00%

32861 10810 15213 20169 20938 114.156 215341 249./45

02/iX 3.26% 3.11% 7.28% 2.62% 3.60% 2.87%

/59/8 /59/8 70370

2.42% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 2.42%

450484 161372 132880 94650 83865 347512 1276823 1282.338

1.34% 1.32% 1.22% 1.01% 1.24% 1.11% 40%
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HORIZON BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

D.c.mb.r 31 Dcccmbcr 31

2010 2009

Ass.ts

Cash and due from banks

Investment securities available for sale

Investment securities held to maturity

oans held for sale

Loans net of allowance for loan losses of $19064 and $16015

Premises and equipment

ederal Reserve and Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

nterest receivable

Cash value life insurance

Other assets

Total assets

Liabiliti.s

Deposits

Non-interest bearing

Interest bearing

Total deposits

Borrowings

Subordinated debentures

Interest payable

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitm.nes and conhing.nt habilitis

Stockhold.rs Equity

Preferred stock no par value $1000 liquidation value

Authorized 1000000 shares

Issued 18750 and 25000 shares

Common stock $2222 stated value

Authorized 22500000 shares

Issued 3300659 and 3273881 shares

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total stockholders equity
_______________________________________

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

15683 68702

382344 333132

9515 11657

18833 5103

863813 870302

34114 30534

13664 13189

5110 5787

2741 1447

6519 5986

21115 23139

20428 17442

1400911 1387020

107606 84357

811892 867351

985418 951708

260741 284016

30584 27837

781 1135

11032 7719

1289638 1272415

18217 24306

1122 1119

10356 10030

80240 73431

2348 5719

112283 114605

1400911 1387020

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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HORIZON BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidat.d Stat.m.nts of Incom

Dollar Amounts in Thousands Except Per Share Data

V.ars End.d D.c.mb.r 31

Int.r.st Inconi

Loans receivable

Investment securities

Taxable

Tax exempt

Total interest income

Int.r.st Exp.ns

Deposits

Borrowed funds

Subordinated debentures

Total interest expense

NM Int.rsst Inconi

Provision for loan losses

Ne Int.r.st Incom aft.r Provision for Loan Loss.s

Oth.r Incom

Service charges on deposit accounts

Wire transfer fees

Interchange fees

Fiduciary activities

Gain loss on sale of securities

Gain on sale of mortgage loans

Mortgage servicing income net of impairment

Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance

Death benefit on officer life insurance

Other income

Total other income

Oth.r Exp.ns.s

Salaries and employee benefits

Net occupancy expenses

Data processing

Professional fees

Outside services and consultants

Loan expense

FDIC insurance expense

Other losses

Other expenses

Total other expenses

Incom B.for Incorn Tax

Income tax expense

NM Incom
Preferred stock dividend and discount accretion

NM Incoms AvaiIabl to Common Shwehold.rs

Basic Earnings P.r Sh.r

DiIut.d Earnings P.r Sliw

See notes to consolidated financial statements

2010 2009 2008

54138 51836 57801

9605 10885 9111

4148 3942 3323

68491 72663 70235

10111 14792 19536

8476 11696 11772

1688 1406 1571

20875 27894 32885

47616 44769 37350

11554 13603 7568

36062 31166 29782

3601 3858 3885

756 921 528

Z247 1864 846

3979 3336 3713

533 795 15
1538 6107 2979

565 134 20

803 720 920

538

1008 389 417

19906 17856 13831

22090 19204 16749

4195 3196 3775

1925 1582 1437

1701 1413 1133

1694 1471 1313

3208 2611 2223

1635 2126 546

504 510 413

5619 5099 5190

42571 37812 32779

13397 11210 10834

2942 2070 1862

10455 9140 8972

1406 1402 45
9049 7738 8927

2.76 2.39 2.78

2.71 2.37 2.75
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HORIZON BANc0RP AND SuBSIDIARIEs

Consolidat.d Stat.m.nts of Stockholdrs Equity

Dollar Amounts in Thousands Except Per Share Data

II iiiIilfit 055 Xl iCr ivatIvp tristruments

lOp ehiisiVe ricortie

Arrrrr ti/atuIn of rho itd cOmpeiSjtf OIl

Xl SI irf stock Of trolls

.i twnefrt related to stock Options

rtl $trOl expehist

.lstr fViiOfi5 li cortirnoir stOck

wi frare

553

9531

233

35

39

Ac eton of iscoiiilt on jxrfer red stock

BaIano.s D.o.mb.r 31 2058

tJi.t

24151 1114 8150

9.140

11801

9140

103350

9140

tiit collrphitilisvi riCoITle nit of tix

rrreallot ijairi red secit ItOs

Ir ealieil qilir rrrr
111 Ivltrve nIstrurileOts

rrreheirsrve rrohrre

831

14231
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iiei shore

164
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18

39
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Net onconi

liiii.rrijoiri of pi fe ii stock

15

24304

6.250

1111 10030

10455

15
73431

10455

5718 114505

10.455

6250

ttl.i conlprehetlsove ironic let of Uix
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161

11211 1lfl 10354

161
$0240 2341 112283

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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tfxi
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1114$

25.000

849

Additional

Paid-rn

C.pftal

8440

849

233

35

39

Ccitnqiruh.n.l RstaIn.d

Incom E.m4n
40152

8.91 8.91

1118

2141

Aocumdat.d

Oth

Compr.h.odv

Incom Toial

13 10145

8.912

25.000

1.118 1118

553 553

2141

4260 4.260 4.260

164

93

66

18

39

831 831

1.132

2229

68

34

111

11

30

2199 2199 2199

1.1/ 1.1/ 1.1/

/.084

68

34

120

11

30

1.245 1245

2.240 2.240
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HORIZON BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidat.d Stat.m.nts of Cash Flows

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Op.rating Activiti.s

Net income

Items not requiring providing cash

Provision for loan losses

Depreciation and amortization

Share based compensation

Mortgage servicing riits impairment

Deferred income tax

Premium amortization on securities available for sale net

Gain on sale of investment securities

Gain on sale of mortgage loans

Proceeds from sales of loans

Loans originated for sale

Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance

Gain Loss on sale of other real estate owned

Net change in

Interest receivable

Interest payable

Other assets

Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Inv.sting Activitiss

Purchases of securities available for sale

Proceeds from sales maturities calls and principal repayments of securities available

for sale

Purchase of securities held to maturity

Proceeds from maturities of securities held to maturity

Purchase of Federal Reserve Bank stock

Net change in loans

Proceeds on the sale of ORFO and repossessed assets

Purchases of premises and equipment

Purchases and assumption of American Trust Savings Bank

Proceeds from sale of loans transferred to held for sale

Gain on sale of loans transferred to held for sale

Net cash provided by used in investing activities

Financang Activiti.

Net change in

Deposits

I3orrowings

Proceeds Redemption of preferred stock

Proceeds from issuance of stock

ax benefit from issuance of stock

Dividends paid on common shares

Dividends paid on preferred shares

Net cash provided by used in financing activities

N.t Chang in Cash and Cash Equival.nt

Cash and Cash Equival.nts B.ginning of P.nod

Cash and Cash Equival.nts End of P.iiod

Additional Cash Flows Information

Interest paid

Income taxes paid

ransfer of ioans to other real estate owned

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Y.ars End.d D.c.mbor 31

2009 20082010

10455 9140 8972

11554 13603 1568

2320 2280 2321

30 39 39

664 135 20

113 713 485

1946 729 266

533 795 15

1538 6101 2141

286960 339424 145473

281705 335871 140462

770 720 36

393 22

218 189

354 775 790

296 5704 769

2057 316 442

24876 14712 19422

203840 131723 115895

204641 112377 50903

24732 24726 1800

11167 15171 110

861 564

32571 20394 37824

6131 8242 434

2414 4066 5442

3412

37695

193

27815 51683 71952

64221 110539 52495

31979 40367 65531

6250 25000

154 164 35

77 18

2240 1132

1245 2229 2147

105710 66993 35932

53019 30022 16598

68702 38680 55278

15683 68702 38680

21228 28668 33675

3880 3155 2935

9026 6481 3157
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HORIZON BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidat.d Financial Stat.m.nts

Table dollars in thousands except for per share data

Note Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business The consolidated financial statements of Horizon Bancorp Horizon and its wholly owned

subsidiary Horizon Bank NA Bank conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America and
reporting practices followed by the banking industry

he Bank is full-service commercial bank offering broad range of commercial and retail banking and other services

incident to banking along with trust department that offers corporate and individual trust and agency services and

investment management services The Bank has two active wholly owned subsidiaries Horizon Investments Inc

Investment Company and Horizon Grantor Trust Horizon Investments Inc manages the investment portfolio of the

Rank F-lorion Grantor Trust holds title to certain company owned life insurance policies The Bank maintains 21 full

service facilities and one loan and deposit production office The Bank also wholly owns Horizon Insurance Services Inc

Insurance Agency which is inactive but previously offered full line of personal and corporate insurance products The

net income generated from the insurance operations was not significant to the overall operations of Horizon and the

majority of the insurance agency assets were sold during 2005 Horizon conducts no business except that incident to its

ownership of the subsidiaries

Ion/on formed Horizon Statutory II in 2004 and Horizon Bancorp Capital Trust III in 2006 for the purpose of

participating in Pooled Trust Preferred Stock offerings The Company assumed additional debentures as the result of the

acquisition of Alliance in 2005 which formed Alliance Financial Statutory Trust Alliance Trust and American Trust

Savings Bank in 2010 which formed Am Tru Statutory Trust Am Tru Trust See Note 12 for further discussion

regarding these previously consolidated entities that are now reported separately

Basis of Reporting The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Horizon and subsidiaries All

material inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Use of Estimates preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted

iii the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates

Fair Value Measurements Horizon uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets

and liabilities and to determine fair value disclosures Effective January 2008 Horizon adopted Accounting Standards

Codification ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures for all applicable financial and nonfinancial assets and

liabilities This accounting guidance defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements This guidance applies only when other guidance requires or permits assets or

liabilities to be measured at fair value it does not expand the use of fair value in any new circumstances

As defined ri codification fair value is the price to sell an asset or transfer liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants It represents an exit price at the measurement date Market participants are buyers and sellers who are

independent knowledgeable and willing and able to transact in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset

or liability being measured Current market conditions including imbalances between supply and demand are considered

ri determining fair value Horizon values its assets and liabilities in the principal market where it sells the particular asset or

transfers the liability with the greatest volume and level of activity In the absence of principal market the valuation is

based on the most advantageous market for the asset or liability i.e the market where the asset could be sold or the

liability transferred at price that maximizes the amount to be received for the asset or minimizes the amount to be paid to

transfer the liability

Iii measuring the fair value of an asset Horizon assumes the highest and best use of the asset by market participant to

maximize the value of the asset and does not consider the intended use of the asset
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HORIZON BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stat.ments

Table dollars in thousands except for per share data

When measuring the fair value of liability Horizon assumes that the nonperformance risk associated with the liability is

the same before and after the transfer Nonperformance risk is the risk that an obligation will not be satisfied and

encompasses not only Horizons own credit risk i.e the risk that Horizon will fail to meet its obligation but also other

risks such as settlement risk Horizon considers the effect of its own credit risk on the fair value for any period in which

fair value is measured

There are three acceptable valuation techniques that can be used to measure fair value the market approach the income

approach and the cost approach Selection of the appropriate technique for valuing particular asset or liability takes into

consideration the exit market the nature of the asset or liability being valued and how market participant would value the

same asset or liabilIty Ultimately determination of the appropriate valuation method requires significantjudgment and

sufficient knowledge and expertise are required to apply the valuation techniques

Valuation inputs refer to the assumptions market participants would use in pricing given asset or liability using one of the

three valuation techniques Inputs can be observable or unobservable Observable inputs are those assumptions which

market participants would use in pricing the particular asset or liability These inputs are based on market data and are

obtained from source independent of Horizon Unobservable inputs are assumptions based on Horizons own

information or estimate of assumptions used by market participants in pricing the asset or liability Unobservable inputs

are based on the best and most current Information available on the measurement date All Inputs whether observable or

unobservable are ranked in accordance with prescribed fair value hierarchy which gives the highest ranking to quoted

prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level and the lowest ranking to unobservable

inputs Level Fair values for assets or liabilities classified as Level are based on one or combination of the following

factors quoted prices for similar assets ii observable inputs for the asset or liability such as interest rates or yield

curves or iii inputs derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data The level in the fair value

hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is determined based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety The Corporation considers an input to be significant if it drives

10% or more of the total fair value of particular asset or liability

Assets and liabilities are considered to be fair valued on recurring basis if fair value is measured regularly i.e daily

weekly monthly or quarterly Recurring valuation occurs at minimum on the measurement date Assets and liabilities are

considered to be fair valued on nonrecurring basis if the fair value measurement of the instrument does not necessarily

result in change in the amount recorded on the balance sheet Generally nonrecurring valuation is the result of the

application of other accounting pronouncements which require assets or liabilities to be assessed for impairment or

recorded at the lower of cost or fair value The fair value of assets or liabilities transferred in or out of Level is measured

on the transfer date with any additional changes in fair value subsequent to the transfer considered to be realized or

unrealized gains or losses

Investment Securities Availabl for Sal Horizon designates the majority of its investment portfolio as available for

sale based on managements plans to use such securities for asset and liability management liquidity and not to hold such

securities as long-term investments Management repositions the portfolio to take advantage of future expected interest

rate trends when Horizons long-term profitability can be enhanced Investment securities available for sale and

marketable equity securities are carried at estimated fair value and any net unrealized gains/losses after tax on these

securities are Included in accumulated other comprehensive income Gains/losses on the disposition of securities available

for sale are recognized at the time of the transaction and are determined by the specific Identification method

Investment Securities Held to Maturity Includes any security for which Horizon has the positive intent and ability to

hold until maturity These securities are carried at amortized cost

Loans H.ld for Sal Loans held for sale are reported at the lower of cost or market value in the aggregate

Interest arid F.es on Loans Interest on commercial mortgage and installment loans is recognized over the term of

the loans based on the principal amount outstanding When principal or interest is past due 90 days or more and the loan

is not well secured or in the process
of collection or when serious doubt exists as to the collectability of loan the accrual
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of interest is discontinued Loan origination fees net of direct loan origination costs are deferred and recognized over the

life of the loan as yield adjustment

Conc.ntrations of Credit Risk The Bank
grants commercial real estate and consumer loans to customers located

primarily in Northwest Indiana and southwest Michigan and provides mortgage warehouse lines to mortgage companies in

the United States Commercial loans make up approximately 37% of the loan portfolio and are secured by both real estate

and business assets These loans are expected to be repaid from cash flows from operations of the businesses The Bank

does riot have concentration in speculative commercial real estate loans Residential real estate loans make up

approximately 20% of the loan portfolio and are secured by residential real estate Installment loans make up approximately
30% of the loan portfolio and are primarily secured by consumer assets Mortgage warehouse loans make up

approximately 3X of the loan portfolio and are secured by residential real estate

Mortgage Warehouse Loans Horizons mortgage warehousing business line has specific mortgage companies as

customers of Horizon Bank Individual mortgage loans originated by these mortgage companies are funded as secured

borrowing with pledge of collateral under Horizons agreement with the mortgage company Each individual mortgage is

assigned to Horizon until the loan is sold to the secondary market by the mortgage company In addition Horizon takes

possession of each original note and forwards such note to the end investor once the mortgage company has sold the loan

At the time loan is transferred to the secondary market the mortgage company repurchases the loan under its option

within the agreement

Due to the repurchase feature contained in the agreement the transaction does not qualify as sale under ASC 860
ransfers and Servicing and therefore is accounted for as secured borrowing with pledge of collateral pursuant to the

agreement with the mortgage company When the individual loan is sold to the end investor by the mortgage company the

proceeds from the sale of the loan are received by Horizon and used to payoff the loan balance with Horizon along with

any accrued interest and any related fees The remaining balance from the sale is forwarded to the mortgage company
hese individual loans typically are sold by the mortgage company within 30 days and are seldom held more than 90 days

Interest income is accrued during this period and collected at the time each loan is sold Fee income for each loan sold is

when the loan is sold and no costs are deferred due to the term between each loan funding and related payoff is

typically less than 30 days

Iased on the agreements with each mortgage company at any time mortgage company can repurchase from Horizon

their outstanding loan balance on an individual mortgage and regain possession of the original note Horizon also has the

option to request that the mortgage company repurchase an individual mortgage Should this occur Horizon would return

the original note and reassign the assignment of the mortgage to the mortgage company Also in the event that the end

investor would not be able to honor the sales commitment and the mortgage company would not be able to repurchase its

loan on an individual mortgage Horizon would be able to exercise its rights under the agreement

Allowanc for Loan Losses An allowance for loan losses is maintained to absorb probable incurred losses inherent in

the loan portfolio The allowance is based on ongoing quarterly assessments of the probable incurred losses inherent in the

loan portfolio The allowance is increased by the provision for credit losses which is charged against current period

operating results and decreased by the amount of charge of fs net of recoveries Horizons methodology for assessing the

appropriateness of the allowance consists of several key elements which include the general allowance specific allowances

for identified problem loans and the qualitative allowance

he general allowance is calculated by applying loss factors to pools of outstanding loans Loss factors are based on

fistorical loss experience and may be adjusted for significant factors that in managementsjudgment affect the

collectahility of the portfolio as of the evaluation date

Specific allowances are established in cases where management has identified conditions or circumstances related to

redit that management believes indicate the probability that loss will be incurred in excess of the amount determined by
the application of the formula allowance
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The qualitative allowance is based upon managements evaluation of various conditions the effects of which are not

directly measured in the determination of the general and specific allowances The evaluation of the inherent loss with

respect to these conditions is subject to higher degree of uncertainty because they are not identified with specific credits

The conditions evaluated in connection with the qualitative allowance may include factors such as local regional and

national economic conditions and forecasts concentrations of credit and changes in the composition of the portfolio

Loan Impairment When analysis determines borrowers operating results and financial condition are not adequate to

meet debt service requirements the loan is evaluated for impairment Often this is associated with delay or shortfall in

payments of 30 days or more Loans are generally placed on non-accrual status when 90 days or more past due These

loans are also often considered impaired Impaired loans or portions thereof are charged-off when deemed uncollectible

This typically occurs when the loan is 120 or more days past due

Loans are considered impaired if borrower does not exhibit the ability to pay or the full principal or interest payments are

not expected or made in accordance with the original terms of the loan Impaired loans are measured and carried at the

lower of cost or the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate at the loans

observable market price or at the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent

Smaller balance homogenous loans are evaluated for impairment in the aggregate Such loans include residential first

mortgage loans secured by one to four family residences residential construction loans and automobile home equity and

second mortgages Commercial loans and mortgage loans secured by other properties are evaluated individually for

impairment

Premises and Equipment Buildings and major improvements are capitalized and depreciated using primarily the

straight-line method with useful lives ranging from to 40 years Furniture and equipment are capitalized and depreciated

using primarily the straight-line method with useful lives ranging from to 20 years Maintenance and repairs are expensed

as incurred while major additions and improvements are capitalized Gains and losses on disposition are included in current

operations

Federal Reserve and Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis FHLBI Stock The stock is required

investment for institutions that are members of the Federal Reserve Bank FRB and Federal Home Loan Bank FHLBI

systems The required investment in the common stock is based on predetermined formula

Mortgage Servicing Rights Mortgage servicing rights on originated loans that have been sold are capitalized by

allocating the total cost of the mortgage loans between the mortgage servicing rights and the loans based on their relative

fair values Capitalized servicing rights are amortized in proportion to and over the period of estimated servicing revenue

Impairment of mortgage-servicing rights is assessed based on the fair value of those rights Fair values are estimated using

discounted cash flows based on current market interest rate For purposes of measuring impairment the rights are

stratified based on the predominant risk characteristics of the underlying loans The predominant characteristic currently

used for stratification is type of loan The amount of impairment recognized is the amount by which the capitalized

mortgage servicing rights for stratum exceed their fair value Amortization expense and charges related to an impairment

write-down are included in other income

Goodwill Goodwill is tested annually for impairment At December 31 2010 Horizon had core deposit intangibles of

$2.7 million subject to amortization and $5.9 million of goodwill which is not subject to amortization Goodwill arising

from business combinations represents the value attributable to unidentifiable intangible assets in the business acquired

Horizons goodwill relates to the value inherent in the banking industry and that value is dependent upon the ability of

Horizon to provide quality cost effective banking services in competitive marketplace The goodwill value is supported

by revenue that is in part driven by the volume of business transacted lithe implied fair value of goodwill is lower than its

carrying amount goodwill impairment is indicated and goodwill is written down to its implied fair value Goodwill totaled

$5.9 million and $5.8 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively large majority of the goodwill relates to the

acquisition of Alliance Financial Corporation
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Income Taxes Horizon files annual consolidated income tax returns with its subsidiaries Income tax in the

consolidated statements of income includes deferred income tax provisions or benefits for all significant temporary
differences ri recognizing income and expenses for financial reporting and income tax purposes

Trust Assets and Incom Property other than cash deposits held in fiduciary or agency capacity is not included in

the consolidated balance sheets since such property is not owned by Horizon

Earnings p.r Common Share Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income available to common
shareholders net income less dividend requirements for preferred stock and accretion of preferred stock discount by the

weighted-average number of common shares outstanding Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that

could occur ii securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock The

following table shows computation of basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings p.r char

Net income

ess Preferred stock dividends and accretion of discount

Net income available to common shareholders

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic earnings per char

Dilut.d .arnings p.r share

Net income available to common shareholders

Weighted average common shares outstanding

tfect of dilutive securities

War rants

Restricted stock

Stock options

Weighted average shares outstanding

Dilut.d .amings p.r share

December 31

2010

10455 9140 8972

1406 1402 45

9049 7738 8927

3277069 3232033 3208658

2.76 2.39 2.78

9049 7738 8927

3271069 3232033 3208658

40436

14685 32284 29889

2408 6406 7804

3334598 3270723 3246351

2.11 2.37 2.15

At Lecember 31 2010 2009 and 2008 there were 48333 shares 71514 shares and 59771 shares that were not included

ri the computation of diluted earnings per share because they were non-dilutive

Dividend Restrictions Regulations of the Comptroller of the Currency limit the amount of dividends that may be paid

by national bank to its parent holding company without prior approval of the Comptroller of the Currency At

ecember 31 2010 $1 3.7 million was available for payment of dividends from the Bank to Horizon Additionally the

ederal Reserve Board limits the amount of dividends that may be paid by Horizon to its stockholders under its capital

adequacy guidelines Under the Capital Purchase Program pursuant to which Horizon issued the Preferred Stock Horizon

cannot increase the amount of the dividend it pays on its common shares while the Preferred Stock is outstanding without

the prior consent of the Treasury The preferred Stock qualifies as Tier
capital and will pay cumulative dividends at rate

of 5% per annum or the first five
years and 9% per annum thereafter This further limits the amount of net income

available to the common shareholders

ue to Horizon participation in the CPP Program in December 2008 Horizon is prohibited from increasing its common
stock dividends for the first three years while Treasury is an investor without the prior consent of the Treasury

December 31

2009

December 31

2008
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows For purposes of reporting cash flows cash and cash equivalents are defined

to include cash and due from banks money market investments and federal funds sold with maturities of one day or less

Horizon reports net cash flows for customer loan transactions deposit transactions short-term investments and

borrowings

Share-Based Compensation At December 31 2010 Horizon has stock option plans which are described more fully

in Note 19 All share-based payments to be recognized as expense based upon their fair values in the financial statements

over the vesting period of the awards Horizon has recorded approximately $30000 $39000 and $39000 for 2010 2009

and 2008 in compensation expense relating to vesting of stock options less estimated forfeitures for the 12 month period

ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Current Economic Conditions The current economic environment presents financial institutions with unprecedented

circumstances and challenges which in some cases have resulted in large declines in the fair values of investments and other

assets constraints on liquidity and significant credit quality problems including severe volatility in the valuation of real

estate and other collateral supporting loans The financial statements have been prepared using values and information

currently available to Horizon

Given the volatility of current economic conditions the values of assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements

could change rapidly resulting in material future adjustments in asset values the allowance for loan losses and capital that

could negatively impact Horizons ability to meet regulatory capital requirements and maintain sufficient liquidity

Reclassifications Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2009 and 2008 consolidated financial statements to

be comparable to 2010 These reclassifications had no effect on net income

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

FASB ASU 2009-16 Transfers and Servicing Topic 860 Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets ASU 2009-16 requires

more information about transfers of financial assets including securitization transactions and where entities have

continued exposure to the risks related to transferred assets The Company adopted ASU 2009-16 effective January 2010

and adoption did not have material effect on its financial position or results of operations

ASU No 2010-06 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic 820 Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements ASU

201 0-06 revises two disclosure requirements concerning fair value measurements and clarifies two others It requires

separate presentation of significant transfers into and out of Levels and of the fair value hierarchy and disclosure of the

reasons for such transfers It will also require the presentation of purchases sales issuances and settlements within Level

on gross basis rather than net basis The amendments also clarify that disclosures should be disaggregated by class of

asset or liability and that disclosures about inputs and valuation techniques should be provided for both recurring and non

recurring fair value measurements The Companys disclosures about fair value measurements are presented in Note 21

Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities These new disclosure requirements were effective for the period

ended March 31 2010 except for the requirement concerning gross presentation of Level activity which is effective for

fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 There was no significant effect to the Companys financial statement

disclosure upon adoption of this ASU

ASU No 2010-09 Subsequent Events Topic 855 Amendments to Certain Recngnition and Disclosure Requirements ASU 201 0-09

amends the subsequent events disclosure guidance The amendments include definition of an SEC filer requires an SEC

filer or conduit bond obligor to evaluate subsequent events through the date the financial statements are issued and

removes the requirement for an SEC filer to disclose the date through which subsequent events have been evaluated ASU

201 0-09 was effective upon issuance for the Company

ASU No 201 0-20 Receivables Topic 310 Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit

Losses ASU 201 0-20 requires that more information be disclosed about the credit quality of companys loans and the

allowance for loan losses held against those loans company will need to disaggregate new and existing disclosure based

on how it develops its allowance for loan losses and how it manages credit exposures Existing disclosures to be presented
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on disaggregated basis include roll-forward of the allowance for loan losses the related recorded investment in such

loans the nonaccrual status of loans and impaired loans Additional disclosure is also required about the credit quality

indicators of loans by class at the end of the reporting period the aging of past due loans information about troubled debt

restructurings and significant purchases and sales of loans during the reporting period by class

or public companies ASU 2010-20
requires certain disclosures as of the end of reporting period effective for periods

ending on or after December 15 2010 Other required disclosures about activity that occurs during reporting period are

effective for periods beginning on or after December 15 2010 The Companys adoption of these additional disclosures

can be found in notes and

ASh No 2011-01 he amendments in ASU No 2011-01 temporarily delay the effective date of the disclosures about

troubled debt restructurings in Accounting Standards Update No 2010-20 Reivables Topic 310 Disclosures about the Credit

Quality of Financing R.eivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses for public entities The delay is intended to allow the Board

time to complete its deliberations on what constitutes troubled debt restructuring The effective date of the new
disclosures about troubled debt restructurings for public entities and the guidance for determining what constitutes

troubled debt restructuring will then be coordinated

Note 2- Cash Equivalents

he Company considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents At

December 31 2010 and 2009 cash equivalents consisted primarily of deposit accounts with financial institutions

One or more of the financial institutions holding the Companys cash accounts are participating in the FDICs Transaction

Account Guarantee Program Under the program as result of changes made pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street

Reform and Consumer Protection Act Dodd-Frank Act and regulations adopted by the FDIC to implement the Dodd-
rank Act provisions all noninterest-bearing transaction accounts at these institutions are fully guaranteed by the FDIC for

the entire amount in the account until December 31 2012

or financial institutions opting out of the FDICs Transaction Account Guarantee Program or interest-bearing cash

accounts the DICs insurance limits increased to $250000 effective October 2008 The increase in federally insured

limits which was set to expire December 31 2013 was made permanent by the Dodd-Frank Act At December 31 2010
the Companys cash accounts exceeded federally insured limits by approximately $3.6 million At December 31 2010 the

Company had cash balances at the Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis of $1.6 million that

did not have DIC insurance coverage
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The fair value of securities is as follows

D.c.mb.r 31 2010

Avallabl for sal

U.S Treasury and federal agencies

State and municipal

Federal agency collateralized mortgage obligations

Federal agency mortgage-backed pools

Private labeled mortgage-backed pools

Corporate notes

Total available for sale investment securities

H.ld to maturity Stat and MunicIpal ____________________________________________________

D.c.mb.r 31 2009

Av.ilabI for sals

U.S Treasury and federal agencies

State and municipal

Federal agency collateralized mortgage obligations

Federal agency mortgage-backed pools

Private labeled mortgage-backed pools

Corporate notes ______________________________________________________________________

Total available for sale investment securities

H.Id to maturity Stat and Municipal ____________________________________________________

Based on evaluation of available evidence including recent changes in market interest rates credit rating information and

information obtained from regulatory filings management believes the declines in fair value for these securities are

temporary While these securities are held in the available for sale portfolio Horizon intends and has the ability to hold

them until the earlier of recovery
in fair value or maturity

Should the impairment of any of these securities become other than temporary the cost basis of the investment will be

reduced and the resulting loss recognized in net income in the period the other-than-temporary impairment is identified

At December 31 2010 no individual investment security had an unrealized loss that was determined to be other-than-

temporary

The unrealized losses on the Companys investments in securities of state and municipal federal agency collateralized

mortgage obligations and federal agency mortgage-backed pools were caused by interest rate increases and not decline in

credit quality The contractual terms of those investments do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at price less

than the amortized cost basis of the investments or the Company expects to recover the amortized cost basis over the term

of the securities Because the Company does not intend to sell the investments and it is not likely that the Company will be

required to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost basis which may be maturity the Company did not

consider those investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31 2010

Gross Gross

Amortlz.d Unr.allz.d Unr.allz.d FaIr

Cost GaIns Loss.s Valu

24127 643 119 25251

132380 1511 2402 131489

100106 1945 214 101831

114390 3865 360 117895

5197 126 5323

555 549

377355 8090 3101 382344

9595 9595

Gross Gross

Amortlz.d Unroallz.d Unr.allz.d Fair

Cost Gains Loss.s Valu

19612 413 20085

107160 2402 413 109149

76222 1089 22 77289

113633 5028 118661

7779 32 205 7606

355 13 342

324761 9024 653 333132

11657 30 11687
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he amortied cost and fair value of securities available for sale and held to maturity at December 31 2010 and December

31 2009 by contractual maturity are shown below Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because

issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties

Avallabi for sals

Within one year

One to five years

ye to ten years

After ten years

ederal agency collateraliied mortgage obligatons

ederal agency mortgage-backed pools

Private labeled mortgage-backed pools

otal available for sale investment securities

H.ld to maturity

Within one year

One to five years

otal held to maturity investment securities

D.c.mb.r 31 2010

Amortiz.d Fair

Cost Valu

he following table shows investments
gross unrealized losses and fair value aggregated by investment category and

length of time that individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position

Dscsmb.r 31 2009

Amortiz.d Fair

Cost Valu

855 866 2658 2691

28240 28949 5449 5682

44179 44450 40557 41400

84388 83024 78463 79803

157662 157289 127127 129576

100106 101837 76222 77289

114390 117895 113633 118661

5197 5323 7779 7606

377355 382344 324761 333132

9495 9495 11462 11484

100 100 195 203

9595 9595 11657 11687

Lass than 12 Month

Few Unr.ailz.d

Vali Lass.

12 Months or More

Fair Unr.aliz.d

Valid Logs.

Total

Fair

ValuD.oainia 31 2010

IS
reasJry

and tdeeai
agencies 9881 119 9.881 119

Stat and IntirlIcipal 60401 2.370 568 32 60.969 2402
ederai agency coliateralied mnctqage obiiqatcxr 21.130 214 21130 214
iftrai agency rntxnqage-tacked pools 27033 360 32 27.065 360

rtnte 26 26

ntai tIcTlixxafIiy IrTMMIred SaCtJfItI 118471 3069 600 32 119071 3101

Lass than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Fair Unrasliz.d Fair Unr..lEz.d Fair Usvsaliz.d

31 200 Valu Lose. Value Logs. Valu Loss.

Uv.allz.d

Lose.

St at aitti intirtic Ipal

ief ai aqercy oiiattr aiiitxl rnxiqaq otiIqaiRxts

tlai agency rttortqaqi
hacked 1xxi

vat iaiaieI tncatgaqi hacked 1xxi

fxxat flR

ntai ternixwar Ily irnparnd securities

14757

8835

3534

216

22

100

3791

42

1756

197 18548

8835

42

105 5290

32 24

13
27135 351 5589 302

413

22

205

13
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Information regarding security proceeds gross gains and gross losses are presented below

Sal.s of secunti available for sale

Proceeds 85892

Gross gains 675

Gross iosscs 142 335 15

The Company pledges securities to secure retail and corporate repurchase agreements At December 31 2010 the

Company had pledged $160.3 million of fair value or $154.8 million of amortized cost in securities as collateral for $140.4

million in repurchase agreements

Not.4-Loans

D.c.mb.r 31 D.cenib.r 31

2010 2009

Commercial

Working capital and equipment

Real estate including agriculture

Tax exempt

Other
____________________________________

Total

Real estate

14 family including loans held for sale

Other
____________________________________

Total

Consumer

Au to

Recreation

Real estate/home improvement

Home equity

Unsecured

Other
____________________________________

Total

Mortgage warehouse

Prime

Sub.prime
__________________________________

Total
_______________________________

Total loans

Allowance for loan losses

Loans and loans held for sale net

2010

D.c.mb.r 31

2009 200$

48859

1130

30

151414 167149

161785 135639

2925 3247

7894 8482

330018 314517

176311 134076

4957 5519

181268 139595

136014 146210

6086 5321

29184 32009

90580 83412

3091 2222

1726 1976

266681 271210

123143 166698

123743 166698

901710 892020

19064 16015
882646 876005
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D.cwibr 31 2010

Owner occupied real estate

Non owner ocCUpied real estate

Residential Spec l-1omes

eveloprnent Spec and oans

Commercial and industrial

otal commercial

Residential mortgage includes III

Residential construction

Mortgage warehouse

otal real estate

ir ed install merit

irect Installment Purchased

rid in edt installment

lome equity

otal consumer

Total loans

Allowance for loan losses

Nat loans

Loan D.fsrr.d Rscord.d

Balanc lnt.rsst Du F..s Costs lnvsstn.nt

125883 442 26 126351

136986 364 87 137431

2257 2259

6439 14 6453

58336 234 58516

329901 1058 11 331076

173724 592 76 174392

1467 13 1481

123743 332 124015

304934 93 77 305948

2352 97 338 23286

1869 1869

128122 491 128620

114202 563 708 114057

261720 1151 1039 267832

902555 3146 845 904856

19064 19064

883491 3146 845 885792

oaris to dlrPctors and executive officers of Horiion and the Bank including associates of such persons amounted to $3.5

million and $14 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009 During 2010 new loans or advances were $919000 and loan

payments were $9.5 million

Note 5- Allowanc for Loan Losses

Balance at beginning of the period

Loans charged-off

Commercial and agricultural

Real estate

Consumer ________________________________________

Total loans charged-off

Recoveries of loans previously charged

off

Commercial and agricultural

Real estate

Consumer _______________________________

Total loan recoveries
____________________________________________

Net loans charged-off

Provision charged to operating

expense

Balance at the end of the period
___________________________________________

Ratio of net charge-offs to average

loans outstanding for the period

D.c.mb.r 31 Dsc.mb.r 31 D.c.nib.r 31

2010 2009 2008

16015 11410 9791

3856 2461 1358

811 432 351

5068 1354 5277

9135 10247 6986

228 66 15

50

1001 1183 972

1230 1249 1037

8505 8998 5949

11554 13603 7568

19064 16015 11410

0.97% 1.01% 0.70%
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The following table presents the balance in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in loans by portfolio

segment and based on impairment method as of December 31 2010

Mortgag

War.housing

Allowanc For Loan Los.

Ending alowancs balancs attrlbutab to loans

Individually evaluated for impairment

Collectively evaluated for impairment

Acquired with deteriorated credit quality ____________________________________________________________________________________

Total .nding allowancs balanos

Loans

Individually evaluated for impairment

Collectively evaluated for impairment

Acquired with deteriorated credit quality
___________________________________________________________________________________

Total ending loans balanc

Note Non-p.rforming Assets and Impaired Loans

The following table shows non-performing loans including loans more than 90 days past due on non-accrual and troubled

debt restructuring TDRs along with other real estate owned and repossessed collateral

Commercial R.ai Estat Consumer Total Allowance

1457 1457

6091 2379 1435 1696 17607

7554 2379 1435 1696 19064

8123 8123

322953 181873 124075 267832 896733

331076 181873 124075 267832 904856
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D.c.mb.r 31 D.c.mb.r 31

2010 2009

Non-p.rformsng loans

Commercial

More than 90 days past clue

Non-accrual

Ii ouble debt restructuring accruing

rouble debt restructuring non-accrual

Real estate

More than 90 days past due

Non-accrual

rouble debt restructuring accruing

rouble debt restructuring non-accrual

Mortgage warehouse

Moce than 90 days past due

Non accrual

rouble debt restructuring accruing

rotible debt restructuring non-accrual

Consumer

More than 90 days past due

Non accrual

Trouble debt restr ucturirig accruing

rouble debt restructuring non-accrual

Total non-p.rformlng loans

Oth.r rs.l ..tat ownsd and r.poss.ss.d

collatsral

Commercial

Real estate

Mortgage warehouse

Consumer

Total othsr raal .stat own.d and

r.poss.sssd collat.ral

Total non-p.rforming ass.ta

1622 544

1042 1186

23

2664 1753

24092 18898

he Companys are considered impaired loans and included in the allowance methodology using the guidance for

Impaired loans At December 31 2010 the type of concessions the Company has made on restructured loans has been

temporary rate reductions and reductions in monthly payments Any modification to loan that is concession and is not

in the normal course of lending is considered restructured loan restructured loan is returned to accruing status after

six consecutive payments but is still reported as TDR unless the loan bears interest at market rate As of December 31

2010 the Company had $4.4 million in TDRs and $4.1 million were performing according to the restructured terms The

Company experienced one DR default during 2010

nans for which it is probable that the Company will not collect all principal and interest due according to contractual

terms including IRs are measured for impairment Allowable methods for determining the amount of impairment

include estimating lair value using the fair value of the collateral for collateral-dependent loans

If the impaired loan is identified as collateral dependent then the fair value method of measuring the amount of

impairment is utilied This method requires obtaining current independent appraisal of the collateral and applying

discount factor to the value

Impaired loans that are collateral dependent are classified within Level of the fair value hierarchy when impairment is

determined using the lair value method The following table shows the Companys impaired loans

7.508

514

222

5483

3380

241

136

3682

165

37

21428

1.086

8143

296

1257

3266

376

2515

206

17145
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There were $1.8 million $4.8 million and $1.4 of impaired loans without specific reserve in 2010 2009 or 2008 Interest

income not recognized on the non-performing loans totaled approximately $144000 $112000 and $283000 in 2010

2009 and 2008 Accrued interest on impaired loans is reversed from interest income when loan is determined to be

impaired and is non-accrual loan

The following table presents commercial loans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loans as of December 31

2010

Carrying

Valu

8082

3396

Avarag

Balanc

8075

3376

Sp.cific

R.s.rv.s

1457

65

Impair.d loan

D.c.mb.r 31 2010

Commercial

Real estate

Mortgage warehouse

Consumer

Total

D.c.rnb.r 31 2009

Commercial

Real estate

Mortgage warehouse

Consumer

Total

D.c.mbar 31 200$

Commercial

Real estate

Mortgage warehouse

Consumer

Total

Int.r.st

Coll.ct.d

200

127

202 202 37

11680 11653 1559 334

9685 11647 1675 389

3472 2481 84 184

206 159 15

13363 14287 1759 588

5118 3083 1122 286

5118 3083 1122 286
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With no r.cord.d allawanc

Commercial

Owner occupied real estate

Non owner occupied real estate

Residential development

Development Spec Land Loans

Commercial and industrial

Total commercial

With an allowanos rscord.d

Commercial

Owner occupied real estate

Non owner occupied real estate

Residential development

Ievelopment Spec and oans

Commercial amid industrial

Total conwnsrcial

Total

Commercial

Owner occupied real estate

Norm owner occupied real estate

Residential development

evekpment Spec and oarrs

Cnmmerc al and industrial

Total commercial

R.al .stat

Residernial mortgage

Resident al construction

Mortgage warehouse

Total real .tat

Consum.r

1irict nstallnwnit

reci Installment Purchased

lmmclirect Installment

lorne quity

Total Consumer

Loan Past

Otis Over

Days Still

Aocrwng

Unpaid

Principal

Balanc

Ailowancs

For Loan

Recorded Loss

Investment Ailocated

720 721

928 929

118 118

1766 1768

639 640 385

4932 4970 665

16 16 16

250 250 126

479 479 265

6316 6355 1451

8082 8123 1457

he following table presents the nonaccrual and loans past due over 90 days still on accrual by class of loans as of

Iecemb 31 2010

Nonaccrual TDRs

1358$

5.439 421

16

250

445 153

1508 574

5218 222 3621

205

5483 222 3621

251 23

1328 98

2102 10 202

3.682 136 202

16613 358 4.391Total
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Coanmsrctal

Owner occupied real estate

Non owner occupied real estate

Residential development

Development Spec Land Loans

Commercial and Industrial
_________________________________________________________________________________________

Total oommsrcal

R.ai .stat

Residential mortgage

Residential construction

Mcxtgage warehouse

Total rsal .stat

um
Direct Installment

Direct Installment Purchased

Indirect Installment

Home Equity
__________________________________________________________________________________________

Total consumr

Total
_____________________________________________________________________

Horizon Banks processes for determining credit quality differ slightly depending on whether new loan or renewed loan

is being underwritten or whether an existing loan is re-evaluated for credit quality The latter usually occurs upon receipt

of current financial information or other pertinent data that would trigger change in the loan grade

For new and renewed commercial loans the Banks Credit Department which acts independently of the loan officer

assigns the credit quality grade to the loan Loan grades for loans with an aggregate credit exposure of $500000 or

greater are validated by the Loan Committee which is chaired by the Chief Operating Officer COO
Commercial loan officers are responsible for reviewing their loan portfolios and report any adverse material change to

the COO or Loan Committee When circumstances warrant change in the credit quality grade loan officers are

expected to notify the COO and the Credit Department of the change in the loan grade Downgrades are accepted

immediately by the COO however lenders must present their factual information to either the Loan Committee or the

COO when recommending an upgrade One of the requirements for meeting the annual bonus criteria is for loan

officer to avoid having any of his/her loans downgraded by either Internal Loan Review or Bank Regulators to

classified grade that is substandard doubtful or loss

The COO meets weekly with loan officers to discuss the status of past-due loans and classified loans These meetings

are also designed to give the loan officers an opportunity to identify an existing loan that should be downgraded to

classified grade

Monthly Senior Management attends the Watch Committee which reviews all of the past due classified and impaired

loans and the relative trends of these assets This committee also reviews the actions taken by management regarding

foreclosure mitigation loan extensions troubled debt restructures and collateral repossessions The information

reviewed in this meeting acts as precursor for developing Managements analysis of the adequacy of the Allowance

for Loan and Lease Losses

For real estate and consumer loans Horizon uses grading system based on delinquency Loans that are 90 days or more

past due on non-accrual or troubled debt restructure are graded Substandard After 90 days delinquent loan is charged

off unless it is well secured and in process of collection If the latter case exists the loan is placed on non-accrual

Occasionally mortgage loan may be graded as special mention When this situation arises it is because the characteristics

of the loan and the borrower fit the definition of Risk Grade described below which is normally used for grading

commercial loans Loans not graded Substandard are considered Pass

HORIZON BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Not. to Consolidatd Financial Stat.m.nts

Table dollars in thousands except for per share data

30.59D.ys IO-$Days Grsat.rthanlO Lo.nsNotPast

Past Du Past Dus Days Past Dus Total Past Du Du Total

229 229 125654 125883

461 461 136525 136986

2257 2257

6439 6439

58262 58336

329137 329901

74 74

764 764

317 91 222 630 173094 173724

293 293 1174 1467

123743 123743

610 91 222 923 304011 304934

294 156 23 473 23054 23521

51 31 87 1782 1869

2360 433 98 2891 125231 128122

899 218 10 1127 113075 114202

3604 838 136 4578 263142 267720

4978 929 358 6265 896290 902555
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Ioriiori Bank employs an eight-grade rating system to determine the credit quality of commercial loans The first four

grades represent acceptable quality and the last four grades mirror the criticized and classified grades used by the bank

regulatory agencies special mention substandard doubtful and loss The loan grade definitions are detailed below

Risk Grad Exc.ll.nt Pass
oans secured by liquid collateral such as certificates of deposit reputable bank letters of credit or other cash

equivalents loans that are guaranteed or otherwise backed by the full faith and credit of the United States

government or an agency thereof such as the Small Business Administration or loans to any publicly held company

with current long term debt rating of or better

Risk Grade Good Pass
oans to businesses that have strong financial statements containing an unqualified opinion from CPA firm and at

least three consecutive years of profits loans supported by unaudited financial statements containing strong balance

sheets five consecutive years of profits five-year satisfactory relationship with the Bank and key balance sheet

and income statement trends that are either stable or positive loans secured by publicly traded marketable securities

where there is no impediment to liquidation loans to individuals backed by liquid personal assets established credit

history and unquestionable character or loans to publicly held companies with current long term debt ratings of

Baa or better

Risk Grade Satisfactory Pass
oans supported by financial statements audited or unaudited that indicate average or slightly below average risk

and having some deficiency or vulnerability to changing economic conditions loans with some weakness but

offsetting features of other support are readily available loans that are meeting the terms of repayment but which

may be susceptible to deterioration if adverse factors are encountered

oans may be graded Satisfactory when there is no recent information on which to base current risk evaluation

and the following conditions apply

At inception the loan was properly underwritten did cg possess an unwarranted level of credit risk

and the loan met the above criteria for risk grade of Excellent Good or Satisfactory

At inception the loan was secured with collateral possessing loan value adequate to protect the Bank

from loss

he loan has exhibited two or more years of satisfactory repayment with reasonable reduction of the

principal balance

During the period that the loan has been outstanding there has been no evidence of any credit

weakness Some examples of weakness include slow payment lack of cooperation by the borrower

breach of loan covenants or the borrower is in an industry known to be experiencing problems If any

of these credit weaknesses is observed lower risk grade may be warranted

Risk Grade Satisfactory/Monitored Pass
oans in this category are considered to be of acceptable credit quality but contain greater credit risk than

Satisfactory loans due to weak balance sheets marginal earnings or cash flow lack of financial information

weakening markets insufficient or questionable collateral coverage or other uncertainties These loans warrant

higher than average level of monitoring to ensure that weaknesses do not advance The level of risk in

Satisfactory/Monitored loan is within acceptable underwriting guidelines so long as the loan is given the proper

level of management supervision
Loans that normally fall into this grade include construction of commercial real

estate buildings land development and subdivisions and rental properties that have not attained stabilization

Risk Grade Sp.cial Mention

oans which possess some credit deficiency or potential weakness which deserves close attention Such loans pose

an unwarranted financial risk that if not corrected could weaken the loan by adversely impacting the future

repayment ability of the borrower The key distinctions of Special Mention classification are that it is

indicative of an jpfl level of risk and weaknesses are considered potential not defined
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impairments to the primary source of repayment These loans may be to borrowers with adverse trends in financial

performance collateral value and/or marketability or balance sheet strength

Risk Grad Substandard

One or more of the following characteristics may be exhibited in loans classified Substandard

Loans which possess defined credit weakness The likelihood that loan will be paid from the

primary source of repayment is uncertain Financial deterioration is under way and very close attention

is warranted to ensure that the loan is collected without loss

Loans are inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor

The primary source of repayment is gone and the Bank is forced to rely on secondary source of

repayment such as collateral liquidation or guarantees

Loans have distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain some loss if deficiencies are not corrected

Unusual courses of action are needed to maintain high probability of repayment

The borrower is not generating enough cash flow to repay loan principal however it continues to make

interest payments

The lender is forced into subordinated or unsecured position due to flaws in documentation

Loans have been restructured so that payment schedules terms and collateral represent concessions to

the borrower when compared to the normal loan terms

The lender is seriously contemplating foreclosure or legal action due to the apparent deterioration in the

loan

There is significant deterioration in market conditions to which the borrower is highly vulnerable

Risk Grad Doubtful

One or more of the following characteristics may be present in loans classified Doubtful

Loans have all of the weaknesses of those classified as Substandard However based on existing

conditions these weaknesses make full collection of principal highly improbable

The primary source of repayment is gone and there is considerable doubt as to the quality of the

secondary source of repayment

The possibility of loss is high but because of certain important pending factors which may strengthen

the loan loss classification is deferred until the exact status of repayment is known

Risk Grad Loss

Loans are considered uncollectible and of such little value that continuing to carry them as assets is not feasible

Loans will be classified Loss when it is neither practical nor desirable to defer writing off or reserving all or

portion of basically worthless asset even though partial recovery may be possible at some time in the future
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Conim.rcial

wrier occupied State

Non owner occupied real estate

Resident al development

evelopmeiit Spec and oans

mmer al and industrial

Total commurcial

R.ai .stat

esiderit al rflOr tgaqe

Residential construction

Moitqaqe warehouse

Total r.al .stat

Conuunisr

eci nstai iment

ed nstal Irnent Pu chased

Ii idi ect rista Ilmetit

IX11C quity

Total Consuni.r

Note Premises and Equipment

Note Loan Servicing

Land

Buildings and improvements

Furniture and equipment

otal cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net premise and equipment

Sp.ci.l

M.ntion

oarls serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets The unpaid principal

balances of loans serviced for others totaled approximately $463.5 million and $313.3 million at December 31 2010 and

2009

he aggregate fair value of capitaliied mortgage servicing rights was approximately $3.7 million $3.5 million and $1.2

million at December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 Comparable market values and valuation model that calculates the

present value of future cash flows were used to estimate fair value For purposes of measuring impairment risk

characteristics including product type investor type and interest rates were used to stratify the originated mortgage

servicing rights

Papa Substandard Doubtful Total

94722 13656 17506 125883

119041 6107 11838 136986

834 53 886 2257

4378 746 1315 6439

45831 6856 5.649 58336

264805 21902 31195 329901

164603 9121 173124

1262 205 746

123743 123743

295608 9326 304934

23253 274 23527

1864 1869

126696 1426 128122

111888 2314 114202

263101 4019 261720

824114 21902 50539 902555
Total

Dec.mber 31 December 31

2010 2009

11184 9202

32645 30211

10353 12504

54182 51917

19988 21443

34194 30534
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Mo.tgag servicing rights

Balances January

Servicing rights capitalized

Amortization of servicing rights

Impairment allowance

Balances December 31

During 2008 the Bank recorded recovery of the impairment allowance totaling approximately $3000 During 2010 and

2009 the Bank recorded additional impairment of approximately $664000 and $135000

Note Intangible Assets

As result of the acquisition of Alliance Bank Corporation in 2005 and American Trust Savings Bank in 2010 the

Company has recorded certain amortizable intangible assets related to core deposit intangibles The Core deposit

intangible is being amortized over ten years using an accelerated method Amortizable intangible assets are summarized as

follows

Amortizable intangible assets

Core deposit intangible 4637 1896 2952 1505

Amortization expense for intangible assets totaled $390000 $305000 and $317000 for the years ended December 31

2010 2009 and 2008 Estimated amortization for the years ending December 31 are as follows

2012 438

2013 427

2014 416

2015 267

Thereafter 144

2741

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits

Interest-bearing demand deposits

Money market variable rate

Savings deposits

Certificates of deposit of $100000 or more

Other certificates and time deposits

Total deposits

D.c.mber 31 Dscsmb.r 31

2010 2009

107606 84357

345288 395179

86859 79831

76806 35638

206130 186236

162809 170467

985498 951708

D.c.mb.r 31 D.c.mb.r 31

2009

December 31

20082010

3010 132 276

2000 2807 634

835 529 78

4175 3010 732

803 139

3372 2871 728

D.c.mber 31 2010 December 312009

Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

2011 449

Note 10 Deposits
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Certificates arid other time deposits for both retail and brokered maturing in
years ending December 31 are as follows

Rthil Broki.d

163319 20414

39647 23500

25324 17628

4606 10729

7514 10923

35295 10039

275706 93233

Note 11 Borrowings

ederal Home Loan Bank advances variable and fixed rates ranging
from

.58/i to 1.53% due at various dates through November 15 2024

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

ederal funds purchased

otal borrowings

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Thereafter

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Thereafter

D.c.mb 31 D.c.nb.r 31

20092010

88847 142780

140394 141236

31500

260741 284016

he ederal Home Loan Bank advances are secured by first and second mortgage loans and mortgage warehouse loans

totaling approximately $265.3 million Advances are subject to restrictions or penalties in the event of prepayment In

addition $15.0 million advance outstanding at December 31 2010 that matures on April 29 2013 contained an option

whereby the interest rate may be adjusted quarterly by the Federal Home Loan Bank at which time the advances may be

repaid at the option of the Company without penalty

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase consist of obligations of the Bank to other parties The obligations are

secured by U.S agency and mortgage-backed securities and such collateral is held in safekeeping by third parties The

maximum amount of outstanding agreements at any month end during 2010 and 2009 totaled $144.7 million and $149.1

million and the daily average
of such agreements totaled $138.6 million and $131.8 million The agreements at December

2010 mature at various dates through September 13 2020

At December 31 2010 the Bank has available approximately $383.6 million in credit lines with various money center

banks including the HLB

Contractual maturities in years ending December 31

76478

812

14518

20195

20463

128275

260741
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Not 12- Subordinated D.bentur.s

In October of 2004 Horizon formed Horizon Statutory Trust II Trust wholly owned statutory business trust Trust

sold $10.3 million of Trust Preferred Capital Securities as participant in pooled trust preferred securities offering

The proceeds from the sale of the trust preferred securities were used by the trust to purchase an equivalent amount of

subordinated debentures from Horizon Thejunior subordinated debentures are the sole assets of Trust II and are fully

and unconditionally guaranteed by Horizon Thejunior subordinated debentures and the trust preferred securities pay

interest and dividends on quarterly basis Thejunior subordinated debentures and the securities bear interest at rate of

90 day LIBOR plus 1.95% and mature on October 21 2034 and are non-callable for five years After that period the

securities may be called at any quarterly interest payment date at par Costs associated with the issuance of the securities

totaling $1 7500 were capitalized and were amortized to the October 31 2009 first call date of the securities

In December of 2006 Horizon formed Horizon Bancorp Capital Trust III Trust III wholly owned statutory business

trust Trust III sold $12.4 million of Trust Preferred Capital Securities as participant in pooled trust preferred securities

offering The proceeds from the sale of the trust preferred securities were used by the trust to purchase an equivalent

amount of subordinated debentures from Horizon Thejunior subordinated debentures are the sole assets of Trust Ill and

are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Horizon Thejunior subordinated debentures and the trust preferred securities

pay interest and dividends on quarterly basis Thejunior subordinated debentures and the securities bear interest at rate

of 90 day LIBOR plus 1.65% and mature on January 30 2037 and are non-callable for five years After that period the

securities may be called at any quarterly interest payment date at par Costs associated with the issuance of the securities

totaling $12647 were capitalized and are being amortized to the first call date of the securities The proceeds of this issue

were used to redeem the securities issued by Trust on March 26 2007

The Company assumed additional debentures as the result of the acquisition of Alliance Bank Corporation in 2005 In

June 2004 Alliance formed Alliance Financial Statutory Trust wholly owned business trust Alliance Trust to sell $5.2

million in trust preferred securities The proceeds from the sale of the trust preferred securities were used by the trust to

purchase an equivalent amount of subordinated debentures from Alliance Thejunior subordinated debentures are the sole

assets of Alliance Trust and are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Horizon Thejunior subordinated debentures and

the trust preferred securities pay interest and dividends on quarterly basis Thejunior subordinated debentures and the

securities bear interest at rate of 90-day LIBOR plus 2.65% mature in June 2034 and are non-callable for five years

After that period the securities may be called at any quarterly interest payment date at par

The Company assumed additional debentures as the result of the American Trust Savings Bank purchase and

assumption in 2010 In March 2004 Am Tru Inc the holding company for American Trust Savings Bank formed Am
Tru Statutory Trust wholly owned business trust Am Tru Trust to sell $3.6 million in trust preferred securities The

proceeds from the sale of the trust preferred securities were used by the trust to purchase an equivalent amount of

subordinated debentures from Am Tru Inc Thejunior subordinated debentures are the sole assets of Am Tru Trust and

are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Horizon Thejunior subordinated debentures and the trust preferred securities

pay interest and dividends on quarterly basis Thejunior subordinated debentures and the securities bear interest at rate

of 90-day LIBOR plus 2.85% mature in March 2034 and are non-callable for five years After that period the securities

may be called at any quarterly interest payment date at par

The Trust Preferred Capital Securities subject to certain limitations are included in Tier Capital for regulatory purposes

Dividends on the Trust Preferred Capital Securities are recorded as interest expense

Note 13 Employ. Stock Ownership Plan

Effective January 2007 Horizon converted its stock bonus plan to an employee stock ownership plan Prior

to that date Horizon maintained an employee stock bonus plan that covered substantially all employees The stock bonus

plan was noncontributory and Horizon made matching contributions of amounts contributed by the employees to the

Employee Thrift Plan and discretionary contributions Prior to the establishment of the employee stock bonus plan

Horizon maintained an that was terminated in 1999 The prior accounts of active employees and the
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discretionary accounts of active employees will remain in the new The Matching contribution accounts under the

Stock Bonus Plan will be transferred to the Horizon Bancorp Employees Thrift Plan

he SOP exists for the benefit of substantially all employees Contributions to the are by Horizon and are

determined by the Board of Directors at their discretion The contributions may be made in the form of cash or common

stock Shares are allocated among participants each December 31 on the basis of each participants eligible compensation

to total eligible compensation Eligible compensation is limited to $245000 for each participant
Dividends on shares held

by the plan at the discretion of each participant may be distributed to an individual participant or left in the plan to

purchase additional shares

otal cash contributions and expense recorded for the was$400000 in 2010 and $300000 in 2009 and 2008

he SOP which is not leveraged owns total of 394483 shares of Horizons stock or 12.0% of the outstanding shares

Not 14- Employ. Thrift Plan

he Employee Thrift Plan Plan provides that all employees of Horizon with the requisite hours of service are eligible

for the Plan he Plan permits voluntary employee contributions and Horizon may make discretionary matching and profit

sharing contributions Each eligible employee is vested according to schedule based upon years of service Employee

voluntary contributions are vested at all times and Horizons discretionary contributions vest over six-year period The

Banks expense related to the thrift plan totaled approximately 459000 in 2010 $439000 in 2009 and $348000 in 2008

he hrift Plan owns total of 128493 shares of Horizons stock or 3.9% of the outstanding shares
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Currently payable

Federal
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State

Deferred

Total income tax expense

Reconciliation of federal statutory to actual tax expense

Federal statutory income tax at 34%

Tax exempt interest

Tax exempt income

Nondeductible and other

Effect of state income taxes

Actual tax expense

Ass.ts

Allowance for loan losses

Director and employee benefits

Other

Total assets

Liabiliti.s

Depreciation

Difference in expense recognition

Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends

Difference in basis of intangible assets

FHLB Penalty

Unrealized gain on securities available for sale

Other

Total liabilities

Net deferred tax asset

D.c.mb.r 31 D.c.mb.r 31

2010 2009

6946 5849

1371 1057

102 32

8419 6938

1147 1241
51 148

298 298

1682 1547

1417

1746 2930

80 73
6421 6237

1998 701

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S federaijurisdiction With few exceptions the Company is no longer

subject to U.S federal state and local or non-U.S income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2007

D.c.mb.r 31 D.c.mb.r 31 D.c.mb.r 31

2010 2009 2008

3018 2818 2404

37 35 57
113 713 485

2942 2070 1862

4555 3812 3683

1453 1377 1182

273 245 496
81 120 105
32 38

2942 2070 1862
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Not 16- Other Comprehensive Income Loss

D.c.mb.r 31 D.c.mb.r 31 D.c.mbr 31

2010 2009 2008

Iinrealiied gains losses on securities

Unrealiied holding gains losses arising during the period

ess reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income

Jnreatiied gain loss on derivative instruments

Net unrealiied gains losses

lax expense benefit

Other comprehensive income loss

2850 7348 1706

533 795 15
3383 6553 1721

1803 1279 851

5186 7832 870

1815 2741 305

3371 5091 565

hi components of accumulated other comprehensive income loss included in capital are as follows

D.c.mb.r 31 D.cwib.r 31 D.c.mb.r 31

2010 2009 2008

Unrealiied gain on securities available for sale

t.Jnrealied gain toss on derivative instruments

lax effect

otal accumulated other comprehensive income

Not 18- Regulatory Capital

4989 8371 1817

1377 428 851

1264 3079 338
2348 5719 628

Note 11 Commitments Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Contingencies

Because of the nature of its activities Horion is subject to claims and lawsuits that arise primarily in the ordinary course of

business It is the opinion of management that the disposition or ultimate resolution of such claims and lawsuits will not

have material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position results of operations and cash flows of the Company

he Bank was required to have approximately $4.3 million of cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank to

meet regulatory reserve and clearing balance requirements at December 31 2010 These balances are included in cash and

cash equivalents and do not earn interest

he Bank is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the ordinary course of business to meet financing

needs of its customers These financial instruments include commitments to make loans and standby letters of credit The

Banks exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for

commitments to make loans and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments

he Bank follows the same credit policy to make such commitments as is followed for those loans recorded in the financial

statements

At December 31 2010 and 2009 commitments to make loans amounted to approximately $252.4 million and $189.5

million and commitments under outstanding standby letters of credit amounted to approximately $1.1 million and $1.5

million Since many commitments to make loans and standby letters of credit expire without being used the amount does

not necessarily represent future cash advances No losses are anticipated as result of these transactions Collateral

obtained upon exercise of the commitment is determined using managements credit evaluation

Ioriion and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies

and are assigned to capital category The assigned capital category is largely determined by three ratios that are calculated

according to the regulations total risk adjusted capital Tier capital and Tier leverage ratios The ratios are intended to

measure capital relative to assets and credit risk associated with those assets and off-balance sheet exposures of the entity
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For W.ii

Capit.uiz.d Piapo..s

Amount Ratio

Aatual

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of D.c.mb.r 31 2010

Total capital to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated 144941 15.07% 76943 8.00% N/A N/A
Bank 133893 13.96% 76730 8.00% 95912 10.00%

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated 132860 13.81% 38482 4.00% N/A N/A
Bank 121812 12.70% 38366 4.00% 57549 6.00%

Tier capital to average assets

Consolidated 132860 9.31% 56717 4.00% N/A N/A
Bank 121812 8.60% 56657 4.00% 70821 5.00%

As of D.cmb.r 31 200

Total capitall to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated 142122 14.74% 77135 8.00o N/A N/A
Bank 126005 1310% 76950 8.00% 96187 10.00%

Tier capitall to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated 130052 13.49% 38562 4.00% N/A N/A

Bank 113935 11.85% 38459 4.00% 57689 6.00%

Tier capitall to average assets

Consolidated 130052 9.86% 52759 4.00% N/A N/A

Bank 113935 8.64% 52748 4.00% 65935 5.00%

As defined by regulatory agencies

Not 19- Shar.-Bas.d Comp.nsation

Under Horizons 1997 Stock Option and Stock Appreciation Right Plan 1997 Plan Horizon may grant certain officers

and employees stock option awards or stock appreciation rights which vest and become fully exercisable at the end of five

years of continued employment SARs entitle eligible employees to receive cash stock or combination of cash and stock

totaling the excess on the date of exercise of the fair market value of the shares of common stock covered by the option

over the option exercise price The underlying stock options are deemed to have been cancelled upon exercise of the SARs

summary of option activity under the 1997 Plan as of December 31 2010 and changes during the year then ended is

presented below

HORIZON BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Nots to Consolidat.d Financial Stat.rn.nts

Table dollars in thousands except for per share data

The capital category assigned to an entity can also be affected by qualitative judgments made by regulatory agencies about

the risk inherent in the entitys activities that are not part of the calculated ratios

There are five capital categories defined in the regulations ranging from well capitalized to critically undercapitalized

Classification of bank in any of the undercapitalized categories can result in actions by regulators that could have

material effect on banks operations At December 31 2010 and 2009 Horizon and the Bank are categorized as well

capitalized and met all subject capital adequacy requirements

For Capital

Ad.quacy Purposs
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W.eght.d

W.ight.d- Av.rag Aggr.gat

Av.rag R.maining Intrinsic

Shar. Ex.rcis Pric T.rm Vaiu

Outstanding beginning of year 18250 7.68

Exercised 16450 6.56

Outstanding end of year 1800 17.93 2.00 15612

xercisable end of year 1800 17.93 2.00 15612

here were no options granted during the years 2010 2009 and 2008 The total intrinsic value of options exercised during

the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 was $210000 $61000 and $23000

On January 21 2003 the Board of Directors adopted the Horion Bancorp 2003 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan 2003

Plan which was approved by stockholders on May 2003 Under the 2003 Plan Horiion may issue up to 150000

common shares plus the number of shares that are tendered to or withheld by Horlion in connection with the exercise of

options plus that number of shares that are purchased by Horiion with the cash proceeds received upon option exercises

he 2003 Plan limits the number of shares available to 150000 for incentive stock options and to 75000 for the grant of

lion-opt ion awards The shares available for issuance under the 2003 Plan may be divided among the various types of

awards and among the participants as the Compensation Committee Committee determines The Committee is

author ied to grant any type of award to participant that is consistent with the provisions of the 2003 Plan Awards may

consist of incentive stock options nonqualified stock options stock appreciation rights restricted stock performance

units performance shares or any combination of these awards The Committee determines the provisions terms and

conditions of each award restricted shares vest over period of time established by the committee at the time of each

qrant Holders of restricted shares receive dividends and may vote the shares The restricted shares are recorded at fair

market value on the date granted as separate component of stockholders equity The cost of these shares is being

amortiied against earnings using the straight-line method over the vesting period The options shares granted under the

2003 plan vest at rate of 20% per year The restricted shares granted under the 2003 Plan vest at the end of each grants

vesting period On March 2010 the Board of Directors adopted and was approved by stockholders on May 2010 an

amendment to the 2003 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan making an additional 175000 Common Shares available for

issuance

he fair value of options granted is estimated on the date of the grant using an option-pricing model with the following

weighted-average assumptions there were no options granted during 2009 or 2008 under the 2003 plan

D.c.mb.r 31 2010

Dividend yields 2.99%

Volatility factors of expected 30.97%

market price of common stock

Risk-free interest rates 2.86%

Expected life of options years
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summary of option activity under the 2003 Plan as of December 31 2010 and changes during the year then ended is

presented below

W.ight.d.

Av.rag

W.ightsd- R.maining Aggr.gat

Av.rag Contractual Intrinsic

Shar.s Ex.rcis Pric Tanti Valu

Outstanding beginning of year 29000 25.28

Granted 20000 22.40

Forfeited 2000 23.56

Outstanding end of year 47000 24.13 6.78 116080

Exercisable end of year 43000 23.86 6.86 112080

The weighted average grant-date fair value of options granted during the year
2010 was $5.91 No options were granted

under the 2003 Plan during 2009 and 2008 No options granted under the 2003 Plan were exercised in 2010 2009 or

2008

summary of the status of Horizons non-vested restricted shares as of December 31 2010 is presented below

2010

W.ight.d

Av.rag

Grant Dat

Shar. Fair Valu

Non-vested beginning of year 10000 27.22

Granted 8329 19.35

Non-vested end of year 18329 23.64

Grants vest at the end of four or five years of continuous employment

Total compensation cost recognized in the income statement for option-based payment arrangements during 2010 was

$30000 and the related tax benefit recognized was $12000 Total compensation cost recognized in the income statement

for option-based payment arrangements during 2009 and 2008 was $39000 and the related tax benefit recognized was

$15000 respectively

Total compensation cost recognized in the income statement for restricted share based payment arrangements during 2010

2009 and 2008 was $68000 $164000 and $233000 The recognized tax benefit related thereto was $27000 $66000 and

$92000 for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Cash received from option exercise under all share-based payment arrangements for the years ended December 31 2010

2009 and 2008 was $120000 $68000 and $35000 The actual tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from option

exercise of the share-based payment arrangements totaled $77000 $18000 and $8000 for the years ended December 31

2010 2009 and 2008

As of December 31 2010 there was $19000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to all non-vested share-based

compensation arrangements granted under all of the plans That cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average

period of 0.3
years

89



HORIZON BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Table dollars in thousands except for per share data

Note 20 lerivative Financial Instruments

Cash Flow H.dg.s

As strategy to maintain acceptable levels of exposure to the risk of changes in future cash flow due to interest rate

fluctuations the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements for portion of its floating rate debt The

agreements provide for the Company to receive interest from the counterparty at three month LIBOR and to pay interest

to the counterparty at weighted average fixed rate of 5.63% on notional amount of $30.6 million at December 31 2010

and $27.0 million at December 31 2009 Under the agreements the Company pays or receives the net interest amount

monthly with the monthly settlements included in interest expense

Management has designated the interest rate swap agreement as cash flow hedging instrument For derivative

instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedge the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative

is reported as component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods

luring which the hedged transaction affects earnings Gains and losses on the derivative representing either hedge

ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded from the assessment of effectiveness are recogniied in current earnings At

December 31 2010 the Companys cash flow hedge was effective and is not expected to have significant impact on the

Companys net income over the next 12 months

Fair Value Hedges

air value hedges are intended to reduce the interest rate risk associated with the underlying hedged item The Company

enters into fixed rate loan agreements as part of its lending policy To mitigate the risk of changes in fair value based on

fluctuations in interest rates the Company has entered into interest rate swap agreements on individual loans converting

the fixed rate loans to variable rate For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as fair value hedge the

gain or loss on the derivative as well as the offsetting gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are

ricogniled in current earnings At December 31 2010 the Companys fair value hedges were effective and are not expected

to have significant impact on the Companys net income over the next 12 months

he change in fair value of both the hedge instruments and the underlying loan agreements are recorded as gains or losses

in interest income The fair value hedges are considered to be highly effective and any hedge ineffectiveness was deemed

riot material notional amounts of the loan agreements being hedged were $48.0 million at December 31 2010 and

$30.1 million at December 31 2009

Other D.rivativ Instrum.nts

he Company enters into non-hedging derivatives in the form of mortgage loan forward sale commitments with investors

arid commitments to originate mortgage loans as part of its mortgage banking business At December 31 2010 the

Companys fair value of these derivatives were recorded and over the next 12 months are not expected to have significant

impact on the Companys net income

he change in fair value of both the forward sale commitments and commitments to originate mortgage loans were

recorded and the net gains or losses included in the Companys gain on sale of loans
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The following tables summarize the fair value of derivative financial instruments utilized by Horizon Bancorp

As.t Dwivativ Liability D.rivativss

D.o.mb.r 31 2010 D.o.nsr 31 2010

D.rlvativas d.signat.d as h.dglng Balano Sh..t Balano Sh..t

instrumsnts Location Fair Valu Location Fair Valu

Interest rate contracts Loans 1388 Other liabilities 2039

Interest rate contracts Other Assets 651 Other liabilities 1316

Total d.rivativ.s d.signat.d as

h.dglng ln.trum.nls 2039 3415

D.rtvaiev.s not d.signat.d as

h.dging instrum.nts

Mortgage loan contracts Other assets 407 Other liabilities

Total dsrivatlvss not d.signatsd as

hsdging instrum.nts 401

Total d.rivatiyas 2446 3415

Au.t D.rivativ Liability D.rivativ.s

D.o.n.r 31 2000 D.o.mbor 31 2009

D.nvaeiv.s d.sign.t.d as h.dging Balano Sh..t Balano ist
instrumonts Location Fair Valu Location Fair Valu

Interest rate contracts Loans 1141 Other liabilities 1141

Interest rate contracts Other Assets 1038 Other liabilities 611

Total d.riwativ.s d.signat.d as

h.dginginstrunisnts 2119 1752

D.rivativ.s not d.signat.d as

h.dging instrum.nts

Mortgage loan contracts Other assets 265 Other liabilities 135

Total d.rivativ.s not dssignatsd as

h.dging instrum.nts 265 135

Total dirivativss 2444 1887

The effect of the derivative instruments on the consolidated statement of income for the twelve month periods ended is as

follows

Amount of Loss R.oogniz.d in Oth.r Conipr.h.nsiv

Incom on D.rlvativ Eff.ctiv Portion

Tw.lv Months End.d D.c.rnbor 31

D.rivativ in cash flow 2010 2009 2009

h.dging r.lationship

Interest rate contracts 1172 831 553

FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 820-10-20 defines fair value as the price that would be received

to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date

Topic 820-10-55 establishes fair value hierarchy that emphasizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of

unobservable inputs when measuring fair value
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Amount of Gain Loss R.cogniz.d on Donvativ

Tw.iv Months Endd D.c.nib.r 31

Location of gain loss 2010 2009

r.cognissd on derivative

Interest Income loans

Interest income loans

Note 21 Disclosures about fair valu of assets and liabilities

air value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date fair value hierarchy is also established which requires

au entity to maxumi/e the use of observable and minimiie the use of unobservable inputs There are three levels of inputs

that may be used to measure fair value

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities quoted prices

in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market

data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities

Level Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value

of the assets or liabilities

ollowing is description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value on recurring basis

and recogniied in the accompanying financial statements as well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant

to the valuation hierarchy

Available for sale securities

When quoted market prices are available in an active market securities are classified within Level of the valuation

hierarchy It quoted market prices are not available then fair values are estimated by using pricing models quoted prices
of

securities with similar characteristics or discounted cash flows Level securities include Treasury and federal agency

securities state and municipal securities federal agency mortgage obligations and mortgage-backed pools and corporate

notes evel securities are valued by third party pricing service commonly used in the banking industry utiliiing

observable inputs Observable inputs include dealer quotes market spreads cash flow analysis the Treasury yield curve

trade execution data market consensus prepayment spreads and available credit information and the bonds terms and

conditions he pricing provider utiliies evaluated pricing models that vary based on asset class These models

incorporate available market information including quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics and because

many fixed-income securities do not trade on daily basis apply available information through processes such as

benchmark curves benchmarking of like securities sector grouping and matrix pricing
In addition model processes such

as an option adjusted spread model is used to develop prepayment and interest rate scenarios for securities with

prepayment features

Durivative in fair value

Interest rate contracts

Fri Or est ai corltr acts

Total

898 565 1706

898 565 1106

Amount of Gain Loss R.cogniz.d on Derivative

Tw.lv Months Endsd D.c.mb.r 31

Derivative not d.signat.d
Location of gain loss 2010 2009 2009

as h.dging relationship recognized on derivative

Mortqaqe contracts Other income gain on sale of loans 538 101 231

Total 538 101 231
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Hedged loans

Certain fixed rate loans have been converted to variable rate loans through entering into interest rate swap agreements

Fair value of those fixed rate loans is based on discounting estimated cash flows using interest rates determined by

respective interest rate swap agreement Loans are classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy based on the

unobservable inputs used

Interest rate swap agreements
The fair value is estimated by third party using inputs that are primarily unobservable and cannot be corroborated by

observable market data and therefore are classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities recognized in the accompanying financial

statements measured at fair value on recurring basis and the level within the FASB ASC fair value hierarchy in which the

fair value measurements fall at the following

D.c.mb.r 31 2010

Available-for-sale securities

uS reasury and federal agencies

State and municipal

ederal agency collateralized mortgage obligations

ederal agency mortgage-backed pools

Private labeled mortgage-backed pools

Corporate notes

Total available-for-sale securities

Hedged loans

orward sale commitments

Interest rate swap agreements

Commitments to originate loans

D.c.mb.r 31 2009

Available-for-sale securities

uS reasury and federal agencies

State and municipal

ederal agency collateralied mortgage obligations

ederal agency mortgage-backed pools

Private labeled mortgage-backed pools

Corporate notes

otal available-for-sale securities

ledged loans 31153

Forward sale commitments 265 265

Interest rate swap agreements 115 715
Commitments to originate loans 135 135

Quot.d Pric.s in

Activ Mark.ts

for ldntical

A.ts

L.v

Significant

Oth
Obs.rvabl

Inputs

Level

Significant

Iinobs.rvabl

Inputs

L.v.iFair Value

25251 25251

131489 131489

101837 101837

117895 117895

5323 5323

549 456 20

382344 456 381815

50088 50088

407 407

3415 3415

20085 20085

109149 109149

77289 77289

118661 118661

7606 7606

342 323 19

333132 323 332809

31153
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he following is reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of recurring fair value measurements recognized in

the accompanying consolidated balance sheet using significant unobservable level inputs

B.ginning balance December 31 2009

otal realiied and unrealized gains and losses

Included ri net income

Included ri other comprehensive income gross

Purchases issuances and settlements

Principal payments

Ending balance D.c.nb.r 31 2010

B.9 inning balanc December 31 2008

otal mali/ed and unrealized gains and losses

Included in net income

Included in other comprehensive income gross

Purchases issuances arid settlements

Pr
iricipal payments

Ending balance D.c.mber 31 2009

Realiied gains and losses included in net income for the periods are reported in the consolidated statements of income as

follows

V.ar Ended December 31

Non Interest Income

Total gains and losses from

lodged loans

air value interest rate swap agreements

ivative loan commitrilerits

2010 2009 2008

875 565 1706

875 565 1706

1098 101 231

1098 101 231

Certain other assets are measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis in the course of business and are subject to fair value

adjustments in certain circumstances for example when there is evidence of impairment

D.cemb.r 31 2009

mnpairot nails 11398 11398

H.dg.d Loans

31153

Forward Sal

Commitments

265

Interest Rat

Swaps

715

Commitments to

Originate Loans

135

898 142 898 135

1802

19167

1130
50088 407 3415

Forward Sale Int.r.st Rat Commitments to

Hedged Loans Commitments Swaps Originate Loans

25033 670 2557 438

565 405 565 303

240

7489 1037

804
31153 265 715 135

D.c.mber 312010

riipair
01 lOdris

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Merkets Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs

Fai Value Level Level Level

9919 9919
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Impaired loans collateral dependent Fair value adjustments for impaired loans typically occur when there is evidence

of impairment Loans are designated as impaired when in the judgment of management based on current information and

events it is probable that all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement will not be collected

The measurement of loss associated with impaired loans can be based on either the observable market price of the loan or

the fair value of the collateral The Company measures fair value based on the value of the collateral securing the loans

Collateral may be in the form of real estate or personal property including equipment and inventory The value of the

collateral is determined based on Internal estimates as well as third party appraisals or non-binding broker quotes These

measurements were classified as Level The fair value of the Companys other real estate owned is determined using Level

inputs which include current and prior appraisals and estimated costs to sell

Note 22 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value amounts were determined using available market information current pricing information

applicable to Horizon and various valuation methodologies Where market quotations were not available considerable

management judgment was involved in the determination of estimated fair values Therefore the estimated fair value of

financial instruments shown below may not be representative of the amounts at which they could be exchanged in

current or future transaction Due to the inherent uncertainties of expected cash flows of financial instruments the use of

alternate valuation assumptions and methods could have significant effect on the derived estimated fair value amounts

The estimated fair values of financial instruments as shown below are not intended to reflect the estimated liquidation or

market value of Horizon taken as whole The disclosed fair value estimates are limited to Horizons significant financial

instruments at December 31 2010 and 2008 These include financial instruments recognized as assets and liabilities on the

consolidated balance sheet as well as certain off-balance sheet financial instruments The estimated fair values shown

below do not include any valuation of assets and liabilities which are not financial instruments as defined by the FASB

ASC fair value hierarchy

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument

Cash and Due From Banks The carrying amounts approximate fair value

Investment Securities For debt securities held to maturity fair values are based on quoted market prices or dealer

quotes For those securities where quoted market price is not available carrying amount is reasonable estimate of fair

value based upon comparison with similar securities

Loans Held for Sale The carrying amounts approximate fair value

Loans The fair value of portfolio loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at

which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities

Interest Receivable/Payable The carrying amounts approximate fair value

FHLB and FRB Stock Fair value of FHLB and FRB stock is based on the price at which it may be resold to the

FHLB and FRB

Deposits The fair value of demand deposits savings accounts interest-bearing checking accounts and money market

deposits is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date The fair value of fixed maturity certificates of deposit is

estimated by discounting the future cash flows using rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturity

BorTowings Rates currently available to Horizon for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities are used to

estimate fair values of existing borrowings
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Subordinated Debentures Rates currently available for debentures with similar terms and remaining maturities are

used to estimate fair values of existing debentures

Commitments to Extend Credit and Standby Letter of Credit The fair value of commitments is estimated using the

fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the

present creditworthiness of the counterparties For fixed-rate loan commitments fair value also considers the difference

between current levels of interest rates and the committed rates The fair value of letters of credit is based on fees

currently charged for similar agreements or on the estimated cost to terminate them or otherwise settle the obligations with

the counterparties at the reporting date Due to the short-term nature of these agreements carrying amounts approximate

fair value

lie estimated fair values of Horizons financial instruments are as follows

D.c.mb.r 31 2010 D.c.mb.r 31 2009

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

Ass.ts

Cash arid due from banks 15683 15683 68702 68702

Investment securities available for sale 382344 382344 333132 333132

Investment securities held to maturity 9595 9595 11657 11687

oaris held for sale 18833 18833 5703 5703

oaris net 863813 867054 870302 885625

Stock in Fill and FRB 13664 13664 13189 13189

Interest receivable 6519 6519 5986 5986

Liabilities

Non-interest bearing deposits 107606 107606 84357 84357

titer est -bearing deposits 877892 854617 867351 830621

Borrowings 260741 289381 284016 304000

Subordinated debentures 30584 30734 27837 27817

Interest payable 781 781 1135 1135

Note 23 Capital Purchase Program

on ecember 19 2008 Horizon entered into Letter Agreement Purchase Agreement with the Treasury pursuant to

which lorizori agreed to issue and sell 25000 of Horizons fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock and

warrant to purchase 212104 shares of Horizons common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $3750000 in cash

In preferred Stock qualifies as icr capital and will pay cumulative dividends at rate of 5%
per annum for the first five

years arid 9% per annum thereafter The preferred Stock is non-voting except with respect to certain matters affecting the

rights of the holders thereof and may be redeemed by Horizon after three years The Warrant has ten year term and is

immediately exercisable with an exercise price of $17.68 per share of Common Stock Pursuant to the Purchase

Agreement reasury has agreed not to exercise voting power with respect to any shares of Common Stock issued upon

exercise of the Warrant

Iii the Purchase Agreement Horizon agreed that until such time as Treasury ceases to own any debt or equity securities of

the Company acquired pursuant to the Purchase Agreement Horizon will take all necessary action to ensure that its

benefit plans with respect to its senior executive officers comply with Section 111b of the Emergency Economic

Stabilization Act of 2008 EESA as implemented by any guidance or regulation under EESA that has been issued and is in

effect as of the date of issuance of the Preferred Stock and the Warrant and has agreed to not adopt any benefit plans with
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respect to or which cover its senior executive officers that do not comply with the EESA and the applicable executives

have consented to the foregoing

Upon issuance of the Preferred Stock on December 19 2008 the ability of Horizon to declare or pay dividends on or

purchase redeem or otherwise acquire for consideration shares of its Common Stock will be subject to restrictions

including Horizons restriction against increasing dividends from the last quarterly cash dividend per share of $17 declared

on the Common Stock prior to December 19 2008 The redemption purchase or other acquisition of trust preferred

securities of Horizon or its affiliates also is restricted These restrictions will terminate the earlier of the third

anniversary of the date of issuance of the Preferred Stock or the date on which the Preferred Stock has been redeemed

in whole or Treasury has transferred all of the Preferred Stock to third parties In addition the ability of Horizon to

declare or pay dividends or repurchase redeem or otherwise acquire for consideration shares of its Common Stock will be

subject to restrictions in the event that Horizon fails to declare and pay full dividends on its Preferred Stock

On November 2010 the Company received approval to redeem 25% or $6.25 million of the Treasurys original $25.0

million preferred stock investment in the Company from the Capital Purchase Program which is program of the

Troubled Assets Relief Program TARP On November 10 2010 the Company completed the redemption process

reducing the Treasurys preferred stock investment in the Company to $18.75 million This repurchase will result in annual

savings of $312500 or $0.10 per share due to the elimination of the associated preferred dividends The Companys plan

is to repurchases the remaining preferred shares over the next three years from the Companys earnings

Note 24 Condensed Financial Information Parent Company Only

Presented below is condensed financial information as to financial position results of operations and cash flows of

Horizon Bancorp

Cond.ns.d Balanc Sh..ts

D.c.rnb.r 31 Dc.mb.r 31

2010 2009

Ass.ts

Total cash and cash equivalents

Investment in Bank

Other assets

Total assets

Liabiuiti.s

Subordinated debentures

Other liabilities

Stockhold.rs Equity

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

8496 11819

134044 126898

2341 4913

144881 143690

30584 27837

2014 1248

112283 114605

144881 143690
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HORIZON BANCORP AND SuBsIDIARIES

Not.s to Consolidat.d Financial Stat.m.nts

Table dollars in thousands except for per share data

Cond.ns.d Statsinsnts of Incom

Op.rating Incom Exp.ns
Dividend income from Bank

rivestmeflt income

Other income

Interest expense

rnployee benefit expense

Other expense

Incom B.fors Undistribut.d lncom of Subsidiari.s

Undistributd lnconi of Subsidiari.s

Incom B.for Tax

Inconi Tax B.nofit

N.t Inconi

Preferred stock dividend and discount accretion

NM Incom Availabi to Common Sha.hold.rs

Op.rating Activiti.s

Net

Itims riot requiring providing cash

quity in undistributed net income of Bank

Change in

Iricorrw taxes receivable

Dividends receivable from Bank

Share based compensation

Amortiiation of unearned compensation

Other assets

Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

lnv.sting Activiti.s

nivestmerit in Bank

Purchases and assumption of ATSB

Net cash provided by used in investing activities

Financing Activitiss

Proceeds redemption from issuance of preferred stock

ividenids paid on preferred shares

ividends paid urn common shares

Change in borrowings

xercise of stock options

ssuarice of restricted shares

ax benefit of stock options

Net cash provided by used in financing activities

N.t Changs in Cash and Cash Equival.nts

Cash and Cash Equival.nts at B.ginning of Y.ar

Cash and Cash Equival.nts at End of

V.ars End.d D.c.mb.r 31

2010 2009 2008

5000 7750 6200

10

200 129

1688 1467 1705

498 503 572

119 100 104

2841 5553 3829

6159 2117 4201

9600 8270 8030

855 870 942

10455 9140 8972

1406 1402 45
9049 1738 8921

Cond.ns.d Stat.m.nts of Cash Flows

Y.ars End.d D.osnth.f 31

2010 2009 200$

10455 9140 8972

6759 2117 4201

33 7523 954

2500 1500 300

30 39 39

68 164 233

308 175 48

250 82 98
6269 12392 4339

3500 20000

3412

88 20000

6250 25000

1245 1132

2240 2229 2147

4700

120 68 35

34 96

77 18

9504 1879 22896

3323 4513 1235

11819 7306 71

8496 11819 7306
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HORIZON BANc0RP AND SuBsIDIARIEs

Not. to Consolidated Financial Stat.m.nts

Table dollars in thousands except for per share data

Not 25 Quart.rly R.sufts of Operations Unaudit.d

The following is summary of the quarterly consolidated results of operations

Thr. Month End.d 2010 March 31 Jun 30 S.ptsnth.r 30 D.c.mb.r 31

Interest income 16132 16807 17876 17676

Interest
expense 5579 5439 5256 4601

Net interest income 10553 11368 12620 13075

Provision for loan losses 3233 3000 2651 2664

Gain loss on sale of securities 131 336 66

Net income 1.791 2515 3279 2871

Net income available to common

shareholders 1439 2163 2926 2522

Earnings per share

Basic 0.44 0.66 0.89 0.77

Diluted 0.44 0.65 0.88 0.75

Average shares outstanding

Basic 3270217 3278392 3279201 3280331

Diluted 3293192 3333768 3336634 3362118

Thr. Month End.d 2009 March 31 Jun 30 S.ptarnb.r 30 Dicsmbar 31

Interest income 18674 18849 17485 17655

Interest expense 7258 7586 6766 6284

Net interest income 11.416 11263 10719 11371

Provision for loan losses 3197 3290 3416 3700

Gain loss on sale of securities 422 373

Net income 2635 2064 2357 2084

Net income available to common

shareholders 2285 1714 2006 1733

Earnings per share

Basic 0.71 0.53 0.62 0.53

Diluted 0.71 0.52 0.61 0.53

Average shares outstanding

Basic 3209482 3209482 3245505 3262921

Diluted 3250424 3270178 3273742 3275588
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HORIZON BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidat.d Financial Statements

Table dollars in thousands except for per share data

Note 26- American Trust Savings Bank

On June 2010 the Company announced the completion of the purchase of assets and the assumption of liabilities of

American Trust Savings Bank American in Whiting Indiana The transaction was consummated on May 28 2010

he Company purchased most of the banking-related assets of American totaling $107.8 million and assumed all the

deposits federal home loan bank advances trust preferred securities and accrued interest payable in the approximate

amount of $110.3 million The Company paid deposit premium on core deposits of approximately $2.1 million and

$500000 in additional consideration

he Company engaged in this transaction in the expectation that it would realiie increased profits through increasing its

investment securities loans and deposits within new market area

Iuririg the first six months of 2010 the Company incurred $664000 of third-party transaction-related costs The expenses

are included in lion-interest expense in the Companys condensed consolidated statements of income for the year ended

31 2010

he transaction was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with the Business

Combination topic of the ASB Accounting Standards Codification Codification The statement of net assets and

liabilities acquired as of May 28 2010 are presented in the table below The assets and liabilities of American were

recorded at the respective acquisition date fair values and identifiable intangible assets were recorded at fair value At the

late of closing $370000 of loans purchased were deemed to have evidence of deterioration of credit quality since

origination arid were written down to fair value of $249000 This amount of non-performing loans purchased was not

considered to be material to the Company or the transaction and therefore no additional disclosures related to these loans

are included

ASSETS LIABILITIES

Cash and due from banks 5601 Deposits

rrvestrnent securities available for sale 39188 Non-interest bearing 11.351

NoW accounts 18725

Ccnnrnerciai 15141 Savings and money market 42189

lesderitial mortgage 36512 Certificates of deposits 25468

rrstalimerii 4111 otai deposits 97.739

nial loans 56490

Rorrowirigs 8149

Fill stock 1336 Subordinated debentures 2663

ore dexsit nitangi
bie 1685 Other iabii ties 303

1r ernises arid equipment 3107

Cash value life insurance 3212

Oilier asseis 836

otal assets fLlnchiased 111515 total liabilities assumed 109454

Net assets assumed 2061
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Report of Independent R.gster.d PubHo Acceuntht flrm

Audit Commfttee Board of Directors and StockhoIder

kwzon Bancorp

Michigan City Indiana

We have audited the accompanying consohdated balance sheets of Horizon Bancorp as of December 31 2010 and 2009
ann the reatea consoHdated statements of income stockho1ders equity and cash flows fur each of the years in the three

year period ended December 31 2010 The Companys management is responsible for these financial statemnents Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States hose standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement Our audit included exam ining on test basis evidence
supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide
reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material resperts the financial

position of Horizon Bancorp as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for

each of the years in the three year period ended December 31 2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America

Indianapolis Indiana

March 112011

Praxitv

experience SKD
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Horizon Bancorp

MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements and related notes

on the preceding pages he statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America appropriate in the circumstances and include amounts that are based on managements best

estimates and judgments inancial information elsewhere in the Annual Report is consistent with that in the consolidated

financial statements

meeting its responsibility for the accuracy of the consolidated financial statements management relies on Horizons

system of internal accounting controls This system is designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded

and transactions are properly recorded to permit the preparation of appropriate financial information The system of

internal controls is supplemented by program of internal audits to independently evaluate the adequacy and application of

financial and operating controls and compliance with Company policies and procedures

he Audit Committee of the Board of Directors meets periodically with management the independent accountants and

the internal auditors to ensure that each is properly discharging its responsibilities with regard to the consolidated financial

statements and internal accounting controls The independent accountants have full and free access to the Audit

and meet with it to discuss auditing and financial reporting matters

he consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report have been audited by BKD independent registered

public accounting firm for 2010 2009 and 2008 Their audits were conducted in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States and included consideration of internal accounting controls

tests of accounting records and other audit procedures to the extent necessary to allow them to express their opinion on

the fairness of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

Jnited States of America
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Horizon Bancorp
Summary of S.l.ct.d Financial Data

Dollars in thousands except for per share data

Earnings

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Other income

Other expenses

Income tax expense

Net income

Preferred stock dividend

Net income available to common

shareholders

Cash dividend declared

2010 200$ 2001 2001 2006

47616 44169 37350 32808 31545

11554 13603 7568 3068 905

19906 17856 13831 12211 10137

42571 37812 32119 31144 30455

2942 2070 1862 2121 2838

10455 9140 8972 8140 1484

1406 1402 45

9049 7138 8927 8140 1484

2240 2229 2147 1911 1811

2.76 2.39 2.18 2.54 2.36

2.11 2.31 2.15 2.51 2.33

0.68 0.68 0.66 0.59 0.56

28.68 27.61 24.68 22.03 19.31

3277069 3232033 3208658 3200440 3171212

3334598 3270723 3246351 3243565 3211050

882877 886317 881967 888852 843834

19064 16015 11410 9791 8738

1400919 1387020 1306857 1258874 1222430

985498 951708 841169 893664 913973

291325 311853 352220 286689 240002

P.r Shar Data

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Cash dividends declared per

common share

Book value per common share

Weighted-average shares

outstanding

Basic

Diluted

P.rlod End Totals

Loans net of deferred loan fees

and unearned income

Allowance for loan losses

Total assets

Total deposits

otal borrowings

Loan to deposit

oan to total funding

Return on average assets

Average stockholders equity to

average total assets

Rettir ii on average stock holders

equity

Dividend payout ratio dividends

divided by net income

Price to book value ratio

Price to earnings ratio

89.59% 93.13% 104.85% 99.46% 92.33%

69.15% 10.14% 13.90% 15.30% 13.12%

0.15% 0.68% 0.15% 069% 067%

8.41% 8.21% 6.36X 5.61% 14%

9.56% 8.92% 11.81% 12.29% 13.03%

25.01% 28.14% 24.00% 23.51% 24.03%

92.76% 58.63% 50.66% 118.09% 143.53%

9.81 6.85 4.55 10.21 11.71
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Horizon Bancorp
Horizons Common Stock and R.lat.d Stockholders Matters

Ioriion common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol HBNC The following table sets

forth for the periods indicated the high and low prices per share Also summarized below are the cash dividends declared

by quarter for 2009 and 2008

here Cail be no assurance as to the amount of future dividends on Horizon common stock since future dividends are

subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors cash needs general business conditions and dividends from the bank

subsidiary In addition as result of Horizons participation in the TARP Capital Purchase Program Horizon may not

increase the quarterly dividends it pays on its common stock above $0.17
per

share during the three-year period ending

December 19 201 without the consent of the Treasury Department unless the Treasury Department no longer holds

shares of the Series Preferred Stock Horizon issued in the TARP Capital Purchase Program

he approximate number of holders of record of Horizons outstanding common stock as of December 31 2010 is 564

2010

Dividsnds

Common Seoc Pric. D.cI...d

High Low P.rShai

19.50 16.44 0.11

22.81 1948 011

22.60 21.15 0.11

26.99 21.89 0.11

2009

if uar ter

Second Quarter

hird Quarter

Ruth Quarter

ir St uJarter

Second Quarter

hi Quarter

ouurth Quarter

Common Siock Pyle

High Low

13.21

19.45

17.50

1725

Divid.nd

D.cr.d
P.r Sb

0.11

0.11

0.11

0.11

10.50

11.00

15.00

14.31
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Horizon Bancorp

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

one

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disciosur Controls and Proc.dur.s

Under the supervision of and with the participation of its management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Office Horizon has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls as defined

in Rule 13a-15e of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by this

report Based on such evaluation such officers have concluded that as of the evaluation date Horizons disclosure

controls and procedures are effective to ensure that the information required to be disclosed by Horizon in the reports it

files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified

in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms and are designed to ensure that information required to be

disclosed in those reports is accumulated and communicated to management as appropriate to allow timely decisions

regarding disclosure

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Horizon Bancorp is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15f under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Horizons internal control over financial

reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Companys management and Board of Directors regarding the

preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements

Management assessed the effectiveness of Horizons internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 In

making this assessment management used the criteria set forth in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations COSO of the Treadway Commission Based on this assessment management
has determined that Horizons internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 is effective based on the

specified criteria

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Horizons management including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer also have concluded that during

the fiscal quarter ended December 31 2010 there were no changes in Horizons internal control over financial reporting

that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect Horizons internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable
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Horizon Bancorp

PART III

his information is omitted from this report pursuant to General Instruction of Form 10-K as Horiion intends to

file with the Commission its definitive Proxy Statement for its 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders the Proxy

Statement pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended not later than 120 days after

December 31 2010

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

11w information relating to Horiions directors required by this item is found in the Proxy Statement under Proposal

ection of Directors and is incorporated into this report by reference The information relating to the Audit Committee

of the Board of Directors required by this item is found in the Proxy Statement under Corporate Governance The

Audit Committee and is incorporated into this report by reference

Itw information relating to Horions executive officers required by this item is included in Part of this Form 10-K under

Special tern Executive Officers and is incorporated into this item by reference

he information relating to certain filing obligations of directors and executive officers required by this item is found in the

Proxy Statement under Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance and is incorporated into this report by

reference

Ionion has code of ethics that applies to its directors chief executive officer and chief financial officer The code is

available on loriions website at http//www.accesshorizon.cOm/

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE QMPENSATION

he information on executive and director compensation and compensation committee matters required by this item can

be found in the Proxy Statement under Corporate Governance Compensation Committee Report Compensation

iscussion and Analysis xecutive Compensation and Compensation of Directors and is incorporated into this

ipor by ref ererice
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Horizon Bancorp

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table presents information regarding grants under all equity compensation plans of Horizon through

December 31 2010

Numb.r of Securities

Remaining Available for

Futur Issuance Under

Equity Compensation

Plans Excluding

Securities Reflected in

the First Column

Equity compensation plans

not approved by security

holders
__________________________ _________________________

Total 48800

Represents options granted or available under the 1997 Key Employees Stock Option and Stock Appreciation Rights Plan of Horizon Bancorp

and the Horizon Bancorp 2003 OmnIbus Equity Incentive Plan

The other information required by this item can be found in the Proxy Statement under Common Stock Ownership by

Directors and Executive Officers and Stock Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and is incorporated by reference

into this report

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is found in the Proxy Statement under Corporate Governance and Certain

Business Relationships and Transactions and is incorporated by reference into this report

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement section captioned

Accountant Fees and Services

Number of Securities to

be Issued Upon Exercise

of Outstanding Options

Warrants and RightsPlan Category

Equity compensation plans

approved by security

holders

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of

Outstanding

Options Warrants

and Rights

48800 23.90

23.90

276567

276567
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HorizonBancorp

PART IV

ITEM1S EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
Documents Filed As Part of This Annual Report on Form 10-K

inancial Statement

See the nancial Statements included in Item

inancial Statement Schedules

inancial statement schedules are omitted for the reason that they are not required or are not applicable or the

required information is included in the financial statements

L_bits

he exhibits filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are identified in the Exhibit Index which Exhibit

Index specifically identifies those exhibits that describe or evidence all management contracts and compensation

plans or arrangements required to be filed as exhibits to this Report Such Exhibit Index is incorporated herein by

ref erenci
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Horizon Bancorp

Registrant

Date March 11 2011 By Is Craig Dwight

Craig Dwight

President and Chief Executive Officer Principal

xecutive Officer

Date March 11 2011 By Is Mark Secor

Mark Secor

Chief Financial Officer Principal Financial Officer

and Principal Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Date Signature and Title

March 11 2011 Is Robert Dabagia

Robert Dabagia Chairman of the Board and

Director

March 112011 Is Craig Dwight

Craig Dwight President and Chief Executive

Officer and Director

March 11 2011 Is Susan Aaron

Susan Aaron Director

March 11 2011 /s Lawrence Burnell

Lawrence Burnell Director

March 11 2011 /s James Dworkin

James Dworkin Director

March 11 2011 Is Charley Gillispie

Charley Gillispie Director

March 11 2011 /s Daniel Hopp

Daniel Hopp Director
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Late
_____________

Signature and Title

March 11 2011 Is Peter L. Paint

Peter Pairiti Director

March 11 2011 /s/ Larry Middleton

Larry Middleton Director

March 11 2011 Is Robert Swinehart

Robert Swinehart Director

March 11 2011 Is Spero Valavanis

Spero Valavanis Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The following exhibits are included in this Form 10-K or are incorporated by reference as noted in the following table

Exhibit

umber Description Incorporated by Reference/Attached

2.1 Purchase and Assumption Agreement dated Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 2.1 to

December 29 2009 by and among Horizon Bank Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

National Association American Trust Savings December 31 2009

Bank of Whiting Indiana and Amjru Inc

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of Horizon Bancorp as Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit to

amended Registrants Form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended

September 30 2007

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Horizon Bancorp Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 31 to

Registrants Form 8-K filed July 16 2009

3.3 Certificate of Designations for Series Preferred Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 3.1 to

Stock as amended through July 15 2008 Registrants Form 8-K filed December 23 2008

4.1 Indenture dated as of October 21 2004 between Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 4.1 to

Horizon Bancorp and Wilmington Trust Company Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

related to the issuance of Trust Preferred Securities December 31 2009

4.2 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 4.2 to

Horizon Bancorp Capital Trust II dated as of Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

October 21 2004 related to the issuance of Trust December 31 2009

Preferred Securities

4.3 Junior Subordinated Indenture dated as of Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 4.1 to

December 15 2006 between Horizon Bancorp and Registrants Form 8-K filed December 21 2006

Wilmington Trust Company

4.4 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Horizon Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 4.2 to

Bancorp Capital Trust III dated as of December 15 Registrants Form 8-K filed December 212006

2006

4.5 Form of Certificate for Series Preferred Stock Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 4.1 to

Registrants Form 8-K filed December 23 2008
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xhibit Description Incorporated by Reference/Attached

Number

4.6 Warrant for Purchase of Shares of Common Stock Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 4.2 to

Registrants Form 8-K filed December 23 2008

10.1 Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan as Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

amended Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2008

10.2 199 Key mployees Stock Option and Stock Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to

Appreciation Rights Plan Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2008

10.3 Form of Amendment No ito Horiion Bancorp Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to

Stock Option and Stock Appreciation Rights Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

Agreement and Schedule Identifying Material Details December 31 2008

of Individual Amendments

10.4 Horion Bancorp Amended 2003 Omnibus Equity Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to

Incentive Plan Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2009

10.5 Directors Deferred Compensation Plan Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.5 to

Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2009

10.6 Form of Change of Control Agreement for certain Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.6 to

executive officers Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2009

lOP I- orm of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.7 to

2003 Omnibus Plan Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2009

10.8 Form of Option Grant Agreement under 2003 Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.8 to

Omnibus Plan Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2009

10.9 Description of Executive Officer Bonus Plan Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.9 to

Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2009

10.10 Guarantee Agreement of Horion Bancorp dated as Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.10 to

of October 21 2004 related to the issuance of Trust Registrants Form 10-K for the
year ended

Preferred Securities December 31 2009

10.11 IIonion Bancorp 2005 Supplemental Executive Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.14 to

Retirement Plan Registrants Form 10-K for the
year ended

December 31 2006

10.12 Amendment to Horiion Bancorp Restricted Stock Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.2 to

Award Agreement dated July 19 2006 Registrants Form 8-K filed July 21 2006

ioi mployment Agreement dated December 2006 Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

among Honion Bancorp Horiion Bank N.A and Registrants Form 8-K filed December 2006

Craig Dwight
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Exhibit

Number Description

Letter Agreement dated December 2006 between

10.14 Horizon Bank N.A and Craig Dwight

Guarantee Agreement of Horizon Bancorp dated as

10.15 of December 15 2006

Employment Agreement dated July 16 2007 among
Horizon Bancorp Horizon Bank N.A and Thomas

10.16 Edwards

Letter Agreement dated December 19 2008 by and

between the Registrant and the United States

Department of the Treasury including the Securities

Purchase Agreement Standard Terms incorporated

10.17 by reference therein

Agreement dated August 28 2007 between Horizon

10.18 Bank N.A and Mark Secor

First Amendment of the Agreement between Horizon

1019 Bank N.A and Mark Secor dated January 2009

Second Amendment of the Agreement between

Horizon Bank N.A and James Foglesong dated

10.20 January 2009

Letter Agreement dated November 10 2010 by and

between the Registrant and the United States

10.21 Department of the Treasury

21 Subsidiaries of Horizon

23 Consent of BKD
Certification of Craig Dwight pursuant to Section

31.1 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Mark Secor pursuant to Section

31.2 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Craig Dwight Pursuant to 18

U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section

32.1 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Mark Secor Pursuant to 18 U.S.C

Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

32.2 the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to

99.1 31 C.F.R 30.15

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 31

99.2 C.F.R 30.15

Incorporated by Reference/Attached

Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.2 to

Registrants Form 8-K filed December 2006

Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

Registrants Form 8-K tiled December 21 2006

Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

Registrants form 8-K filed July 19 2007

Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

Registrants Form 8-K tiled December 23 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to

Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2009

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to

Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2009

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to

Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2009

Attached

Attached

Attached

Attached

Attached

Attached

Attached

Attached

Attached

lndicates exhibits that describe or evidence management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed as

exhibits to this Form 10-K

113



EXHIBIT 21 SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

____

I-loriori Bank National Association

loriion Insurance Services Inc

subsidiary of Horizon Bank

loriori Investments Inc

subsidiary of Horizon Bank

oriion Bancorp Capital Trust

Alliance inancial Statutory Trust

Ioriion Bancorp Capital Trust III

Ioriion Grantor rust

subsidiary of Horizon Bank

Jurisdiction of

Incorporation

United States

Indiana

Nevada

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Nam Und.r Which

Busin.ss is Don

Horiion Bank Horizon Trust

Investment Management

Horizon Insurance Services

Horizon Investments Inc
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Conein of hd.p.nd.nt Rogisterod Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the Incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements of onzon Bancorp on Form ito

Nos 3338b214 and 3331 56737 and Forms 58 ito Nos 33398609 333 112970 and 333 166826 of our report dated

March 11 2011 on the consolidated financial statements of Horizon Bancorp as of December 2010 arid 2009 and for

eech of the three years in the pr iod ended Decembr 31 201 11 wbe rApart
Ic Included In the anna report on orm 10

of Horizon Bancorp for the year ended December 31 2010

ndianapotls indiana

March 11 2011
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EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification Pursuant to Section 302

of The Sarbans-Oxiey Act Of 2002

Craig Dwight certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Horiion Bancorp

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

the registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including

its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the

period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

valuated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of

the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case

of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants

internal control over financial reporting and

he registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summari/e and report financial information and

ft Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

HORIZON BANCORP

March 11 2011 By /s/ Craig Dwight

Craig Dwight

President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

C.rtification Pursuant to S.ction 302

of Th Sarbanes-OxI.y Act Of 2002

Mark Secor certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Horizon Bancorp

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including

its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the

period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of

the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case

of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants

internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

HORIZON BANCORP

March 11 2011 By Is Mark Secor

Mark Secor

Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.1

Horizon Bancorp

Certification of Periodic Financial Report

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350

pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 the

undersigned officer of Horion Bancorp the Company certifies that the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company
for the year ended December 31 2010 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities

xchange Act of 1934 and information contained in that Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company

March 11 2011 By Is Craig Dwight

Craig Dwight

Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.2

Horizon Bancorp
C.rtifscatlon of P.rlodic Financial R.port

Pursuant to i8 u.s.c S.ction 1350

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 the

undersigned officer of Horiion Bancorp the Company certifies that the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company

for the year ended December 31 2010 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and information contained in that Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company

March 11 2011 By Is Mark Secor

Mark Secor

Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 99.1

C.rtification of Principal Ex.cutiv OffIc.r

pursuant to 31 C.F.R 30.15

Craig Dwight certify based on my knowledge that

he compensation committee of Horion Bancorp has discussed reviewed and evaluated with senior risk

officers at least every six months during any part of the most recently completed fiscal year that was

period senior executive officer SEO compensation plans and employee compensation plans

and the risks these plans pose to Horion Bancorp

ii he compensation committee of Horiion Bancorp has identified and limited during any part of the most

recently completed fiscal year that was TARP period any features of the SEQ compensation plans that

could lead SE Os to take unnecessary and excessive risks that could threaten the value of Horion Bancorp

and has identified any features of the employee compensation plans that pose risks to Horlion Bancorp

arid has limited those features to ensure that Horiion Bancorp is not unnecessarily exposed to risks

iii he compensation committee has reviewed at least every six months during any part of the most recently

completed fiscal year that was TARP period the terms of each employee compensation plan and

identified any features of the plan that could encourage the manipulation of reported earnings of Horiion

Baricorp to enhance the compensation of an employee and has limited any such features

iv he compensation committee of Horion Bancorp will certify to the reviews of the SEQ compensation

plans and employee compensation plans required under and iii above

he compensation committee of Horion Bancorp will provide narrative description of how it limited

luring any part of the most recently completed fiscal year that was TARP period the features in

SE compensation plans that could lead SEOs to take unnecessary and excessive risks that could

threaten the value of Horion Bancorp

mployee compensation plans that unnecessarily expose Horion Bancorp to risks and

mployee compensation plans that could encourage the manipulation of reported earnings of

Horiion Bancorp to enhance the compensation of an employee

vi lonion Baricorp has required that bonus payments to SEQs or any of the next twenty most highly

compensated employees as defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of

SA bonus payments be subject to recovery or clawback provision during any part of the most

recently completed fiscal year that was TARP period if the bonus payments were based on materially

inaccurate financial statements or any other materially inaccurate performance metric criteria

vii lortion Bancorp has prohibited any golden parachute payment as defined in the regulations and

guidance established under section 111 of EESA to SEQ or any of the next five most highly

compensated employees during any part of the most recently completed fiscal year that was TARP

period

viii Floriiori Bancorp has limited bonus payments to its applicable employees in accordance with section 111

of ESA and the regulations and guidance established thereunder during any part of the most recently

completed fiscal year that was TARP period

ix Iorion Bancorp and its employees have complied with the excessive or luxury expenditures policy as

defined ri the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA during any part of the

most recently completed fiscal year that was TARP period and any expenses that pursuant to the policy

required approval of the board of directors committee of the board of directors an SEQ or an

executive officer with similar level of responsibility were properly approved

lonion Bancorp will permit non-binding shareholder resolution in compliance with any applicable

federal securities rules and regulations on the disclosures provided under the federal securities laws related
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to SEQ compensation paid or accrued during any part of the most recently completed fiscal year that was

TARP period

xi Horizon Bancorp will disclose the amount nature andjustification for the offering during any part of the

most recently completed fiscal year that was TARP period of any perquisites as defined in the

regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA whose total value exceeds $25000 for

any employee who is subject to the bonus payment limitations identified in paragraph viii

xii Horizon Bancorp will disclose whether Horizon Bancorp the board of directors of Horizon Bancorp or

the compensation committee of Horizon Bancorp has engaged during any part of the most recently

completed fiscal year that was TARP period compensation consultant and the services the

compensation consultant or any affiliate of the compensation consultant provided during this period

xiii Horizon Bancorp has prohibited the payment of any gross-ups as defined in the regulations and guidance

established under section 111 of EESA to the SEOs and the next twenty most highly compensated

employees during any part of the most recently completed fiscal year that was TARP period

xiv Horizon Bancorp has substantially complied with all other requirements related to employee

compensation that are provided in the agreement between Horizon Bancorp and Treasury including any

amendments

xv Horizon Bancorp has submitted to Treasury complete list of the SEOs and the twenty next most highly

compensated employees for the current fiscal year with the non-SEOs ranked in descending order of

level of annual compensation and with the name title and employer of each SEQ and most highly

compensated employee identified

xvi understand that knowing and willful false or fraudulent statement made in connection with this

certification may be punished by fine imprisonment or both See for example 18 USC 1001

March 11 2011 By Is
Craig Dwight

Craig Dwight

President and Chief Executive Qfficer

Horizon Bancorp
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EXHIBIT 99.2

C.rtirication of Principal Financial Otfic.r

pursuant to 31 C.F.R 30.15

Mark Secor certify based on my knowledge that

he compensation committee of Horizon Bancorp has discussed reviewed and evaluated with senior risk

officers at least every six months during any part of the most recently completed fiscal year that was

TARP period senior executive officer SEO compensation plans and employee compensation plans

and the risks these plans pose to Horizon Bancorp

ii he compensation committee of Horizon Bancorp has identified and limited during any part of the most

recently completed fiscal year that was TARP period any features of the SEQ compensation plans that

could lead SEOs to take unnecessary and excessive risks that could threaten the value of Horlion Bancorp

and has identified any features of the employee compensation plans that pose risks to Horiion Bancorp

and has limited those features to ensure that Horizon Bancorp is not unnecessarily exposed to risks

iii compensation committee has reviewed at least every six months during any part of the most recently

completed fiscal year that was TARP period the terms of each employee compensation plan and

identified any features of the plan that could encourage the manipulation of reported earnings of Horizon

Bancorp to enhance the compensation of an employee and has limited any such features

iv the compensation committee of Horizon Bancorp will certify to the reviews of the SEQ compensation

plans and employee compensation plans required under and iii above

he compensation committee of Horizon Bancorp will provide narrative description of how it limited

luring any part of the most recently completed fiscal year that was TARP period the features in

SI compensation plans that could lead SEOs to take unnecessary and excessive risks that could

threaten the value of Horizon Bancorp

rnployee compensation plans that unnecessarily expose Horizon Bancorp to risks and

mployee compensation plans that could encourage the manipulation of reported earnings of

Horizon Bancorp to enhance the compensation of an employee

vi oriion Bancorp has required that bonus payments to SEQs or any of the next twenty most highly

compensated employees as defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of

SA bonus payments be subject to recovery or clawback provision during any part of the most

recently completed fiscal year that was TARP period if the bonus payments were based on materially

inaccurate financial statements or any other materially inaccurate performance metric criteria

vii I-lorion Bancorp has prohibited any golden parachute payment as defined in the regulations and

quidance established under section 111 of EESA to SEQ or any of the next five most highly

compensated employees during any part of the most recently completed fiscal year that was TARP

period

viii Horizon Bancorp has limited bonus payments to its applicable employees in accordance with section 111

of ESA and the regulations and guidance established thereunder during any part of the most recently

completed fiscal year that was TARP period

ix lorizori Baricorp and its employees have complied with the excessive or luxury expenditures policy as

defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA during any part of the

most recently completed fiscal year that was TARP period and any expenses that pursuant to the policy

required approval of the board of directors committee of the board of directors an SEQ or an

executive officer with similar level of responsibility were properly approved

loriori Bancorp will permit non-binding shareholder resolution in compliance with any applicable

federal securities rules and regulations on the disclosures provided under the federal securities laws related
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to SEQ compensation paid or accrued during any part of the most recently completed fiscal year that was

TARP period

xi Horizon Bancorp will disclose the amount nature and justification for the offering during any part of the

most recently completed fiscal year that was TARP period of any perquisites as defined in the

regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA whose total value exceeds $25000 for

any employee who is subject to the bonus payment limitations identified in paragraph viii

xii Horizon Bancorp will disclose whether Horizon Bancorp the board of directors of Horizon Bancorp or

the compensation committee of Horizon Bancorp has engaged during any part of the most recently

completed fiscal year that was TARP period compensation consultant and the services the

compensation consultant or any affiliate of the compensation consultant provided during this period

xiii Horizon Bancorp has prohibited the payment of any gross-ups as defined in the regulations and guidance

established under section 111 of EESA to the SEOs and the next twenty most highly compensated

employees during any part of the most recently completed fiscal
year

that was TARP period

xiv Horizon Bancorp has substantially complied with all other requirements related to employee

compensation that are provided in the agreement between Horizon Bancorp and Treasury including any

amendments

xv Horizon Bancorp has submitted to Treasury complete list of the SEOs and the twenty next most highly

compensated employees for the current fiscal year with the non-SEOs ranked in descending order of

level of annual compensation and with the name title and employer of each SEQ and most highly

compensated employee identified

xvi understand that knowing and willful false or fraudulent statement made in connection with this

certification may be punished by fine imprisonment or both See for example 18 USC 1001

March 11 2011 By Is Mark Secor

Mark Secor

Chief Financial Officer

Horiion Bancorp
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